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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL Environmental” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | present the annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”).

Looking back at 2018, in the face of a slowdown of recovery in the
global economy as well as the adverse impact of factors such as trade
protectionism, China’s economic development remained stagnant in the
second half of the year. According to data from China’s National Bureau
of Statistics, the growth of the country’s gross domestic product for the
year was 6.6%, and it experienced an ongoing slowdown during the
year. Although the Chinese economy faced significant challenges, the
environmental protection industry in China boomed steadily in 2018 under
the support of relevant national policies. In recent years, the Chinese
government has been vigorously promoting the environmental protection
industry and has increased its attention on wastewater treatment
issues and its support to related industries. The revised Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China has been
effective since 1 January 2018, under which 55 major amendments were
made for the delineation of the responsibility for water environment quality
and the implementation of a total discharge control system and a pollutant
discharge licence system in order to boost the demand for wastewater
treatment businesses in China and to create new opportunities for the
market. The Company kept a keen pulse on the market changes over
the past year and adopted a practical and prudent approach towards
expanding its businesses.

Despite the Chinese government contributing significant investments
towards the environmental protection industry, competition in the industry
has been intensified due to ample opportunities, posing challenges to the
Group’s business environment. In view of this, the Group succeeded in
tapping into new business areas in 2016. In the fourth quarter of 2016,
the Group acquired Weal Union Limited (“Weal Union”) and its subsidiary
in Indonesia, PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari (“RPSL”), which is
engaged in the biomass power generation business in Jambi, Indonesia.
RPSL’s power plant has two generating units, which are used mainly for
the operation of its palm kernel oil production facility and for solving the
issue of undersupply of electricity in the area. Since the completion of the
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHRE

acquisition the Group has been devoted to investing in the reconstruction
of the power generation facilities, in order to improve the efficiency of the
power plants and lower the cost of sales. However, in 2018, the project
revenue was less than satisfactory, with the Indonesian subsidiary RPSL
recording net operating loss of approximately HK$9.1 million (excluding
impairment losses). One of the main reasons was a lower-than-expected
utilization rate of the biomass power plant, which increased the difficulty
in predicting the return of this project. We shall continue to monitor the
performance of the power plant and the development of the neighboring
areas and shall strive to enhance the efficiency of the power plants and
lower the cost of sales so as to create higher returns.

In terms of the Group’s domestic businesses, management has been
actively reviewing and adjusting the business direction of the Group to
address the significant increase in the costs of the wastewater treatment
facility and capital expenditures. On 21 September 2016, the Group
entered into an agreement with Nantong Jiahe Technology Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”), an independent third party, for
the disposal of all of the Group’s equity interest in Rugao Honghao Metal
Surface Water Treatment Company Limited (“Rugao Honghao”) to the
Purchaser at a cash consideration of RMB55.0 million. The Group received
the cash consideration in full during the Year, believing that the disposal
would provide funding for the Group’s business expansion. In addition,
the Group will continue to operate the two wastewater treatment facilities
in Jiangsu Province, China, namely Haian Hengfa Wastewater Treatment
Company Limited (“Haian Hengfa”) and Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment
Company Limited (“Rugao Hengfa”). Meanwhile, the Group has been
cooperating and negotiating with the local authorities to raise the tariffs for
Rugao Hengfa, and having reached the final stage of negotiations, expects
that Rugao Hengfa and the local authorities will be able to soon reach a
consensus on a tariff raise. Upon tariff adjustment, the revenue and gross
profit of the Group are expected to increase, strengthening its financial
position in the coming years.

For the Year, ELL Environmental recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$79.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.1%, the
gross profit was HK$10.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 120.5% and the net loss was HK$144.7 million, including impairment
of HK$39.9 million to the goodwill and HK$79.7 million to the property,
plant and equipment in relation to the biomass power generation project in
Indonesia.
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Looking forward, China’s water industry will continue to secure regular
demands and investments. Under the condition that the risks and returns
are in line with the management’s expectations, the Company will seek to
develop more wastewater treatment projects and explore opportunities
to diversify into other business areas of environmental protection. In the
coming future, the Company will continue adhering to its prudent and
stable operation policies, and will give priority to shareholders’ interests
by adopting strategies and plans which are in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders, hence stabilizing the Group’s profit-making
trend and achieving steady growth.

Once again, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors
and staff. We are well aware that our staff, customers and partners are
the key to our sustained and stable development. In the coming year,
our management and staff will strive to deliver better performance,
maintain close liaison with our partners, provide high-quality services
to our customers and generate attractive returns for our investors and
shareholders.

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B E TR EE AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, mounting international trade conflicts posed challenges to global
economic growth. Under the support of the government’s fiscal policies
and the modification of macroeconomic policies, the Chinese economy
prevented itself from suffering a sharp decline in its growth in the second
half of 2018, with China’s gross domestic product (GDP) for the Year
reaching RMB90,030.9 billion, which was beyond expectation.

The issue of environmental protection has become a global concern in
recent years. In accordance with the “13th Five-Year Plan” for Nationwide
Integrated Treatment of Rural Environment (2B 2 IREGAER
[+=1 R &), the Chinese government has repeatedly voiced its support
for the water treatment industry to achieve full collection and treatment of
wastewater in built-up areas of cities, and to accelerate comprehensive
rural environment management in 130,000 administrative villages.
Meanwhile, the report to the 19th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China highlighted the Chinese government’s commitment to
preventing and controlling pollution before 2020, and to achieving a
fundamental improvement in the ecological environment by 2035. We are,
therefore, expected to see a continuous growth in China’s environmental
protection industry in the upcoming years.

ELL Environmental is an environmental protection industry services
provider which offers a one-stop approach to the provision of wastewater
treatment services using the “Build-Operate-Transfer” or “BOT” mode. Our
services range from the design of wastewater treatment facilities, through
the procurement of suitable equipment and materials to the supervision
of construction as well as the ongoing operation and maintenance of the
facilities throughout long-term concession periods. ELL Environmental
has actively adhered to the national policies, flexibly responding to market
changes and making use of development opportunities in both China and
overseas, to stably operate the Group’s wastewater treatment business.
However, as competition in the industry has become increasingly intense,
wastewater treatment projects are not as profitable as in the past. In
October 2016, the Group acquired Weal Union Limited and its subsidiary
in Indonesia, PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari (“RPSL”) (collectively
as “Weal Union Group”). In Indonesia, being the fourth most populous
country in the world, the renewable energy industry is set to gain from the
undersupply of electricity due to rapid urbanisation and continuing support
given by the local government to the environmental protection industry.
The management believes that the acquisition is in line with the Group’s
objective of expanding into other environmental protection businesses
and beneficial to shareholders’ interests and the long-term development
of the Group as a whole. However, during the Year, the biomass power
generation plant in Indonesia has yet to achieve its expected utilization
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Management Discussion and Analysis

rate due to the low market consumption of electricity in the region. This
was mainly due to the fact that several urban development projects
planned by the Indonesian government had been aborted, which led to a
slowdown in economic growth and the local market development, hence
reducing power consumption and demand, which in turn eased the power
supply shortage in the vicinity of our biomass power plant. Moreover, the
construction of the electricity grid connecting the South Sumatra region
of Indonesia, where our biomass power plant is located, and the North
Sumatra region, where the demand of electricity is higher, along with
other infrastructure projects, had also been aborted, which contributed to
the continued low utilization level of the power plant. The Group has also
been actively negotiating with various parties on the potential collaboration
in new businesses which enable self-consumption of the electricity
generated by our power plants, as well as the potential disposal of the
assets or equity of RPSL to external parties. At the same time, the Group
will explore other suitable environmental protection projects, especially
BOT investment projects, in order to provide a more stable cash flow and
investment returns for the Group.

ELL Environmental’s two wastewater treatment facilities are currently both
located in Jiangsu Province, China, namely the Haian Hengfa Facility
and the Rugao Hengfa Facility (both defined below). In 2016, the Group
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Nantong Jiahe Technology
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“Nantong Jiahe”) to dispose of all the
Group’s equity interest in Rugao Honghao (defined below). The remittance
of consideration payment in connection with the disposal had been fully
received in September 2018. Due to an increase in operating costs and
the diminishing profitability of the Rugao Honghao Facility (defined below),
it is believed that such disposal will provide funding for the Group’s future
business development and increase the overall growth in its return.

In terms of tariff adjustment, Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment Company
Limited has made it into the last stage of examinations and discussions
with the local government. As the tariff adjustment will not only raise the
tariff to a reasonable level but also make up for the price difference in
previous years, it is set to bring a remarkable growth in the revenue of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED N

OUTLOOK

In view of the aforementioned market risks and uncertainties, the
Company aims to expand its business steadily in line with the principles of
stability and prudence, solidify its strong foundation in China’s wastewater
treatment market, continue to provide high-quality services to customers,
leverage its extensive experience and expertise to develop environmental
protection-related industrial chain projects and actively explore potential
environmental protection businesses. Meanwhile, we shall strengthen our
internal management and investment project strategy management to
achieve corporate sustainable development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Our total revenue remained at HK$79.1 million for the Year as compared
to HK$79.0 million for the previous year. During the Year, (i) construction
revenue of HK$11.2 million was recognized due to the incurrence of
construction costs for our upgrade works of the wastewater treatment
facility (‘Rugao Hengfa Facility”) of Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment
Company Limited (“‘Rugao Hengfa”) which was absent in the previous
year; (i) the revenue from wastewater treatment facility operation services
decreased by HK$15.6 million or 42.0% from HK$37.1 million for the
previous year to HK$21.5 million for the Year, primarily due to the absence
of the revenue generated from the operation of our wastewater treatment
facility (“Rugao Honghao Facility”) of Rugao Honghao Metal Surface
Water Treatment Company Limited (“Rugao Honghao”), which was
disposed of during the previous year, and (i) the offsetting effect from
the increase in revenue from the sales of electricity generated from the
biomass power plants in Indonesia by HK$4.4 million or 16.6% from
HK$26.8 million for the previous year to HK$31.2 million for the Year.

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales decreased by HK$5.8 million or 7.8% from HK$74.1
million for the previous year to HK$68.4 million for the Year, primarily due
o (i) the absence of cost of sales from the operation of Rugao Honghao in
the Year which amounted to HK$12.9 million for the previous year, (i) the
offsetting effect of the recognition of construction costs for our upgrade
works of Rugao Hengfa Facility amounting to HK$8.9 million which was
absent in the previous year, and (iii) the increase in operating costs of our
Haian Hengfa Municipal Wastewater Treatment Facility (“Haian Hengfa
Facility”) by HK$1.7 million or 19.3% from HK$8.7 million for the previous
year to HK$10.4 million for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by HK$5.8 million or 120.5% from HK$4.8
million for the previous year to HK$10.7 million for the Year, primarily due
to (i) the decrease in gross loss from the operation of our biomass power
plants in Indonesia by HK$5.1 million or 86.8% from HK$5.9 million for
the previous year to HK$0.8 million for the Year, and (i) the recognition of
construction margin arising from the upgrade works of the Rugao Hengfa
Facility amounting to HK$2.3 million for the Year, which was absent for the
previous year.

Our gross profit margin increased from 6.1% for the previous year to
13.5% for the Year, as the effect of the factors discussed above.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

During the Year, we recognised an impairment loss of HK$39.9 million
(2017: HK$43.9 million) to the goodwill arising on acquisition of Weal Union
Group (the “Goodwill”), and an impairment loss of HK$79.7 million (2017:
nil) to the property, plant and equipment in our Indonesian subsidiary
RPSL (the “PPE of RPSL”). The valuation, and hence the impairment loss,
of the Goodwill as well as the PPE of RPSL was determined by using the
value-in-use approach in calculating the recoverable amount based on the
discounted cash flow model (the “DCF model”). This approach implies
the adoption of the assumption on the ongoing operation of the existing
business in RPSL, with the parameters of the DCF model taken according
to the latest information available to the management. The calculated
net present value of the cash flows generated from the operation of
RPSL decreased by HK$127.6 million or 71.3% from HK$179.1 million
for the previous year to HK$51.5 million for the Year primarily due to
the decreases in (i) the expected electricity unit price by 25.3% in the
forthcoming one-year period as compared to the existing contracted
price, according to the offered price from the sole buyer of the electricity
generated by the power plants of RPSL, (ii) the expected growth rate on
the sales of electricity and (jii) the gross margin ratio, notwithstanding the
offsetting effect from the increase in gross profit from the expected sales
of pellets in the future. The recoverable amount of Weal Union Group and
the particulars regarding the impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed
in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements as set out in
this annual report.
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VALUATION

The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to perform such
impairment testing using the value-in-use approach, which requires the
use of key assumptions, including the discount rate, terminal growth
rate, budgeted sales, gross margin and earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization (‘EBITDA”) margin.

PARAMETERS OF THE VALUATION MODEL AND KEY ASSUMPTIONS

The parameters of the valuation model for the impairment testing of Weal
Union Group are illustrated as follows:

fh{E

AEEEBBS L EXHEMEAEAE
BEXETZRENR  EFEFAEE
BRa% > BIEEIRE kAKX BE
HE - BRI EKR BT E K FHE
(TEBITDA]) = o

HEEXSEREEZR/R

EEEENRERNRNGEEREX 28K
panR

For the year ended
31 December

BEZ+=-A=t+-—-H
IHEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

Annual sales growth rate FHELRE 40.1% 37.5%
Gross margin (as % of revenue) FEMEEHA %) 23.1% 43.6%
EBITDA margin (as % of revenue) EBITDA Z ({518 A %) 17.3% 36.9%
Adopted discount rate PRER AR EYBRIR & 18.4% 18.2%
Long-term growth rate REERE 5.0% 5.0%

In the table above:

(@ Annual sales growth rate refers to the average annual growth
rate over a five-year forecast period, estimated based on
past performance and management’s expectations of market
development.

(b) Gross margin and EBITDA margin refer to the average margin of
gross profit and earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization, respectively, as a percentage of revenue over a five-
year forecast period, estimated based on the management’s
expectations for the market development.

(c) The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
operating segment, which include country risk and certain company
specific risk in execution of the business strategy.

(d) Long-term growth rate is estimated based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Key assumptions considered for the valuation included (but are not limited
to) the following:

(@ there will be no major changes in the existing political, legal, fiscal
and economic conditions in the country that Weal Union Group is
operating;

(b)  there will be no substantial fluctuation in the economic outlook and
specific industry outlook affecting the continuity of the business of
Weal Union Group;

(c) there are no material changes, after the date of this annual report,
in the relevant corporate tax rate, interest rate, long-term borrowing
rate, and exchange rate from that currently prevailing in the country
that Weal Union Group is operating which may significantly impact its
business;

(d) the profit forecasts of Weal Union Group provided to the valuer by
the Company have been complied based on fair and reasonable
assumptions that can be materialised; and

(e) the operation of Weal Union Group complied with all applicable laws.

THE VALUE-IN-USE APPROACH

According to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the recoverable amount
is defined as the higher of an asset’s or a cash-generating unit’s fair
value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The management is
formulating the business plan regarding the Indonesia business, which
may include a potential disposal of the assets or the equity of RPSL in
the future should a suitable opportunity arises to maximise the benefit
to the Group and its shareholders. However, as at 31 December 2018,
no binding offers have been concluded in relation to the restructuring or
disposal of RPSL. Accordingly, Weal Union Group and the PPE of RPSL
were valued based on its value-in-use, with the assumption that RPSL
shall remain in operation. In the event a disposal of the Weal Union Group
or any of the PPE of RPSL is materialised at favourable terms, we may
revalue the enterprise value of the Weal Union Group as well as the PPE
of RPSL based on fair value less costs of disposal, and an adjustment
or reversal of the impairment on the PPE of RPSL could be resulted.
As at the date of this annual report, no definitive agreement has been
entered into in connection to any restructuring or disposal of the Weal
Union Group. The Directors will update the shareholders as and when
appropriate in accordance with applicable laws and requirements under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses increased by HK$8.0 million or 32.2% from
HK$24.7 million for the previous year to HK$32.7 million for the Year. As
a percentage of our revenue, our administrative expenses represented
31.3% and 41.3% for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
respectively. The increase of our administrative expenses was primarily
attributable to the increase in administrative expenses in our Indonesia
operation by HK$5.4 million or 68.7% from HK$7.9 million for the previous
year to HK$13.3 million for the Year, mainly for business development
purposes.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by HK$0.7 million or 50.2% from HK$1.4
million for the previous year to HK$2.2 million for the Year, primarily due to
the interest expense on a short-term borrowing made during the Year.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Our loss before tax increased by HK$90.2 million or 177.3% from
HK$50.9 million for the previous year to HK$141.1 million for the Year,
primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense decreased by HK$6.3 million or 63.9% from
HK$9.9 million for the previous year to HK$3.6 million for the Year,
primarily due to the decrease in the current tax expense in Rugao Hengfa
by HK$2.9 million or 56.9% from HK$5.1 million for the previous year to
HK$2.2 million for the Year as a result of the disapproval of our claims
for certain tax allowances for prior years and therefore recognised as the
income tax expense in the previous year, which was absent for the Year.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Our loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by HK$78.6
million or 128.8% from HK$61.1 million for the previous year to HK$139.7
million for the Year, primarily due to the factors mentioned above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had: (i) an unsecured one-year bank
loan with a carrying amount of HK$28.0 million, which was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (2017: HK$28.0 million) with variable interest rates
at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) plus 1.4% per annum,
repayable on demand; (i) an unsecured five-year bank loan with a carrying
amount of HK$9.0 million, which was denominated in United States
dollars (2017: HK$11.2 million) with variable interest rates at London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.4% per annum, and (i) a secured
6-month bank loan with a carrying amount of HK$2.3 million, which was
denominated in Renminbi with a fixed interest rate of 5.1% per annum
(2017: nil), secured by HK$11.4 million of receivables under service
concession arrangements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate to
investments in our projects, construction of our wastewater treatment
facilities and purchase of equipment, as well as costs and expenses. As
at 31 December 2018, the net assets of the Group was HK$374.4 million,
representing a decrease by HK$147.4 million or 28.3% as compared with
that of HK$521.8 million as at 31 December 2017.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by
total equity and total debt is the bank borrowings. The gearing
ratio was kept stable, being 0.1 as at 31 December 2017 and at
31 December 2018.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s receivables under service
concession arrangements amounting to HK$11.4 million was used to
secure a bank facility of HK$2.3 million (2017: nil).
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time. Surplus cash will be invested appropriately so that the
Group’s cash requirements for the Group’s strategy or direction from time
to time can be met.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our major capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures to
upgrade and improve the Group’s wastewater treatment facilities. During
the Year, we incurred HK$8.9 million on capital expenditures for the
upgrade works of the Rugao Hengfa Facility (2017: nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

Individual member companies in Mainland China and Indonesia within the
Group have limited foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are
denominated and settled in Renminbi and Indonesian Rupiah, respectively.
The Group did not have significant foreign currency exposures from its
operations. However, our consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars. Any appreciation or depreciation of Hong Kong
dollar against Renminbi and Indonesian Rupiah will affect our financial
position and will be reflected in the exchange reserve. The Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The management monitors
the Group’s foreign exchange fluctuation exposure closely. In light of the
unpredictable fluctuations of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the
Group has managed to minimize the exposures in Renminbi by converting
a majority of the cash and bank balances into United States dollars or
Hong Kong dollars. Management considers the volatility of the exchange
rate of Hong Kong dollar against Indonesian Rupiah and the Group’s
currency exposures to Indonesian Rupiah to be acceptable.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

On 21 September 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with
Nantong Jiahe for the sale of all of the equity interest of Rugao Honghao
at a cash consideration of RMB55.0 million which was fully settled during
the Year. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals of assets,
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Year.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no plan authorised
by the Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets
as at the date of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018. As at 31
December 2017, a fine from a court case against Rugao Hengfa ranging
from RMB100,000 to RMB5,000,000 was disclosed as a contingent liability
of the Group. The case was fully settled at a final fine of RMB60,000 during
the Year. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
12 November 2017, 14 November 2017 and 9 May 2018, respectively.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 227 (2017: 227) employees
(including the Directors). Employee costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to HK$21.0 million for the Year (2017: HK$20.2 million).
Our remuneration policy for the Directors and our senior management
members and general staff is based on their experience, level of
responsibility, length of service and general market conditions. Any
discretionary bonus and other merit payments are linked to the financial
results of the Group and the individual performance of the Directors and
our senior management members and general staff. The Group provides
on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 5 September 2014
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible directors
and employees of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Group had no material event subsequent to 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend for the Year has been recommended by the Board (2017:
nil).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(this “Report”) published by ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL
Environmental” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively known as the “Group”, “we” or “us”), which is principally
engaged in wastewater treatment and biomass power generation
businesses, with an aim to describe our approaches and strategies in

pursuit of sustainable development.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

The reporting period of this Report is from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise stated, this
Report covers the sustainability initiatives and performances of our core
businesses: (i) operation services of two wastewater treatment facilities
in Jiangsu Province, the People Republic of China (“PRC”, or “China”),
namely the Haian Hengfa Facility as well as the Rugao Hengfa Facility; and
(i) biomass power generation business in Jambi, Indonesia, supported by
a palm kernel oil production facility with two generating units.

REPORTING STANDARD

This Report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), and has been approved by the Board of Directors.

YOUR OPINION

We see every stakeholder’s opinion as a golden opportunity which put
forward the Group’s long term success and growth. Should you have any
enquiry or comment about the Report and our sustainability performances,
you are welcome to send your feedback to us at ell@anli.com.hk.
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SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH iSRRG #

As one of our core principles, sustainability does not only facilitate {EAKRMIMZLRAZ —  AJHEER
us to better understand our environmental footprint and make social TEBMEMEIERE B S HIRIR TP
contributions, but also helps us optimize our business practices and fEtt&@ &R - M EBHREMELE
develop key and sustainable relationships with different stakeholders. With ~ FIH)E TSR EE - W N E#FFH &R
an aim to bring long term value to our stakeholders and the Group, we SBFAIIFENEE - BT HEKMIFSE
strive to operate in a responsible and transparent way, take great care of FANEETEREEEE - HMIZHAE
our employees, uphold the quality of our products and services, respond B FFFEFER ST X &E - EERMOE
to our customers’ opinions and expectations etc., in order to build a better & #EKMERMREHME - EE
environment and society to achieve sustainability. XEFPWERMBES  METE AR
BAtE  BRUFERE -

To put the above mission into practice, the Group has formulated & 7T Ll amNEEE  ANEBEDH
the Environmental, Social and Governance Policy to motivate our JEIRE - (L EME AR - UHEEE M
subsidiaries and employees to actively fulfill our environmental and social FI’\JWEQET%MEE\F*TE THRMIEIRE
responsibilities regarding environmental protection, health and safety, R#& * @EMZ 2  1TRMBEN KA
conduct and ethics as well as legal compliance. @%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]fﬁt‘%ﬂﬁ 2E5f -

The following four sections summarize our major approaches in achieving A NPOEIELGA B M ERAIFHEZENE
sustainability: HE

Corporate Governance P30

EER

o Upholding business ethics and integrity in daily operation

s HARKERRFAEBENREFRA

Creating Green Fortune P32-44
RERelE

o Striving to reduce our environmental footprint while bringing positive impact to the environment
through our products and services

o EARALBMNREBERY - RFEARMANERMRESREFRIEBRTE

Caring for Our People
BEST

Providing our employees with a harmonious and caring workplace

B THREMZEMEE N TIFRER

Community Contributions
HEE R

o Promoting the participation in community activities to bring positive impact to the local society

s HWIHEERDNZE [EHMETHEBTE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognizes that stakeholders play a critical role in our
continuing success and understands that their views and opinions are
essential for our sustainable development. We cherish every opportunity
to engage our stakeholders and endeavor to address their concerns.
The Group has established different effective communication channels to
interact with and collect feedback from our stakeholders, so as to adjust
our business strategies to better respond to their needs and expectations,
reinforce major relationships and anticipate risks.

The table below summarizes the list of key stakeholders of the Group
we have identified together with the corresponding daily communication
channels:
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Stakeholder Group Communication Channels
BoERR BERE
Employees e Online Survey e Staff Mailbox
(== o M LHE o BTH
e Meeting e Training
« BHE o 5E7
e |nterview e |ntranet
. B . M
Contractors e Online Survey e Interview
B o M LHE o Gk
e Meeting
s BiE
Shareholders and Investors e Online Survey e Telephone Interview
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to understand the expectations and opinions of our stakeholders,
and to enhance the specific and responsive qualities of the Report, apart
from the abovementioned daily communication channels, the Group also
conducted a stakeholder survey during the Reporting Period to enable
stakeholders from various sectors to rank sustainability issues based on
importance as well as share their views on our sustainable development

performance.

Step 1: We identified 19 environmental, social and governance-related
issues that are critical to the Group and its stakeholders through
continuous reviews on previous and existing engagement results,
applicable reporting standards, industry trend in sustainable development
as well as daily operations. The 19 issues we identified are set out below:

Employment and Labor Practices

BREREZEIER

1) Diversification and Equal Opportunities
(Age, Gender, Employment Category,
Geographic Location, etc.)
SEALFITE#E (Fie - 45 -
BEER  HBUES)

2) Recruiting and Maintaining Talents
BEEME B AT

3) Training and Development
IR g R

4) Labor Practices
BTER

5) Occupational Health and Safety
BERERLTE

EEMFE

RERRAFOENMENER - Wik
SARENHEMEERE K7 Lt
AEBARBZIN RNEBTEREH
FHET TRHOERASE - AERKETH
BHNB D EENRBEZEH AIRE
BREBETIHD  UDFREHEM
AIRERRRANEBEL

T BB EUENR AN 2 A
R ERMMEEL - ATREERT
EBBUARAREES B HEAEE
NREFDERREEM19ERE g
FMERRRERE © ZPIE BAIA 19 & ]
B

Environmental Protection
RIBERE

11)
12)

13)

Air Emissions Management
REHENER

Energy Consumption

BEIRERE

Wastewater Management

AIKE TR

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

= RS HERN

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Waste
Management

BENEEEEYERE

Noise Management

R E IR

Resource Utilization and Mitigation Measures
BRI AE R

Green Procurement

AR B ERAE
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Corporate Governance Community Investment

hEER HERE

14)  Anti-Fraud and Corruption 17)  Participation in Volunteer Activities
2 SEBR IR ER 2EEREE

15)  Supplier Selection Process and Tendering 18)  Charitable donations
Management HERE
HEFEEREMNBRER 19)  Fundraising Work

16)  Child Labor and Forced Labor BRI
BT Mog 55T

Step 2: After identifying the critical issues, we invited stakeholders from W2 EHEBRNERZERE - BRMBET
different sectors to participate in an online survey to rank the above EANNFLELEAN AL - ¥ Ll
issues to understand how material or influential the issues are in their MEETHY  UEBRZEREHESE
views. MESMRTE -

Step 3: The corresponding results were collected and analyzed WERS  WEW A THERNERUARERE
together with the opinions from the management for materiality BHEZMHOMHER -

analysis.
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The below materiality matrix shows the results of the materiality analysis: NTEZEHERERTEEEDITIER

Materiality Matrix = Z 14 55 &
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High Importance
> BEME

Low Importance EZH{X  Importance to the Group AN E 7 EZ

Afore-said materiality assessment indicates that the most significant  R#5 Lt & Z B - ARl M R =

material aspects include: BeE
ESG Categories Material Aspects Section
ESG 5l BEXEM =N
Em onment and Labor Practices 2) Recrumng and Maintaining Caring for Our People
ERERIEBIER AEET
?H Hefmﬁ N
3) T@nlng?’and Development
|:| B ‘ %
5) Oocupanonal Health and Safety
BEEFELTS
Environmental Protection 6) Air Em|SS|ons Management Creatln%Green Fortune
RIFRE REBHENE IR B4k
10)  Hazardous and Non-Hazardous
Waste Management
BEMBEEREENER

We strive to ensure proper measures on the most significant issues are  HPIBM N EREFEXZKEZSHPE T &
addressed adequately throughout our business activities. BANZEERIEE WEE
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CARING FOR OUR PEOPLE

We believe that employees are core to the success of our business
and the driving force to achieve our vision and mission. As such,
we always adhere to a people-oriented concept, and attach great
importance to employees’ physical and mental wellbeing. By developing a
comprehensive welfare system, offering continuous professional training,
providing diversified career paths as well as complying with applicable
laws and regulations in relations to labor practice, the Group strives to
create a supportive and quality working environment for our employees
and inspires them to grow with us.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees were not aware
of any violation of labor-related laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the “Labor Law of the PRC” (I ARKFBEILLEE)), the
“Social Insurance Law of the PRC” (I A RLAMBE L &RRE)), the
“Work Safety Law of the PRC” (HZEARKFMBEIZ2AEE)) and the
“Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”

(AR MBI R EE)).
EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW

As of 31 December 2018, we had a total of 209" employees. Detailed
classifications are as follows:

BRI HERERES

MERET

BFIHEER TRERMERBRIIHZL -

RERBMNBSAMEGOHES T -
At - RABRBFAARRNED
ERBEINSLER - BBEEYZEMN
BAER  RHFENEXEZINZT
LR B RERBBRIANETHE TER
HENERZRER  AEEEHAE
TRE-ERFYEFEERNITIER
5 AR RFERM AR -

EHREHE  AEBMEE T RERE
TERSBEBEREZRNTE B
BEAENFEARKMELEEE)
(PEARAMBEEEREOE) - (REA
RAMBZ 2 EEX) (P EARLM
BBERPE)

THE

R
Bz \F+-A=+—8 " %
BHAEBRAT 209 BEE - FANELT -

By Gender By Employment Category
BRERDE RERERNSE
—22 ‘ Senior Management
73
‘ & Middle Management
174 ¢ Female 74— FREEE
i
() Technical staff
— o4 g T
General staff
—RET
By Age By Geographical location
RERTE RitEDE
838 <20 @ 41-50 @ China § Hong Kong
2 *“l 20T 41-50% h i
21 —
62130 @ 5160 | 4 Indonesia
21-305% 51-605% ENfE

51 — —114 138—

31-40 ¢ >60
31-408% 605%2A £

! This is the total number of employees in the Group (including directors) as at
31 December 2018.
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RECRUITING AND RETAINING OUR TALENTS

Since recruiting and retaining talent are vital to our business growth, we
recognize the importance of a diversified workforce to our long-term
competitive advantage. All employees and job applicants are treated fairly
and equally regardless of their age, gender, marital status, race, color,
nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion or sexual orientation. As such,
we are also intolerant to any forms of discrimination in the workplace.

We are committed to protecting the rights, interests, welfare and
benefits of our employees. The Group’s employee handbook sets out
the terms of working hours, leaves and rest periods. The remuneration
package our employees receive encompasses basic salary, allowances
and bonuses etc. In addition, for our wastewater treatment business
in Jiangsu Province, China, employees are paid with pension, medical,
unemployment, maternity, work-related injury insurance and housing
provident fund. As for our biomass power generation business in Jambi,
Indonesia, employees are provided with pension, health insurance, work-
related injury insurance and termination compensation.

Other welfare and benefits include:

BERREAAS

MR BREMBE AT HRANEBEER
EREE  ZMARBIZTRRBYE R
MEAHFEINERNE - TwFh
MR~ SEIRAOR - Bk B B
RS RBEMA - RSB A -
P A B 8 MKBE SR B A EMFFHH
i Bt HABTERERELES
PrA AR A RIS -

BMBNREETIHEMN - FRFE
Me REBNETFMBRET TIER
A KRR S B R - 8 T3 B
FBEREAARTE  RHMESE - It
S BRI BDT & 105 /KR 12
X% BIREEEZRR  BER
@ KERR - EBRR - THRREM
EEAES - ERNRMESEAENE
MEBREER  HMAK/E TRMEERK
T REERR - THRBMNEICERE

fag -

HAb 58 M aEf e

4 \ \ ™
Overtime Allowance Medical Allowance Meal Allowance
INEEERL BRERE FERIERL
Discretionary Bonus Religious Holiday Allowance Mourning Allowance
BB TEAL REET HEEY ME€
\. J \ J \ y,
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DEVELOPING OUR TALENTS

Believing that our sustainable growth largely depends on the capability and
dedication of our workforce, we have been investing significant resources
in development and training to boost the potentials of our employees.

In terms of development, we offer a comprehensive career prospect to all
employees with regard to their work ability and attitude. As such, we have
developed a comprehensive performance appraisal system to assess
employees’ performance on a regular basis in terms of their working
results, abilities of organization and management as well as interpersonal
skills. Employees with outstanding performance in the appraisal will be
offered promotions and salary increment.

As for training, we are dedicated to offering a variety of training programs
tailored to our employees in different levels and stages in line with our
business development strategy, with an aim that they are equipped with
the professional skills and industrial knowhow in order to make concrete
contributions to the Group.

BRI HERERES

BERAT

BFIRR - AIRERRERAREE LE
RIRBTHBENMER - AEERM—H
EEHRRMFITERAKREEIR - LAR
THEER)E S -

rEERRTE - RMASMEEREREZE
MBRATR - EPBURNKEF/ TIERE
AMEE - Bt - RABLT —EZ2E
MEREZBR  UEMFEHEENT
TERKAE - MR B IR WA R AR R &
e - ERFETPRERIFNEBKER
EFTFIDNER

EEIITE - ROABORBRERMANE
BERREE - BTRERIMERNES
RHESEFRMFIENHFIGEE - BHE
EREFRWEEREMITENAF - /A
SEELERRR -

Percentage of employees trained
by gender

BUERESNZIREET L

51.9% — & Male
_19.6% e

() Female
egis

Average training hours completed
per employee by gender

BHRE D NSRS TRE

TR
& VMale
EElis
Hours () Female
30— INBE |, 7

Percentage of employees trained
by employee category
RESEMNESNZIEETDL:

@ Senior Management

— 45.59 BRER
149 45.5% BREEE

& Middle Management
HAREIEE

7.5%’“ { Technical staff
RiTAE

L 33.3%
General staff
—MAB

Average training hours completed
per employee by employee category
RESEHNESNEBUERTNK
B Z IR

—8
@ Senior Management
‘ 5 SRERE
Hours & Middle Management
INER ' 2 hAREERE

15— () Technical staff
BiffE T

General staff
—RET
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LABOR STANDARDS

In strict compliance with applicable local laws and regulations including the
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor” (Z£|H{# A E TR E)),
we adopt a policy of zero-tolerance towards recruiting forced labor and
child labor. To avoid child labor, we will only recruit candidates that have
reached a legal working age. Our employee handbook has set out terms
in working hour, overtime policy and dismissal. Employees who work
overtime will be compensated with allowance. As such, occurrence forced
labor can be prevented. Moreover, we will validate the identity documents
of our employees to ensure that they have reached legal working age to
avoid hiring child labor.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any non-
compliance in relation to forced labor or child labor.

SAFEGUARDING OUR TALENTS

We regard employees as the greatest asset of the group. Hence,
safeguarding the health and safety of the physical and mental wellbeing
of our employees is of paramount importance with no doubt. We are
committed to providing employees with a safe working environment and
eliminating potential health and safety risks in our workplace to achieve the
principle of “safety first, prevention emphasized” in both our wastewater
treatment facilities as well as biomass power generation business.

In terms of occupational safety, we are obliged by the “Work Safety Law
of the PRC” R E AR LML 2 A E %)) by covering all employees in
our wastewater treatment facilities with personal protective equipment and
first-aid kits to protect them from potential workplace injuries and fatalities.
We will also conduct regular fire drills and checkups for fire equipment,
machinery and facilities to reduce fire risks to the largest extent. In
addition, we will carry out emergency drills, evacuations and accident drills
regularly and provide safety training from time to time, hence enhancing
employees’ awareness in workplace safety as well as equipping them with
knowledge and skills in handling emergency cases. For both wastewater
treatment facilities and biomass power generation plant, specific working
units or safety officers are arranged to take up the role of monitoring the
implementation of safety measures and controlling related risks.
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For the sake of safeguarding our employees’ wellbeing at work, we have
complied with applicable requirements under the “Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases” (I AR
MEBEERLEE)) in PRC and the Government Regulation No.50 of
2012 regarding the implementation of Occupational Safety and Health
Management System in Jambi, Indonesia through providing annual
health checkups for employees in the wastewater treatment facilities, and
purchasing health insurance for employees in biomass power generation
unit respectively. Also, we are highly concerned about employees’ work-
life balance. As a result, we organize a multitude of leisure activities such
as gatherings and sport activities to gather our employees together, and at
the same time to build a more energetic and dynamic team. For example,
in our biomass power generation plant in Jambi, we had organized regular
badminton activities and held a futsal competition during the Reporting
Period.

With the aforementioned measures, we are pledged to building a safe
working environment for every employee in the hope that zero work
injury and casualties can be achieved in the near future. During the
Reporting Period, neither the Group nor its subsidiaries were aware of
any incompliance of occupational health and safety-related laws and
regulations.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to selecting
and working with suppliers and business partners who share our vision of
sustainable development. During the Reporting Period, we worked with
a total of 135 suppliers. We prefer to source local suppliers as a way to
reduce carbon emissions due to transportation of goods across countries.

No. of Suppliers by Geographical Location in 2018
2018 R BN EE s W HEFEE
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SLER &
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me 2R
Zhejiang Beijing
ipan i
98 ——
Hebei
e

BRI HERERES
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HMBEB R RE)MBREEE S8
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B UREVERERENEEBER
R - tbsN B EBIRENT
tEEAETE 7 - Wit - RPERT KE
HIESRKEES  NRSNBEES -
ZETRE—2 RARKEY—EEHE
NFHSDEEEK - flan - APIE B
R SR Y E B ERAB D EHRE
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Our ESG policy has set out the Code of Conduct which expects our
suppliers and business partners to uphold environmental, social and
ethical standards at all times, including but not limited to treating their
employees fairly, having zero tolerance to child labor and forced labor,
maintaining a safe and healthy workplace, upholding business ethics
and integrity. We will conduct assessment on a regular basis to ensure
suppliers’ operations do not violate our Code. We may suspend the
cooperation with suppliers who violate the Code until they have taken
remedial actions.

Apart from managing suppliers’ environmental and social risks, since we
understand that the way we cooperate with our suppliers and business
partners has a significant impact on the quality of our services, we also
strictly regulate the product and service quality of our suppliers. We have
developed a comprehensive assessment system to assess potential
suppliers, in terms of their qualifications, supply ability, quality, price,
reputation etc. Qualified suppliers will be recorded in our List of Qualified
Suppliers. We will also conduct regular assessments with our existing
suppliers to ensure their product and service quality can be maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has established a risk management and internal control
systems. Different functions and procedures of the systems are responsible
by the Board of directors, the audit committee, the management of the
Group and the internal control review team. The system monitors risks
of the Group including, but not limited to, operational, financial, reporting
and compliance risks. The system also aims at covering ESG related risk
factors in order to govern the identified ESG risks to the businesses and
provide a robust monitoring system in all aspects. We strive to constantly
enhance the system and expand the coverage of the risk factors in a
feasible way.

For more details about the Group’s policies and approaches in corporate
governance, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in the Annual Report.
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ETHICAL CULTURE

Believing that sound corporate governance is fundamental to effective and
proper management of the Group in the interests of its stakeholders, we
are committed to maintaining high standards of integrity and honesty in all
aspects of its business in adherence to all applicable laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the “Criminal Law of the PRC” ((#F £ A &A1
B FI5%)) and the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC” (P EE A R4
MERTIEEFSA)). As such, we have introduced an anti-corruption
policy to ensure a high level of integrity and compliance.

Our employees of all levels are required to comply with the Code of
Conduct, which sets out our requirements on standard of ethics and
business integrity in avoidance of the occurrence of unethical deeds such
as corruption, fraud, money-laundering, bribery and extortion. Besides,
we have a whistle-blowing policy in place, encouraging and guiding our
employees and related third-parties to raise concerns, in confidence,
about misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to
the Group. Anti-corruption trainings are also provided from time to time to
employees to enhance their ethical awareness.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any confirmed cases
or complaints against the Group or its employees regarding corruption,
bribery, fraud, extortion and money-laundering.

COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTIONS

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the communities in which
it operates and values community contributions. We actively involved
in supporting the community through charity work and caring for the
underprivileged.

For our biomass generation plant in Jambi, we are adhered to the guidelines
set out in Jambi City Regional Regulation No. 01 of 2016 concerning
Corporate Social Responsibility, which advocates the implementation of
social welfare program, green activities, health and education incentives.

During the Reporting Period, our biomass generation plant in Jambi,
Indonesia initiated donation programs during Muslim New Year and
Indonesia Independence Day, in the form of monetary donation and
donation of daily necessities such as rice, sugar, cooking oil etc. to
the surrounding communities to spread the warmth and care to the
neighborhood. In addition, we donated Rupiah 500,000 to Mosque Nurul
Jannah for the celebration of Prophet Nabi Muhammad 2018.
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CREATING GREEN FORTUNE

Taking up the role as a pioneering environmental solutions provider, we
understand that our daily operations in tackling pollutions and efforts in
protecting the environment are inseparable in relationship. Hence, we
spare no efforts in upholding our quality of products and services in the
highest standards, and taking up various environmental measures to
reduce emissions and save natural resources, in pursuance of achieving
environmental sustainability.

Our wastewater treatment and biomass generation businesses are
bound by a number of environment-related laws and regulations in
the jurisdictions where we operate, including but not limited to the
“Environmental Law of the PRC” ((FZ A REFIBIREREL)), the
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”
(R E AR KRB A &525587%)) in mainland China, Law of the
Republic of Indonesia No. 32 Year 2009 on Environmental Protection
and Management as well as Government Regulation No. 41/1999 on Air
Pollution Control, Law of the Republic of Indonesia Number 7 Year 2004
regarding Water Resources in Indonesia.

During the Reporting Period, environmental non-compliance incidents
at our Rugao Hengfa Facility were identified in which the facility was
accused of not fully complying with Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection ((E23%1E B IR IB (R EE IR 1K
1)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution ((FF2E AR FEFEIKFEFE7%)) and the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution ({2 A R HERMBIA K5 4F587%)), where administrative fines of
RMB1.54 million in aggregate was charged. After thorough consideration,
the Company decided not to appeal for the charge. As at the date of this
report, the fine was fully settled. Improvement in control procedures has
been implemented in the facility during the Reporting Period, including but
not limited to:

1. Procurement of sealing facilities to collect odour generated in the
pump houses;

2. Replacement of malfunctioned facilities such as speed reducer in
the adjustment pre-sedimentation tank and 4 pushers;

3. Repairing of the chemical dosing facility in the reaction
sedimentation tank;

4. Engagement of a third party inspection institution to conduct

regular and continuous inspections on chemicals such as cyanide
and sulphide in wastewater; and

5. Installing back-up online chemical oxygen demand (“COD”)
analysers for continuous and more accurate monitoring of the level
of COD in wastewater.
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT

Our wastewater treatment facilities in Jiangsu Province, China adopt the
“Build-Operate-Transfer” (BOT) model to provide one-stop wastewater
handling services which cover municipal sewage and industrial sewage for
the local residents and factories located in Haian County and Rugao City.

As a responsible wastewater treatment service provider, we are duty-
bound to ensure the quality and cleanliness of wastewater to be
discharged after treatment. For this sake, once municipal or industrial
sewage is transported to our facilities, it will undergo a series of
sophisticated treatment processes, ranging from filtration, sedimentation,
adjustment, acidification, anaerobic reaction to sterilization, through which
the concentration of pollutants, suspended solids (SS), COD, biological
oxygen demand (BOD), ammonia etc. in wastewater can be reduced
to a great extent to avoid pollution to the nearby water bodies and fulfil
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations including Discharge
Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant (3385
I BR IR RS 2 HE IZ#E ) and Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants ({7
TSRBEIRIE)).

In behalf of the above delicate and continuously improving wastewater
treatment technique, we are proud to announce that the quantity of COD
reduction in wastewater has increased 46% as compared to that in 2017,
indicating that the quantity of oxidizable pollutants in wastewater has been
greatly reduced, hence alleviating the problem of water pollution.

Wastewater treatment daily capacity:
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Below is a flowchart illustration of the Haian Hengfa Facility’s wastewater

treatment process:
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Flow chart of Haian Hengfa Facility’s wastewater treatment process
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Below is a flowchart illustration of the Rugao Hengfa Facility’s wastewater

treatment process (Class 1A):
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EMISSION MANAGEMENT

During our daily operations, our wastewater treatment facilities generate
certain emissions, mainly encompassing air pollutants and odor generated
from the treatment processes, wastewater from domestic use and
cleaning, noise from various treatment facilities, general refuse as well as
solid waste generated from treatment such as sand and sludge.

Air

In order to comply with the Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant ((3E)5/KERIEHUS RBERUEZLE)) and
Class 2 Standards in the Ambient Air Quality Standards ((REZERE =
ZE)), our wastewater treatment facilities have adopted the following
mitigation measures, striving for reducing air pollution in the surrounding
area:

- Sealing the adjustment tank to collect odor for further deodorization
treatment

— Setting barriers around the treatment plant

— Enhancing greening in the surroundings to absorb odor so as to
minimize the negative impact to the nearby residents

- Transport and handle solid waste generated from sedimentation
tank or grid in a timely manner to minimize its odor

- Washing and spraying sludge regularly

Case Study - Newly Installed Biological Deodorization Equipment

Odor pollution is a common issue in wastewater treatment plants, usually
caused by emissions such as sulphur derivatives and nitrogen derivatives.
We have installed biological deodorization equipment in our Rugao
Hengfa Facility and put it into operation during the Reporting Period. The
biological deodorization technology has numerous advantages, including
high treatment efficiency, no secondary pollution, low cost, convenient
management and maintenance. Biological filter method, biological trickling
filter method and soil filter method are the three main types of biological
deodorization technology.

We apply the biological filter method for our biological deodorization
equipment. Odor substances are degraded into CO,, H,O or small
molecule organic compounds which are harmless and odorless. With the
newly installed biological deodorization equipment, we have successfully
safeguarded the safety and health of our staff as well as adhered to the
national 13th Five-Year environmental policy for improving environment
quality.
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Wastewater

Our wastewater treatment facilities operate in stringent compliance
with the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard ((J57K4R& HEHUE
ZE)) and Class 1-A or Class 1-B of Discharge Standard of Pollutants for
Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants ({33855 7K B2 2 855 22 9 Bk Z
#E)) (GB18918-2002). Both our Rugao Hengfa and Haian Hengfa Facilities
have obtained the Permits for Pollutants Discharge in Jiangsu Province
(CIERAHHUS YA )) and adopt the Cyclic Activated Sludge
Technology (CAST) approach and Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor (MBBR)
treatment approach respectively to lower the concentration of pollutants
in wastewater. To ensure the treated wastewater meets the discharge
standards, we have formulated a comprehensive service commitment
policy which sets out measures and requirements for quality assurance
and inspection of wastewater on a regular basis.

Noise

Since wastewater treatment process involves the use of pumps, blowers,
sludge scrapers and dehydrators, the noise emitted from these machinery
or facilities is also one of our concerns. To abide by applicable laws
and regulations including but not limited to the Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary (( T 21> 3 M IR R IR HE UE
#E)) (GB12348-2008), we have established various measures to lower the
noise to an acceptable level, such as taking vibration reduction measures
in dehydrators, sealing the blower room and greening the surrounding
area to absorb sound, therefore minimizing the negative impact posed to
the residents nearby.

Waste

Waste generated from our wastewater treatment facilities mainly
constitutes general refuse, grid residue and sediment. Since we fully
understand that the way we handle waste, either hazardous or non-
hazardous, may pose a significant impact on the environment, we have
formulated comprehensive waste management system to regulate our
employees to handle waste properly by transferring the waste to the
environmental department or registered treatment facilities for further
treatment or handling.

In terms of the handling of sludge produced from wastewater treatment
processes, to ensure safe disposal in accordance with the Standard
for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage (/& EEWET1F5
FyHIZA)) (GB18597-2001) and avoid secondary pollution, we will
first dehydrate the sludge through a drying machine before sending it to
certified third-party for further treatment or landfilling, such that the size
and volume of the sludge can be greatly reduced, hence lowering the
negative impact on the environment.
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RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Based on our business nature, our wastewater treatment facilities mainly
consume purchased electricity, water for domestic use, fuel for mobile
vehicles and non-road machinery and stationary fuel for kitchen to
support daily operations. We did not encounter any problem in terms of
water sourcing as we mainly source water from regional water supply
companies. To conserve natural resources, we have conducted the
following measures within the facilities:

- Lowering the wind level of the blower depending on the quality of
wastewater and dissolved oxygen to save energy

— Prohibiting idling of motor vehicle engines

- Reusing treated wastewater to wash filter belt and flocculant

— Prioritizing the use of water-efficient production method and
equipment

BIOMASS POWER GENERATION AND PALM KERNEL OIL

In Jambi City of Indonesia, the Group owns a biomass power generation
plant consisting of a palm kernel oil mill which sells palm kernel oil and
combusts biomass wastes to generate electricity for self-usage and for
sale to the state-owned electricity company Perusahaan Listrik Negara
(PLN) via PLN’s power supply network, devoting ourselves into bringing
positive impact to the environment by replacing non-renewable energy
with renewable green energy.

30w rmex
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Below is a flowchart illustration of the Jambi Facility’s biomass power
generation process:

Steam line Turbine
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Generator

Biomass fuel supply

LR RE

Water Supply *

Case Study — Biomass power generation plant in Jambi came into
full operations to leverage more electricity supply to the household
end-users from 2018

During the Reporting Period, the two generating units of our biomass
power generation plant in Jambi were put into full operations. With
increasing electricity generated, the Group has managed to supply more
environmentally-friendly energy to local users, thereby making significant
contributions to the national bioenergy development.

EMISSION MANAGEMENT

Emissions of our biomass power generation plant mainly arise from the
air emissions and GHG emissions from the combustion process and the
use of vehicles and generator, wastewater from the production process,
hazardous and non-hazardous waste including ash from the boiler, used
battery, used oil and oil filter etc. To lower our emission to the greatest
extent, we have set up comprehensive policies and measures to properly
manage and reduce our primary emissions to air, wastewater, noise and
waste.

Condenser
BRE

Transmission line

TR

Transformer

Wi

RPAE - AHENERERE=-F
—NE2EARAEF AFABESZESD
FREKHAF

BEHAR > ROACRSENEYEHE
MM EZHERED 2EIRAEE B
BIRHEZE N AEEFARKHA
FRHERFRER  SEREMERER
{EHERER

BER

=g

HPNEYEERERNERDEZERS
MIEBRENMERIENNEETHMES

H RE

B5
1= .

Eapic)
K
EL ==

EREHNY EEBREEL
BEEREZEYBIEMBENIX
o B NMRRE o RRIRE

RAKBEDR - RPIERT L 2 EER MR i
NZEEERBDHMEENZE R

B

JEIK

IR = N EEY) o

BRBRERERAQA
ZE-NFFHR



o

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

Air

Exhaust gas and dust are major air emissions being generated during
our production process. To ensure the air emissions level fulfils the
requirements of applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Government Regulation No. 41/1999 on Air Pollution Control with
the prescribed limits, we have engaged a third-party inspection institution
to carry out an inspection on the concentration of substances in air such
as sulfur dioxide, carbon monoxide, ammonia etc. As for odor generated
from the storage of wet fuel, we have sealed the fuel stock feed to
physically prevent the spread of odor.

Wastewater

Wastewater will be generated during the production process. To avoid
wastewater being discharged improperly and resulting in water pollution,
we stringently comply with the Government Regulation No. 82/2001
on management of water quality to handle the wastewater from the
production process in our wastewater treatment plants, as well as the
municipal sewage in the septic tank before discharge. We will carry out
regular inspection on the quality of wastewater, in which substances such
as suspended solids, pH, metals, phosphate etc. are tested.

Noise

For the noise generated from the facilities within the production process,
we have adopted the following measures in favor of complying with
the requirements of the Decree of the State Minister for Environment of
the Republic of Indonesia concerning Noise Level Standards (KEP48/
MENLH/11/1996) and minimizing the negative impact to the surrounding
residents:

- Growing a bamboo plant along the entrance of the palm kernel ail
mill for noise absorption

- Installing rubber dampers on windows and doors for shock
absorption

— Prioritizing the purchase of low noise equipment and silencer
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Waste

The crushing of palm kernel and combustion of palm kernel expeller will
generate certain hazardous waste such as used battery, used oil, jerry
cans and oil filter from excavator, wheel loader, generator and drum,
as well as non-hazardous waste including ash and general refuse. For
hazardous waste, we have already obtained the Temporary Hazardous
Waste and Toxic Material Storage License under the requirements of the
Government Regulation of the Republic of Indonesia (No. 18 of 1999) on
Waste Management of Hazardous Waste and Toxic Materials. As for the
non-hazardous waste, in order to minimize the amount of waste disposed,
we will reuse the ash for backfilling the uneven land of our power plant.

RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Our biomass power generation plants consume primarily electricity,
water, and fuel for both vehicles and the power generators. To reduce the
reliance on nonrenewable fuel and optimize the use of energy, more than
96% of our electricity consumption was sourced from our biomass power
generation plants. Despite that no difficulty was encountered for water
sourcing, we are striving our best to further reduce our water consumption
in all possible ways. For instance, a cooling tower was installed in our
power generator which allows water used for cooling down the turbines in
the power generation units to be recycled for other use, and hence results
in an overall reduction in water consumption.

GREEN OPERATIONS

Apart from stringent management on the emissions and resource
consumption within our operations, we also advocate our employees to
take environmentally friendly initiatives during daily operations to promote
and achieve a green lifestyle. Examples of the initiatives within our offices
or plants include:

— Set air conditioners at designated temperature

- Switch off all air-conditioning, lights and electrical appliances when
idled

— Using recycled paper for printing and copying

- Encouraging electronic communication to reduce the dependence
on paper

— Promoting green procurement by preferring the purchase of
energy-efficient electrical appliances and water-efficient facilities,
and advocating the suppliers to reduce the use of packaging
materials
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KEY ENVIRONMENTAL FIGURES

FRERNE

Emissions
B

Environmental Performance Unit 2018 2017
RIERR B ZE-N\F | ZB—tF
Air Emissions
AR
Nitrous Oxides (NOx) kg T2 849.99 938.25
A2/ (NO)
Sulfur Oxides (SOx) kg T 15.95 17.472
e (SO,
Particulate Matters (PM) kg T 29.69 35.97
SR TR (PM)
GHG Emissipns
= RS HER
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2)3 tonnes of COe 7,258.63 7,711.21
REREHNESE (SBE—REE ) NE_SriEE
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) tonnes of CO.e 361.07 453.06*
B (EE ) A _SriEE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) tonnes of CO.e 6,903.29 6,870.62
ME M (BE—) NS LRES
GHG Removal (Scope 1) tonnes of COe 5.73 0.48
RERBRR (SBE—) NS LR EE
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2) tonnes of CO.e/m? 0.04 0.05
per floor area ‘ N TR (= b7
BEEEENREREENEE
(SE—K#HE—)
Total GHG Emissions (Biogenic)® tonnes of COe 21,772.74 N/A
BERBEEE (D) AW EACHEE T
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste
BERBEEEY
Total hazardous waste produced tonnes 27.95 8.95
EEMBEREYEE A
Total hazardous waste per floor area kg/m? 0.17 0.05
SEEREENEEERNEE T FIK
Total non-hazardous waste produced tonnes 28,112.86 23,633.49°¢
EFrNEEERERYES N
Total waste disposed tonnes 28,112.86 23,633.49
BRIBHERERMEE NI
Other general refuse’ tonnes 96.50 N/A
Hith—pREEM NI T iE A
Sludge tonnes 28,016.36 23,633.49
JaE NI
Total non-hazardous waste produced per floor area kg/m? 169.68 165.34°
BEHEBNELNBEIEZEYEE Fr,/ Tk
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Environmental Performance Unit 2018 2017
RIEBRR B —2-N\F —E—+tF
Energy
EEY
Total energy consumption MWh 20,516.11 11,304.72
BEIRHREE FEF FU b
Purchased electricity MWh 9,732.75 9,663.04
BAEN FEF F s
Biomass (for internal used)® MWh 9,490.36 N/A
EE (NEREA)° FETFFLF NiEMA
Diesel oil MWh 1,244.92 1,5637.30
gesh FEF F b
Liquefied Petroleum Gas MWh 8.95 96.75
BAEE R FEF FLbF
Liquefied Natural Gas MWh 1.66 7.63
BALRAR FEF FLF
Unleaded Petrol™ MWh 37.47 N/A
)M 10 F1EF R b i A
Total energy consumption per floor area kWh/m? 123.83 69.20
BEHEENERERESE TR, FHK
Water
i
Total water consumption m? 319,862.20 329,855.30
BRKE SR
Total water consumption per floor area m?3/m? 1.93 2.02
BREEEBENERKE AR FRHK

The emission amount of sulfur oxides in 2017 has been restated since the
methodology for calculating SOx and GHG emissions has been technically

updated during the Reporting Period.

According to the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
(revised edition) issued by World Business Council For Sustainable Development
and World Resources Institute, scope 1 direct emissions cover GHG emissions
directly produced by businesses owned or controlled by the Group, while scope
2 indirect emissions cover GHG emissions of “indirect energy” resulted from
electricity (purchased or acquired), thermal energy, refrigeration and steam

internally consumed by the Group.

The amount of direct GHG emissions in 2017 has been restated since the
methodology for calculating SOx and GHG emissions has been technically

updated during the Reporting Period.

Amount of GHG emissions (biogenic) has been added this year due to

improvement in data collection method. during the Reporting Period.
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6 The amount of total non-hazardous waste produced and total non-hazardous
waste produced per floor area in 2017 have been restated due to update in
data collection method.

7 Amount of other general refuse has been added this year due to improvement in
data collection method during the Reporting Period.

8 Due to business nature, the Group is not involved in the use of packaging
material for finished products.

9 Amount of energy consumption from biomass has been added this year due to
improvement in data collection method.

10 Consumption of unleaded petrol has been added this year due to technical
update in data collection method.

PRIVACY PROTECTION

We endeavor to protect the privacy of data within the Group, including
but not limited to customers’ information, business information, financial
information, confidential information etc., in order to safeguard the rights
of the Group and our customers. To prevent information leakage, without
prior consent or permission, employees are not allowed to disclose any
confidential information to the third parties. Based on our business nature,
intellectual property right is not a material issue.

ADVERTISING AND LABELLING

The Group conducts promotion for our products and services in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the “Advertising Law of the PRC” (FEARLMBEESE)) and
ensure the accuracy and reliability of the content of our advertising and
promotional materials in order to protect consumer rights. Due to our
business nature, product labelling is not applicable to the Group.
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure

EE/ REAR

ITRHEE  BE - —REERBEENER

A. Environmental

ARIR

Aspect A1: Emissions

EmE A1 : BEE

General Disclosure Creating Green Fortune 32-44
—MRIKER BlEREME

Information on:

FHABERIMOREREBHN - M/KREHOEES - AERK
BEEZVHELSHN

(a) the policies; and

(@) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

(b) BTHEBEEEGEATE ZHBEN MRFINE

A o
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective | Creating Green Fortune 42
FSRERUER emissions data. Bl EiE
Al.1 HERU R A AR B -
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and | Creating Green Fortune 42
SRERUEE where appropriate, intensity. AlEs el E
A1.2 RERBEHNEREE (W#ER)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and Creating Green Fortune 42
FSERUER where appropriate, intensity. Bl EME
A1.3 EXREREMEEN

ZE (@A) °
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Creating Green Fortune 42
AR EDIEZR and where appropriate intensity. AlEZ el E
Al.4 FRELBEEZRYR

HE (fi@EA) -

BRERERBRDLA 6
—T-)\FFR
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs

ITREE - BH - —REBERBRENER

Chapter/Disclosure
BEHHEAR

A. Environmental

A BIR
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 - Bk
KPIA1.5 Description of measures to mitigate Creating Green Fortune 32-44
RSB IER emissions and results achieved. Bl EME
A15 R E B PSR -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and Creating Green Fortune 32-44
FRERUER non-hazardous wastes are handled, Bl EiE
A1.6 reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HERERENEZTEEZYNT
= ORUBEE SRR LAERER
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERFER
General Disclosure Creating Green Fortune 32-44
—MRHER SR B E
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
ERERER(BIEER « KREMEME) BBUR -
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
i BRAAREE  #fF - Eh BFLEFRE
%,
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Creating Green Fortune 43
BRENIEER consumption by type in total and BliEZ el E
A2.1 intensity.
RERSSMEE R SEEER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and Creating Green Fortune 43
FARERUER intensity. Bl EiE
A2.2 BAKERRE -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Creating Green Fortune 32-44
B ERUER initiatives and results achieved. Bl eiE
A2.3 iR AR ARG b S PSR ©
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs

ITREE  BH - —REERBEENER

Chapter/Disclosure

BE/ REAR

A. Environmental
ABE
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: EREA
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any Creating Green Fortune 32-44
RSB DUEIR issue in sourcing water that is fit for AlEZETE
A2.4 purpose, water efficiency initiatives and

results achieved.

it = 5k 3@ KR £ R A (A A

78 U RIRT ARG & R PAE

AR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for The Group is not involved in the use of | N/A
FRERUER finished products, and if applicable, packaging material of products. NiE A
A2.5 with reference to per unit produced. REEWTFREmBEMEHE

B mrAREMENEE T4 A e

EBAEE (WER) -
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : RIEERKXARER
General Disclosure Creating Green Fortune 32-44
—MRBEE & B E
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
MEMEEEEHRBEIRAAEREKNERNTZENK
5% o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts Creating Green Fortune 32-44
RERUEE of activities on the environment and Bl EiE
A3.1 natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.

IR EREBEIRRERRABIRE

BEAXERCRDEEBEEZEN
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure

TEHR  EH —REERBREXER EEBHEAR
B. Social
B. &

Employment and Labour Practices
EBRETEH

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : &R

General Disclosure Caring for Our people 25-31
— MR AEET

Information on:

BRI ERE  BEREN  TERE - REY - 7%
#e - ot - RIBRAREMAS KRR

(a) the policies; and

(@) B : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

b) BTHREELEEGEAZENHEERNMRPINE

o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment | Employee Overview 25
AR ERUER type, age group and geographical EEME
B1.1 region.

BRI - BIEEE - SR K

BESHEERE -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age | Not disclosed during the Reporting N/A
FRERUER group and geographical region. Period TEMA
B1.2 BRI FheAl R MR E 5 e R RS BRI R ER

BImARLLE -

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report



R I
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI - HE8RERBRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure

FTEHE  EFH- - —REERBREXIESE B8 HEAR
B. Social

B. #&

Employment and Labour Practices

BB RS T 4

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : REEZE

General Disclosure Safeguarding Our Talents 28-29

—RRINEE REAA

Information on:
BARHZ2TERBEMRBEREESREBELEEN

(a) the policies; and

(@) BUE : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer. relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

b) BFHHBELEREAFENHBERNROINE

* o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Not disclosed during the reporting N/A
FSRERUER fatalities. period TEMA
B2.1 ETEREME T ABRLLE - RpEHRE T HE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Not disclosed during the reporting N/A
RS AEHEIR ETGEATIERS - period T iE A
B2.2 IR HARE R
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and | Safeguarding Our Talents 28-29
AR EIER safety measures adopted, how they are | RFEA A
B2.3 implemented and monitored.

PR BERRERLZ 2E

B - ARAERAETT R BRI »

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure

TEER  BEH —REBERBRERERE BEHHEAR
B. Social

B. &

Employment and Labour Practices

EBRETEH

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EHE B3 : #EREI

General Disclosure Developing Our Talents 27
— MR ER BERAT

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRARTHEEEIT TR E M M BE MR R - faat

HREE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Developing Our Talents 27
FRERUER by gender and employee category. BRAT
B3.1 MR kEESEMNEISHXIIES
Btk e
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Developing Our Talents 27
RENIEE per employee by gender and employee | &AL
B3.2 category.
mrMuRIREEERE D §HESR
TERRCX IR T RFEL

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & TXH|

General Disclosure Labor Standards 28
—MEHEE B4R

Information on:

B IEE TSR HSTH -

(a) the policies; and

(@) B : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

(b) BFEMBRELEEBEEAZENERERIRIINE
o
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs

ITREE  BH - —REERBEENER

Chapter/Disclosure

B. Social
B. #g

BE/ REAR

Employment and Labour Practices

1EIER 2T %

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B B4 : 5 T#AR|

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labor Standards 28
R A RUER employment practices to avoid child EEAER
B4.1 and forced labour.

st BB EIA R R E

TREHBT -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Not disclosed during the Reporting N/A
FAREBIER such practices when discovered. Period NE A
B4.2 B IRER B AR ERERE RS BRI TR ER

SUPTERER B A0 8%
Operating Practices
ZEIED
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEB5 : ftEgEER
General Disclosure Supply Chain Management 29-30
— MR IR EE fHresEE s
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERHERNRE AT SRR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management 29-30
BB WHEIR region. HHrEsEE R
B5.1 i@ & D RS o
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Not disclosed during the Reporting N/A
RERUEE to engaging suppliers, number of Period i A
B5.2 suppliers where the practices are PRRE AR E TR E

being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.

B AR EEEOED - mHE

MITERABOINHEREE - AR

BRAERIHMITREER X -

BRERZERBRAA

B N\FER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs

TEHR  EH —REERBREXER
B. Social
B. &

Chapter/Disclosure
BEHHEAR

Operating Practices
B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Creating Green Fortune 32-44
— MR ER g e E
Information on:
BHMRAEERNRBHORERELZ S - BE - SEEL
BEEARMEBITED
(a) the policies; and
(@) B : &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
(o) BFEMBELEEBEEATENERERIRIINE
* o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or The Group is not involved in N/A
FRENIEE shipped subject to recalls for safety and | manufacturing. NEMA
B6.1 health reasons. AREBWEBHEAE o
EENEEXERBEHRTALLH
ERIEmmAR KN A AL -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related | Not disclosed during the Reporting N/A
FRERUER complaints received and how they are | Period TiEMA
B6.2 dealt with. RS B TR ER
BB E m MRS H IR BLE A
N e 770% -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Not applicable to the Group’s business. | N/A
AR ERUEE observing and protecting intellectual TERRAEE T - TiE A
B6.3 property rights.
i it B A o AR PR AR E R B A
Bl
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance The Group is not involved in N/A
FRENIEE process and recall procedures. manufacturing. NEMA
B6.4 S ST B2 REMBIBGET REBWMBEAE -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data Privacy Protection 44
BRENIEE protection and privacy policies, how FLERIRFE
B6.5 they are implemented and monitored.
fUE B & B RHRIE RALB B -
AR ABRARIT R BE R 70 -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure

FTEHE  EFH- - —REERBREXIESE B8 HEAR
B. Social

B. #&

Operating Practices

EREED

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Ethical Culture 31

—RRINEE BREXIE

Information on:

B I-BRRE - B3R - HGFRERER

(a) the policies; and

(@) BUE : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

b) BTHHBELEREAFENHBERNROINE

o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Ethical Culture 31
RSB UEIR regarding corrupt practices brought BEEXE
B7.1 against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERERAEHEEEENHES
R I B A E‘JE/%ZJ%"\%E#E’\J%I
EPSEIENES
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and | Ethical Culture 31
RARAEDUIER whistle-blowing procedures, how they | B1&3 1k
B7.2 are implemented and monitored.
b & e R B |ER - AR
BT MERITE

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosure and KPIs Chapter/Disclosure

TEHR  EH —REERBREXER EEBHEAR
B. Social
B. &

Community

]

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS8 : HERE

General Disclosure Community Contributions 31
— M R

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

BN RSER THEEEEESEMTHERTEM
BREXBEEBHEE BT RNEABUR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Not disclosed during the Reporting N/A
RRENIEE FXEEEE - Period NE A
B8.1 PR B R ER

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus Not disclosed during the Reporting N/A
AR ERUEE area. Period A
B8.2 EEISHBBAER - RS B E TR R
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 71, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive Director of the Company
on 5 September 2014. He has been the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) since 5
September 2014. Mr. Chau also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company and is mainly responsible for business development and
formulation of strategies of the Group. He joined the Group in December
2002 as a director of Everbest Water Treatment Development Company
Limited (“Everbest”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Chau is a director of and owns 90% of the issued shares in Wealthy
Sea Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Sea”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and literature
from Xiamen University (EPIKZ) in the PRC in August 1968. He is
currently a member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (FEIARBUAHEE:%), a
deputy officer of the Social and Legal Affairs Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (ZEE @ EAHZE
) and the vice chairman and the secretary-general of the 10th board
of directors of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (/518
21 B ®). Mr. Chau was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star and the
Silver Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong government in 2010 and 2016,
respectively.
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Mr. Chau has held directorships in various companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chau was
the chairman and an executive director of China Ocean Industry Group
Limited (stock code: 651) from September 2007 and has ceased to be
the chairman and has been re-designated as a non-executive director
and appointed as the honorary chairman since June 2015. Mr. Chau
has also been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Redco Properties Group Limited (stock code: 1622), Come Sure Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 794), Good Resources Holdings Limited
(stock code: 109) and Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited (stock code:
1682) since January 2014, February 2009, July 2007 and September
2017, respectively. Mr. Chau had also been an executive director of
Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 578) from March 2000
to November 2006, an independent non-executive director of Hao Wen
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019) from June 2003 to August 2009, GR
Properties Limited (stock code: 108) from December 2008 to September
2010 and Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089)
from December 2010 to May 2016. Mr. Chau is the father of Mr. Chau
Chi Yan Benny, a non-executive Director of the Company (who will be
re-designated as an executive Director of the Company with effect from 1
April 2019).

Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 36, was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 25 February 2014 and was re-designated as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has
been a member of the Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.
Mr. Chan also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company
and is mainly responsible for all major affairs of the Group, including
project construction and operation, business development, marketing and
formulation of strategies. Mr. Chan joined the Group in March 2007 as a
director of Everbest. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was a database
administrator at Panda Restaurant Group, Inc. in Los Angeles, the United
States of America (“US”), from February 2005 to December 20086.
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Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science from the lowa State
University of Science and Technology in the US in December 2004. He is
a member of the 12th Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (F Bl AR B A B e ZBEEE L 8
), a standing committee member of the 10th board of directors of the
Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (& /& & 12 - B B 2), the
chief supervisor of the 10th Hong Kong Minxi Association Ltd. (&5 &
%), the vice-president of the 11th Supervision Committee of Lung Yen
Residents Association of Hong Kong Limited (& #E&R48€), and the
president of the 2nd Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Youth
Committee (B BB FE A4 E). Mr. Chan is the elder brother of Mr. Chan
Pak Lam Brian, a non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of and holds a 20% shareholding interest in
Everbest Environmental Investment Limited (“Everbest Environmental”),
a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Chan also owns 25% of the
issued shares in Kingdrive Limited (“Kingdrive”). Kingdrive owned all the
issued shares in Carlton Asia Limited which owns approximately 1.42% of
the issued shares of the Company.

Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Radius Suhendra, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 October 2016. Mr. Suhendra is mainly responsible for
all major affairs of an Indonesia-incorporated subsidiary of the Company,
which was acquired by the Group in late 2016. He has been overseeing
the construction and operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary
biomass power plants in that subsidiary.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Ohio
State University, the US in 1996. He has 15 years of experience in
managing businesses in heavy industries in Asia, including 7 years in
managing ferrous trading business of a ferrous alloy trading firm between
1998 and 2005 in Singapore. From 2006 to 2010, Mr. Suhendra was the
president director of PT. Indoferro which operates blast furnace producing
nickel pig iron in Indonesia.

EEREREEEZBABE

BREENR _ZTETNF+_ABEHRE
787 ZE I 37 A 2 (lowa State University of
Science and Technology) 78 2% 1 £ E
T2 - HATPBRARBGHEEES
TERREELEEELE BAREML
ENeErEESYEBeE BAEHM
AeFEtEEER BtkaRfs
FT—EEEBEZECRISRAEALERS
EANBEEFLEESF_EERE - RE
ERARREIERITESHRBME LN
o

FR 5T £ B AN A B ¥E IR IR F Everbest
Environmental Investment Limited
([Everbest Environmental|) &) — &
£ WHRHBH20% K RE o BRELETH
£ Kingdrive Limited ([ Kingdrive |) 25%
B B # 17 % 15 ° Kingdrive # A& Carlton
Asia Limited 2 82 2 17R% {9 + i Carlton
Asia Limited % B AN 2 51 491.42% 8 2 %
TR ©

BEALLE

BRERANSGCAE 4558  RZZE—RETA
T+ —BEZEAEERFIRITES - &
EETEEEAEER_ZE—RNFEFR
W BE By AR B ENJE RE MR AR SZ B /B 2 )
MEFEEAREE K EEEEZWE
NAEIMGRECRERREEHEEMES
TR i K R o

BROEAER — NN FES EREZEM
URBIHEBRELEM - FHBME
THEKEEFEOERISTFNLER &
BER—NANEE-_SERFE7EETM
¥—HEAERHIAAAEEREGSE
BXGEK B-_ZTEEFE_T—FT
FHARE - #R %54 A PT. Indoferro B 425 &
%= PT. Indoferro ¥ AEHEFERAE

BRRRERERAT
—B\EER



o

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EEREREEEZBABE

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 30, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been a member
of the remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) since 5 September 2014. He is also a director of three
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in
communication from Purdue University in the US in May 2011. Since
March 2013, Mr. Chan has been working as marketing and sales
director at PT. Indoferro. He has been involved in the business of the
Group since September 2012 when he was appointed as a director of
Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd. (“Exuberant”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, which was intended by the then shareholders of Everbest
Environmental to be used as the holding company for the purpose of the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. While serving
as a director of Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring business
opportunities in the environmental-related industry within the larger Asia
region and was also responsible for the setting up and maintenance of
the Company’s information technology system. Mr. Chan continued to be
involved in the Group’s business after he had been appointed as a Director
on 18 March 2014. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Mr. Chan Kwan, an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 37, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been a member
of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) since 5
September 2014 and also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Chau will be re-designated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director of the Company upon his appointment as the
deputy general manager of the Group and will step down as a member of
the Audit Committee, all with effect from 1 April 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international trade
department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited
from February 2011 to August 2013 and a business adviser at Vodafone
Ltd. in the United Kingdom (the “UK”) from November 2005 to September
2008.

Mr. Chau was a consultant of Convoy Financial Services Limited from
August 2012 to June 2017. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts from
Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK in September 2005. He is
also registered as a technical representative of the Professional Insurance
Brokers Association in Hong Kong. Mr. Chau is (i) the son of Mr. Chau On
Ta Yuen, an executive Director of the Company and the Chairman and (i)
a director and a shareholder of Wealthy Sea, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.
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Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. She has
been the chairlady of the Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5
September 2014.

Ms. Ng has been a director of Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited (previously
known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited) since April 2012, prior to which
she was the sole proprietor of Linda C.Y. Ng & Co., an accounting firm,
from January 2008 to April 2013. Ms. Ng has also been a director of
Futurelink Limited since February 2004. She has been a part-time lecturer
in the School of Continuing and Professional Education of City University
of Hong Kong since October 2015 and a part-time lecturer at HKCA
Learning Media Limited since August 2010, and was a part-time lecturer
at Accountancy Training Company (International) Limited from September
2007 to April 2010. She has been the author of “Financial Reporting
in Hong Kong: SME Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015
and “Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards in Hong Kong”
published by CCH Hong Kong Limited since September 2013. She was
a director of Learning Is Fun Association Limited from June 2007 to June
2012. Ms. Ng was a staff accountant at Ernst & Young from September
2000 to September 2001, and was promoted to senior accountant in
October 2001 until she left that firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009 and a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 1997. She has been a certified professional
forensic accountant of The Institute of Certified Forensic Accountants
since September 2011, a certified tax adviser and an associate of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since September 2010, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK since October
2005 and a practising member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2005.
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Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5 September
2014,

Mr. Ng was a business consultant of China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited, a company principally engaged in
investment, from January 2014 to April 2015. He worked at Chiyu Banking
Corporation Ltd. from July 1969 to December 2012 and was a chief
executive from April 1992 to July 2012. Mr. Ng was an honorary president
of the 37th Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University from April 1999 to March 2003 and
a member of the 10th Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (FEARBUAHEGZEBELELE
). Mr. Ng completed an extension course in banking at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in September 1982.

Mr. Ng has also been an independent non-executive director of each
of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181) since June 2014, Guoan
International Limited (stock code: 143) and HKBridge Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2323) since March 2016 and Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (stock code: 755) since May 2017. Mr. Ng was a non-
executive director of Roma Group Limited (stock code: 8072) from August
2017 to December 2017. The issued shares of all the above companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng has also been the chairman of the supervisory board of Well Link
Bank in Macau since 31 March 2018.
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Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict

Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has
been a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.

Mr. Sze is currently the principal of Dacheng Law Offices. He obtained
a degree of juris doctor from the Southwestern University in the US in
December 1999. Mr. Sze also obtained a master’s degree in business
administration and a bachelor’s degree in science from the Loyola
Marymount University in the US in December 1993 and May 1992,
respectively.

Mr. Sze is qualified as a lawyer in the US, Hong Kong as well as the PRC.
In June 2000, he was admitted to the practice of law in the State of
California and in the US District Court of the Central District of California,
and is currently a member of the State Bar of California. In September
2001, he was admitted to practise in the US Court of Appeals for the
Ninth Circuit. In March 2004, he was admitted as a Solicitor to the
High Court of Hong Kong. In February 2008, he passed the National
Judicial Examination of the PRC and was granted qualification as a legal
professional by the Ministry of Justice in the PRC. In April 2014, he was
admitted to the Bar of the Supreme Court of the US.

Mr. Sze is a member of the All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese (FE# 2B R HEFH S F) (the “ACFROC”), a member of the
legal advisory committee of the ACFROC (Bl & A EBEMEE <), an
overseas legal adviser of the legal advisory committee of the ACFROC
in Jiangsu Province (L # & F Bl B B 7= F B M £ 8 €), an overseas
legal adviser of the ACFROC in Zhejiang Province (7T & # B & B#), a
member of the 11th Fujian Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUAH A SHBIEELZEE), a legal
adviser of the Sy Clan Association of HK Limited (B/&iEX T &) as well
as a voluntary legal adviser of each of the Hong Kong CPPCC of Fukien
Province Members Association (fB24& BRI ZE 8B iE ), the Hong
Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (/& E2L B ) and the 16th
board of The Federation of Jin Jiang Hong Kong Associations (&8 & /T
HtEEE).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Fan Chi Chiu

Mr. Fan Chi Chiu, aged 33, joined our Group in April 2015 and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company on 1 June 2015.
He is mainly responsible for financial management and reporting, investor
relations, fund raising and capital management of our Group. He assists
the chief executive officer of the Company in our strategic planning and
business development, as well as the Group’s compliance with applicable
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Since 24 July 2017, he
has been serving as an executive director of Grace Wine Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8146), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan was a finance director of Vantasia
Holdings (H.K.) Limited from April 2014 to March 2015. He was an analyst
in Barclays Investment Bank from July 2011 to March 2014 and a senior
associate of Pricewaterhouse Coopers from October 2007 to June 2011.

Mr. Fan obtained a bachelor’s degree in professional accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in July 2007. Mr. Fan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Zili

Mr. Wang Zili, aged 56, was appointed as the deputy general manager of
the wastewater treatment facility operated by Haian Hengfa, a subsidiary
of the Company (the “Haian Hengfa Facility”) on 18 March 2014. Mr.
Wang joined the Group in February 2005 and is mainly responsible for
overseeing operational matters related to the Haian Hengfa Facility. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was vice chairman and general manager of
Beijing Solar Power Nutritious Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (1t Rim
Ees TR E AR AR, a deputy general manager of National Youth
Services Centre (Bl S D FALE R L) and a researcher of Zhuzhou
Electric Locomotive Research Institute (3238 251 M E & E 47867 ), and
had worked at Shenzhen Recruitment Services Company (& 3l 1 A A
iR % 2 &)). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Dalian Railway Institute (A & i 28 £ Ft) (now known as Dalian Jiaotong
University (R332 A2)) in the PRC in July 1983.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwok Siu Man

Mr. Kwok Siu Man has been appointed as the company secretary of
the Company since 18 March 2014. Mr. Kwok is an executive director
and the head, corporate secretarial of Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited and a director of Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited,
our Hong Kong branch share registrar. He is presently a fellow member
of each of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
England (“ICSA”), The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(“HKICS”), The Association of Hong Kong Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, the Institute of Financial Accountants in England and
the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a Chartered Governance
Professional of both the ICSA and the HKICS and a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He also possesses professional
qualifications in arbitration, tax, securities and investment, financial
planning and human resource management. He was the chief examiner of
the “Corporate Secretaryship/Hong Kong Company Secretarial Practice”
module of the international qualifying examinations of the HKICS and
its longest-serving council member/director. In addition, Mr. Kwok has
completed the Common Professional Examination in England and Wales,
obtained a post-graduate diploma in laws and earned a bachelor’s
degree of arts and a professional diploma in company secretaryship and
administration.

Mr. Kwok has an aggregate of over 25 years of extensive in-house
corporate secretarial, legal and management experience gained at
company secretary and other senior positions from reputable overseas
and Hong Kong (including Hang Seng Index Constituent stock and Hang
Seng Mid-Cap 50) companies. He was the managing director of a top-
notch financial printer in Hong Kong with international affiliation and an
independent non-executive director of a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was named in the “International WHO’S
WHO of Professionals” in 1999 and has been an adjudicator of the Best
Annual Reports Awards organised by the Hong Kong Management
Association and a member of the Board of Review appointed by the
government of Hong Kong under the Inland Revenue Ordinance. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Tak Lee Machinery
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8142), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, the company secretary and a joint company secretary
of a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange and the vice-
chairman of a charity fund in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwok is also an executive
committee member of Federation of Share Registrars Limited.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting and enhancing
Shareholder value through good corporate governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognize the importance
of incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability,
and to enable our shareholders to evaluate how the principles of the CG
Code (has defined below) have been applied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all applicable
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules” and the “CG
Code”, respectively) throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”) , except as disclosed in this report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct governing the
securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry made
by the Company on each of the Directors, all of them confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for overseeing
and supervising the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and
standards and ensures that the requisite financial and human resources
support are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but are not limited to formulating the
Group’s business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s financial
results and performance and approving its interim and annual results upon
the review and recommendation of the audit committee of the Board
(the “Audit Committee”); approving the appointment or re-appointment
of the Board members upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”); approving the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of the
Company (the “Senior Management”) upon the recommendation of the
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remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”),
deciding all significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and
operational issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the Group’s
corporate governance, and all other functions reserved to the Board under
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).
The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to the
Senior Management if and when considered appropriate. The Senior
Management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time
to time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
Directors so that there is a strong independent element on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

Currently, the Board comprises the following eight Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Radius Suhendra

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny (who will be re-designated from a NED to an ED
with effect from 1 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details” of this
annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), is the
father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, a NED (who will be re-designated as an
ED with effect from 1 April 2019). He is also a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Mr. Chan Kwan, the chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”), is the
elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, a NED. Mr. Chan Kwan owns
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20% of the issued shares of a controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company. Save as aforesaid, there was no financial,
business, family or other material relationship among the Directors.

The EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and overseeing the Group’s businesses development, formulation of
strategies and are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an independent
judgment to bear on the issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conducts
and scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high
standard of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well
as providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise an
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company so as to
protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which complied with
the requirement of the Listing Rules that (i) the number of INEDs must
represent at least one-third of the Board members; and (ii) at least one
of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence in
writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied
that all the INEDs have been independent and met the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up
to the date of this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored-made
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business and
full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities under the statutes and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
and the Company'’s business and governance policies.
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The Company from time to time provides briefings to all Directors to
develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense and they have been requested to provide the Company with
their training records. According to the training records maintained by
the Company, each of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr. Radius
Suhendra, Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, Ms. Ng
Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict has
attended seminars/conference/forums and/or read newspapers, journals
and materials relating to the economy, general business, corporate
governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to all Directors at least 14 days in
advance. For additional Board meetings which require discussion and
resolution of significant issues arising from the operations of the Company,
notice is given in a reasonable time in advance. Before each Board
meeting, a draft agenda is sent to all Directors at least three days or
such other period as agreed in advance in order to allow the Directors to
include any other matters in the agenda that is required for discussion and
resolution in the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed
on issues arising at the Board meetings and to make informed decisions,
Board papers together with all appropriate and relevant information in
relation to the matters of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days
or such other period as agreed before each Board meeting. All Directors
should have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a view to ensuring
that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board
meetings minutes. Draft minutes are normally circulated to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection. According to the Listing
Rules, any Directors and their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be discussed at the
Board meetings will abstain from deliberating and voting on resolutions
approving such transactions and are not to be counted in the quorum of
the meetings.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RARTREEEBEFRMER - AH
EMEHEFNBERET - ARRR
AEERTBERBES2MEREIIR
2 WERREFRAARRRREEEIIR
%o REBEARAFEZHIICE AL
EREE  RELLE  BHEBALLE R
L BBAXE  MERLL
RXPEEERBERELESADRE
e —RER - EEBAREFTBRAR
EESERELENNE g8 wiE

K/ SBIEIAMEE - TR -

EEEem EFEEETRRER
EEHFS

EXefEFETHRERE RO
FRIT-X TRIETERAEZE
ERRhBEN - YRNFETHMRER
ARAIEEMELENERERZBINE
EZeed BREN—BRAERHEZLA
HMeRBREFEEHA  RIEMN=
R HENEMIBE A2 EEFEY
FERA UBEEFARZEEANAT
2EE BN RFERNENEMEER -
EBREFEEHA - AEEFENE
ENTEZTCCRELCHEHERIE
HAERE - BIRA = RSB ERE
fHEReREEELEHESTS XM
BN EZSHZERLERE
e 2 BESRARESARRZAR
WE([2AWE ) 2B EMIRT - AR
REZSREFMIABERBRAUMERS
AET - REAMEEREREMBESRS
SR NEBREREK  BFRAE
HEANEREBRCERATESSEMN
UBEFHRTER  MEKERRAR
FRHEEZSEM - RIELTRA - EAR
EXegR TR RXITHEEKNE
BEENEBETHBACEER LTH
) BERIEZ TR ZRETETE
mMBMEALRRE S RTFAGREAE
AEL e

BRRRERERAT
—T

o



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

During the Year, one annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) and four Board meetings were held. The table below sets out the
attendance by the Directors of these meetings:

RAFE  ERIT-RARRRRBSF
ARe((RREBFAG)) MUXREEES
# o PREJIESHREZFERZIBN

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HESRE
FERHEERRE
Board
Name Meetings AGM
HE EEEEE RREFAE
EDs HITES
Chau On Ta Yuen BARER 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwan PRE 4/4 1/1
Radius Suhendra BREEA 0/4 0/1
NEDs FHITES
Chan Pak Lam Brian BRAGAR 2/4 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny BEA 4/4 1/1
INEDs BAFHTES
Ng Chung Yan Linda hER 4/4 1/1
Ng Man Kung SRt 4/4 0/1
Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MeE BE 4/4 1/1
Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman met with the NEDs (including MEEE &I EE MR AFEEIE

the INEDs) without the presence of the other EDs during the Year.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board diversity policy on 5 September 2014 and
discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated
and assumed by different individuals to ensure a balance of power and
authority so that power is not vested in any member of the Board. Mr.
Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman, is responsible for business development
and formulation of strategies of the Group while Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for all major affairs of the Group, including
project construction and operation, business development, marketing and
formulation of strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees named
above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng
Chung Yan Linda, serving as the chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze
Yeuk Lung Benedict and Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, a NED (who will step
down as a member with effect from 1 April 2019).

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and considering any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;
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developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting the
same to the Board, and identifying and making recommendations
on any matters in respect of which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed,;

discussing with the external auditor before the audit commences,
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations, and
ensuring proper co-ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may wish
to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management where
necessary);

monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and financial statements, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior Management
has performed its duties in establishing and maintaining effective
systems, including matters on adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering findings of major investigations on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by such auditor to the Senior Management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and the Senior Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference;

reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for employees
of the Company and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matter related
to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the Senior Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the Company’s
annual report;
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EERERBE

o reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

° reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior

Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement of laws,
rules and regulations; and

U considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held whereat the
Audit Committee reviewed, among others, (i) the audited consolidated
financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017
(“Year 2017”); (i) the unaudited consolidated financial results of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2018; (i) the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group; and (iv) the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function. The attendance of individual members
was set out in the following table.

. REAATMBENBLS
[RET AL AR

. B ABBAENHELERAND
A e IR B YT ] BRAF kR AR SR
B 2 I A BRE I SRR E Rk
REH BRI ©

. EREFEBENEMEMHER -
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—E-NEFERNAZTBIEANEARNKRE
EBIZGAMBEE (iR AEENA
MEEREREERS 0 MivAEBER
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RERHEBEMR

Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HESRRE
®H FERLEEERLH
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hEBLZ L 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung RHEE 2/2
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MeE BE S A 2/2
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny BEASE 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Man Kung, serving as the
chairman, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda and Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict,
and Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, a NED. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include:

o making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and the Senior
Management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing a remuneration policy;
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reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual EDs and the Senior Management and
such packages include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
NEDs;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs and
the Senior Management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to
the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;
and

reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for the
Directors and the Senior Management.
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During the Year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and recommended to the
Board for consideration, among others, the adjustment to the Director’s
fee of all the Directors with effect from 1 January 2018 and the bonus
payment to the EDs for Year 2017. The attendance of individual members
was set out in the following table.

RAFER  ERITMAFHEZESS
@ FHEEenNeZ LERARAES
eHBETE(EFEE) BT N\F—
A-—AERBEEREZNEFTEE LA
HITEEIN T —LFEHL TK
HIERIKERHEER -

Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HEEERE
H®E FERLEEERRH
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt A 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda HEBLZ L 2/2
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict AR A 2/2
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BRABMRSE & 1/2

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee also assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and the senior management of
the Company and approved the terms of the executive Directors’ service
contracts.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs,
namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Mr. Sze Yeuk
Lung Benedict, and two EDs, namely Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Chan
Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen serving as the chairman. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

U reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company and Directors’
nomination policy, as appropriate; and reviewing the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such Board
diversity policy, and the progress in achieving the objectives; and
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° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executives.

During the Year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held whereat
the Nomination Committee, among others, (i) assessed the independence
of the INEDs; (ii) recommended to the Board for consideration the re-
appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the 2018 AGM,; (iii)
reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board; and (iv) reviewed
the Board diversity policy. The attendance of individual members was set
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out in the following table. NEEFEENEITLBOR - TREYER
REMTEREER
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HESERE
®A FEREEERRE
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen B&EREE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwan BREESTHE 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung RPLEAE 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda HEE L+ 2/2
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict Mo RE ST A 2/2
NOMINATION POLICY RBBE
The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy’) ZEZZERMIBAEE([RBBEEK]) -
which aims to: SR

— set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment
of Directors;

- ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

— ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

— character, reputation and integrity;
— qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including

professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;
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— willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and other directorships and significant commitments;

— requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent by reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

— Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by
the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board;

— any other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of Directors and
succession planning; and

- such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

NOMINATION PROCEDURES
(A)  APPOINTMENT OF NEW DIRECTOR

(i) The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director, the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate and evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out in above paragraph of “Criteria” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(ii) The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary.

(iii) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company (including
but not limited to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives) and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).
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(iv)

(vi)

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for directorship
and the candidate shall provide his/her written consent (i) to
be appointed as a Director, and (ii) to the public disclosure
of his/her personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing
for election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such
candidate based on the above paragraph of “Criteria”
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall make recommendation
to the Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR AT GENERAL MEETING

(i)

V)

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring
Director’s overall contribution and service to the Company,
including his/her attendance of Board meetings and,
where applicable, general meetings, and his/her level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in above paragraph.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of the Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election
at any general meeting.
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REGULAR REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on (i) the
effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it remains relevant to
the Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory requirements
and good corporate governance practice, and (i) the structure, size and
composition of the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and business needs.

BOARD’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the CG Code
and the Board is responsible for determining the corporate governance
policies of and performing the corporate governance functions of the
Company. The Board has, amongst other matters, reviewed this corporate
governance report in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of Messrs. Chau On Ta Yuen and Chan Kwan has further entered
into a service contract with the Company in respect of their appointment
as ED with the Company on 24 August 2018, and Mr. Radius Suhendra,
another ED, has entered into a service contract with the Company for
acting in such a capacity for an initial term of three years commencing on
21 October 2016.

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has further entered into an
appointment letter on 24 August 2018 in respect of their appointment as
NED or INED (as the case may be).

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries other
than contracts or letters of appointment expiring or determinable by the
employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at
which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.
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According to the Articles of Association,

(@) the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting; and

(b) the Company may by ordinary resolution in general meetings elect
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

However, the Company will comply with code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code that any Director who fills a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
following general meeting of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in note
10 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the Senior Management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographical Details” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) in respect
of the auditing services for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$1,300,000. During the Year, no fees were incurred for non-auditing
Services.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee have agreed to recommend the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s independent auditors for the
ensuing year at the 2019 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give a true and fair
view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the Year
and are properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements as well as accounting and financial
reporting standards. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties which may affect the Group’s business or cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, Deloitte has stated in the independent auditors’ report
its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to protect the interest
of the Company and its Shareholders. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our Group has established an enterprise risk management (the “ERM”)
framework in order to implement effective risk management efforts. Our
ERM framework comprises two key elements, namely risk management
structure and risk management process. It defines a simple and clear risk
management structure as well as the responsibilities as below.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a duty to ensure the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group (the “ERM system”). The Board
oversees the ERM system, assesses and evaluates the Group’s business
strategies and risk tolerance. The Board reviews, with the assistance
of the Audit Committee, at least annually the effectiveness of the ERM
system and monitors the ERM system in an on-going manner.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for risk management
and internal control after the Board. It assists the Board in overseeing the
Group’s ERM system by providing support and advice, including on-going
monitoring of the execution of risk management processes, reviewing the
Group'’s risk register as well as reviewing and approving the internal control
review plan and results.

MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group (the “Management”) is responsible for
identifying and monitoring the risks relevant to the Group during daily
operations, including strategic, operational, financial, reporting and
compliance risks. The Management reports to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the risks identified and their changes. The Management is
also responsible for developing appropriate internal control measures to
mitigate the risks, and identify and resolve material internal control defects.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established the internal audit function and the scope of
work includes reviewing the effectiveness of the ERM system. The scope
of the risk management and internal control review is risk-based and is
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The internal audit function is able to
communicate with the Audit Committee directly regarding the results of its
review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS mEBEERRE

Our ERM framework defines the procedures for identifying, assessing, HFIAIEERREIREERE T35

responding and monitoring risks and their changes. Through regular &7 flf « & R ERE R & EZ a2

discussions with each operating function, the Group strengthens 5 ° #i#8F HHEZEL IR - A%

the understanding of risk management such that all employees can EIARE AR EIRH T - UE2ERE

understand and report various risks they have identified in a timely manner. B85 R T I REREF D H A < &

It enhances the Group’s ability to identify and manage risks. BRR - ZnZRANEE DR R EE
[B\fg 2 BES ©

Define risks Identify Assess risks Mitigate Monitor and
universe risks __ identified risks report changes
RERMREE EEdall )N arfd 2 58 Al m e P L fi EREmESE

To identify and prioritize material risks throughout the Group, the uék/”z'J$§%@ WEERRERI )5

Management communicates with each operating function, collects X~ BIEEEZELHPIETER - I
significant risk factors that affect the Group from bottom to top, including 58 T EFEAREEZEFEHNEKR
strategic, operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks. After EfEFE = BEXRE - &< MK W
identifying all relevant risks, the Management assesses the potential & & & # & g ° EE%%E'J i A A8 B R B
impact and possibilities of the risks and prioritizes the risks. Appropriate % - BIEEH R EE L E LAl gelt
internal control measures are then developed to mitigate the risks L?‘_IEWE]U}/%IPAJ—H‘ c BEIRERER

identified and the changes of risks are monitored in an on-going manner. %'JE%DM B R EBE PR T b LA PR R 2 35 R
b K B B R A L

MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL EfMEREERABERRRKZEE

CONTROL SYSTEMS Lod -

MAINTAIN AN EFFECTIVE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM HEREVRzABEEZRS (EEEH)

(OPERATIONAL LEVEL)

. Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, and clearly — ® HIERARENANBE TR LE
define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each Fr RERAESERBUE
key position; T EREBE

. Establish code of conduct and explain the Group’s requirements on @ WM ITARSTR| WREEETH
integrity and ethical value to all staff; BAEEEEHENEEREAEN

g

. Establish a whistle-blowing mechanism and encourage employees ~ ® W BRKS - SEEERET

to report incidents of misconduct or fraud; BTRSMEFEY

. Establish appropriate level of information technology to assess  ® BEE R EMBEUKTE - LARHE
rights and avoid the leakage of price-sensitive information; and REMR Mot e RIRESRE B
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° Establish inside information disclosure policy, including reporting
channel and responsible person of disclosure, unify response to
external enquiries and obtain advice from professional financial
adviser or the Stock Exchange if necessary.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control policies and procedures, including those
related to financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. The Board has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions during the review of the effectiveness of the
ERM system.

ON-GOING RISK MONITORING (RISK MANAGEMENT LEVEL)

Based on the ERM framework and risk management policies established
by the Board, the Management communicates with each operating
function, and collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from
bottom to top. The Group has established a risk register to record the
risks identified, and the Management assesses the potential impact
and possibilities of the risks and develops appropriate internal control
measures to mitigate the risks identified.

During the Year, the Management conducted an evaluation of the
Group’s risk management structure and procedures and submitted a
risk assessment report to the Board and the Audit Committee, including
a 3-year internal control review plan, to enable the Board and the Audit
Committee to effectively monitor the major risks of the Group and
understand how the Management responds to and mitigates the risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT

During the Year, the Group had not established an internal control
department internally. Instead, the Group engaged an external internal
control consulting company, Avista Group, to conduct an assessment and
evaluation on the effectiveness of internal control measures and systems
of the Group. Certain internal control enhancement suggestions have been
identified and the Management has established action plans for improving
the internal control effectiveness accordingly. An internal control review
report has been provided to the Audit Committee which has also been
reported to the Board about the findings and improvement measures.

No material internal control deficiency has been identified during the
Year and the Board considers that the ERM system to be adequate and
effective.
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MAJOR RISKS OF THE GROUP

FREZEZEBE

Our risk management process has identified the following as major risks of — F Y E bz & IR /12 B 8l A B 2 LA

the Group and their changes.

Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
[ B it FERBEBIEE 24
Electricity The Group is engaged in biomass Invest in technology researches  Increased
demand power generation business in and studies to improve
in Jambi, Indonesia. Electricity is sold to the efficiency of electricity EFH
Indonesia Perusahaan Listrik Negara, a state- generation to reduce cost

owned electricity corporation in
ENE5BE  Indonesia. The consumption of BERIMTHE RSB E 2

NFEK electricity and hence, the sales of
electricity by our power plants are

subject to the demand in the region.

If the level of consumption decreases
or cannot be sustained in the future,
the Company could suffer a significant

loss from operation, and the

investment in the power plants cannot

be recovered.

AEEREEREEMEEREER -

BHUETFIR-FEEBNCE

Perusahaan Listrik Negara ° & 77)55%
RBPIEEREE NHE X ZIED
FRETE o W BIRBEFKT TR
ERE  ARRINEESEXEANRE

Ko BRERORE FEEWRD
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Develop other businesses, €.g.
biofuel pellet manufacturing
business, for better utilization
of the production capacities of
the power plants
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
B & i pus TERBEREE 21t
Credit Customers or counterparties of the Frequently communicate with Unchanged
Company are local government customers to follow up the
=5 authorities. Payment from them outstanding balance mEL
could be longer than the credit
period granted to them due to KREEPER - RERE
the complexity of their internal REREE
administrative procedures. The Group
might suffer from a financial loss or Maintain sufficient cash flow to
liquidity difficulty in the case of delay avoid liquidity problem
in payment.
BT ENHESREAR LR
RNRABEPHEF I REBATE BE MR
F9 o AR E B TEIZ P 2 B FEME -
BEZNRAUEERNRTRECEE Regularly perform impairment
B o REE RN FIERE X I review to assess the recovery
EEIREBECNE of account receivables and
provide sufficient impairment
to avoid over-statement of
balance
TE BRI TR E AR A AR FE IR
AR Z AT \EIT’EHﬂEa’JE’J
ﬂfﬁ%’é%%ﬁﬁazﬁu BEAEER
BRERZERBRAA
ZE-\FFH
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
el it FTEREBRERER 24t
Pricing and The Group operates the wastewater - On-going cost control to avoid ~ Decrease
cost recovery treatment facilities at a pre- unnecessary spending

determined tariff rate specified at the Vs
TE(B M AKANTE time the Build, Operate and Transfer —  Negotiate with supplier to
& (BOT) agreement is entered into. The minimize the increase in costs

circumstances of tariff adjustment

are also specified that the Company — Diversify the services offered

has only limited ability to change / re- to compensate the potential

negotiate the tariffs. The increase in decrease in profit margin

operating costs due to an increase

in utilization of the wastewater —  FREEITRCANE B LA T 4

treatment facilities might not be fully ZHF

compensated that the Company

could suffer from loss or decrease in ~~ —  EHEERIBEEE R/ KA

profitability. ik

REERR R - KERBR —  BERPRERBERIARERN

(BOT) e SR ERN BXRES Bz BRI

SRR KB BEZ ERIE
BARTLE /EF ek BAOLE
BIR - FHE AR5 AR R
ZEERAE T S B EE 2 B EI
& - EULAR AR g R AR
b o
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced promptly when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements/circulars and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the EDs, the Company Secretary and the chief financial officer
of the Company (the “Chief Financial Officer”) are authorised to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary
and Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial services
to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between
the Company and Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with
whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting in respect of company secretarial
matters is Mr. Fan Chi Chiu, the Chief Financial Officer.

Mr. Kwok had delivered and attended relevant seminars for over 15 hours
during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at the general meeting under the memorandum of
association of the Company and the Articles of Association (the “M&A”).
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to do so
in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM”
set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company, which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company.
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General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any
one member of the Company, which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist holds as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company,
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him/her/them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests and
comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to its principal place
of business in Hong Kong, presently at Units 1-3, 11th Floor, Westlands
Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by email to ell@anli.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings or
change of correspondence address or dividend instructions by mail to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom Share
Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong, which has been appointed by the Company to deal
with Shareholders for share registration and related matters.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy with
the objective of enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to the Shareholders
and the investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), announcements and circulars,
the AGMs and the EGMs that may be convened, as well as by all the
published disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications made available by the Company on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
M&A on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of wastewater treatment
services in Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and the generation of electricity by biomass power plants in Jambi, the
Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”). The principal activities and other
particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 are set out on pages 124 to 263 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
OBJECTIVES

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) aims to
set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply
in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1. The board of Directors (the “Board”) adopts the policy that, in
recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate and sufficient cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder

value.

2. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio.

3. The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute dividends

to the Shareholders, subject to the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), all applicable laws and
regulations and the factors set out below.
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4. The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the 4. EEgHEERERLENEE

Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends: - BRIKZE T ABEAE
HE ==

o financial results; o b GES

. cash flow situation; . BeREEBEN

. business conditions and strategies; o SETEARM R S

. expected future operations and earnings; . TRHEAAR R EE R AT

. capital requirements and expenditure plans; . ReFRKEFAEE

. interests of Shareholders; . IR EFER

o any restrictions on payment of dividends; and . EARS AR BHIRE - &

. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant. o EExenERAMAENT

R EE -

5. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the 5.  #8F A2 A & AR SE EH) 8 BAR R

Group and the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends NE LG RkEER E5g0

may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year EVBRFESBEERENE HE

or period as follows: K THIRRE.

. interim dividend; . REAAR R

. final dividend; . REARR 2.

. special dividend; and . FRIRE « &

o any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem . FRNEETEREEENL
appropriate. MHE -

6. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the 6. A BREE 2 REAKR S AH

Shareholders’ approval. BB o
7. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or 7. KRR NESERAGENE
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate. NERRRMSEE - BFHAE K

REBRDEEMEN -

8. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the 8. E{a] R B EAY AR B FE 48 W K e

Company in accordance with the Articles of Association, and all RIEABSERZMB R EEAE
applicable laws and regulations. BERERERARRQT] -
REVIEW ®E

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to time. EEE KA H 2R R BEBEER ©
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DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid or declared for the six months ended
30 June 2018 (2017: nil).

During its meeting held on 22 March 2019, the Board has resolved not to
recommend the payment of any final dividend for the Year (2017: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the potential
future development of the Group’s business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year and up to the date of this report.

The performance analysis of the Group for the Year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 8 to 17 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
together with the Group’s internal control, is set out on pages 80 to 86
of this annual report. The financial risks are covered in note 34 to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report. A
more comprehensive analysis of the Group’s risk factors (excluding the
operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants
by a subsidiary of the Company in Indonesia, which the Group acquired in
late 2016) is set out on pages 29 to 46 of the prospectus of the Company
dated 12 September 2014 (the “Prospectus”). The risk factors relating to
the operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power
plants in Indonesia are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the Company’s
circular dated 24 August 2016.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The Group operates its business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Indonesia.

During the Year, save as disclosed in the rest of this annual report, as far
as the Company is aware, there was no breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong, the PRC and Indonesia by
our Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of
our Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the Group are set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 18 to
54 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 18 to
54 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results for the Year and assets and liabilities as
at 31 December 2018 and for the past four financial years are set out on
page 264 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold its annual general meeting on Friday, 21 June 2019
(the “2019 AGM”), the notice of which will be published and dispatched
to the Shareholders in due course in the manner as required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively).

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report

BFHEREREARENHERERER
&M

AEEIBEAETS TERHELS?
%%O

BRI ARFEREMIMTFAREEIN - WA
FE - RARBMM  NEBEHEER
FTETHAEEERREEEEAY
BB - PRNMNEBERARIIESR -

BER HERES

NEEZIRE - 2 MEAFHBIER
KREFRFISERFH4HIRE HEakE
AR o

BiSHEZME

NEFREFMNEZTBHEEZBAD
HARFRFEISELABZIRE ek
ERTREN o

MEHE

AEBENAFERERR T N\F
T-A=T—ARBENEMRFEZ
BEENBBERBIENAFRE264H -
AHBEI MEREEZI B HREKR 2 — B

{/\ °

BRRBEXE

ARBAFR-FE-NFARAA-+—HB(E
HH)BTERRBFRE([ZE-N1F
BREBFAE ) BREFASEREH
BAEMERZIAARARES LR
AN (o R % TBESRRR | I [ EmR R 1) ATk
EZITARHERETNERFETRR -



CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 18 June 2019 to Friday, 21 June 2019 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2019
AGM, the non-registered Shareholders must lodge all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 17 June 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was attributable to (i) two customers
who are local government authorities in the PRC for the wastewater
treatment business, and (i) one customer who is a state-owned company
in Indonesia for the sale of electricity generated by ancillary power
plant of the palm kernel oil mill. They jointly accounted for 100% of the
Group’s revenue, where the two local government authorities in the PRC
accounted for 48.0% and 12.5% of the Group’s revenue, respectively,
and the state-owned company in Indonesia accounted for 39.5% of the
Group’s revenue. The purchases attributable to the largest supplier and
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 25.7% and 72.6%,
respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

An Indonesia-incorporated subsidiary of the Company has been procuring
direct labour, repairs and maintenance services, plant and machinery
acquisition services, administrative services, consultancy services and
certain spare parts and equipment from PT Global Inovasi Prima, an
associate of Fusion Joy Holdings Inc., whose beneficial owners are
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) of one of the Directors.
For details, please refer to note 38(b) to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year,
together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 30 to the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$395.9 million
(2017: HK$402.9 million). This amount included the Company’s share
premium account of HK$408.6 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$409.0 million), which may be distributed provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report:

Executive Directors

CHAU On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) (Chairman) N

CHAN Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) (Chief Executive Officer) N
Radius SUHENDRA

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)
CHAN Pak Lam Brian (“Mr. Brian Chan”) ®
CHAU Chi Yan Benny (“Mr. Benny Chau”) #

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
NG Chung Yan Linda (“Ms. Ng”) ~"N

NG Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) ~/fN

SZE Yeuk Lung Benedict (“Mr. Sze”) ~/AN

A = member of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
R = member of the remuneration committee of the Board
N = member of the nomination committee of the Board
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In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chan,
Mr. Benny Chau and Ms. Ng shall retire by rotation at the 2019 AGM and
all of them, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms. Ng, Mr.
Ng and Mr. Sze, an annual written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the
Company considers all of them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 55 to 63 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
2019 AGM has a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company that is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report, none of the Directors or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group has donated certain amount of cash and daily
necessities to the surrounding communities in Jambi, Indonesia. Also,
we donated IDR500,000 to Mosque Nurul Jannah for the celebration of
Prophet Nabi Muhammad 2018. (2017: nil)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options
to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme took effect on 26 September 2014. During the
Year, no options were granted, exercised or cancelled or lapsed and as
at 31 December 2018, options comprising 500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 0.045% of the issued Shares, were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares
(representing 10% of the Shares in issue immediately upon completion
of the Share Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and approximately
7.22% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this report). Excluding the
abovementioned options comprising 500,000 Shares granted during the
year ended 31 December 2016, the total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 79,500,000 Shares, which
represented approximately 7.18% of the issued Shares as at the date of
this report.
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Details
Schem

of the options granted and outstanding under the Share Option
e are set out as follows:
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Number of underlying Shares comprised in options

EREFEENEBRAHA
Outstanding as at Lapsed/  Outstanding as
Position 1 January cancelled  at 31 December Exercise
held in 2018 during the 2018 price per
Name of the Group Date of RZE-NE  Grantedduring Exercised during Year RZB-N% Share
option holder RAEE Grant -A-A the Year the Year REERE  T-A=T-H BRikH
BREREAZE BENRL R7RE WATE  AFERCEY  KEEREAE 5N/ BRI %8
HKS
AT
Mr. Fan ChiChiu ~ Chief financial offcer 14 April 2016 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.52
('Mr. Fan’ HRBEE I5E
BRERE mATHEA
([%%])

The options granted to Mr. Fan shall vest over a period of three years
commencing on the date of grant. The closing price of the Shares

immed

iately before the date of grant was HK$0.50 per Share, as stated

in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange. Those options
are exercisable from 14 April 2017 to 13 April 2026.

The pri

ncipal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine to any full-time or part-time employees, potential
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers, customers,
agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries (the “Eligible Participants”).
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MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue immediately upon
completion of the Share Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and
approximately 7.22% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
report).

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of Shares comprising in the options that
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to any Eligible
Participant shall not, when aggregated with

(@) any Shares issued upon exercise of options under the Share
Option Scheme or options under other schemes which have
been granted to that Eligible Participant;

(b) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme
or options under other schemes granted to that Eligible
Participant; and

(c) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of options
under the Share Option Scheme or options under other
schemes which had been granted to and accepted by that
Eligible Participant,

in any 12-month period up to the offer date, exceed 1% of the
number of Shares in issue on the offer date. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i) the issue of a circular by the Company to the Shareholders,
which shall comply with the Listing Rules; and

(ii) the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting at
which that Eligible Participant and his/her/its associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) shall abstain from voting.
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Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates, would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the
date of such grant; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in
excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the options shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders with such person/entity
and his/her/its core connected persons (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting in favour at the general meeting.

Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or
any of their respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
is subject to the prior approval of the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding the independent non-executive Director who is
the grantee of an option).

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SECURITIES MUST BE
EXERCISED UNDER AN OPTION

Unless otherwise provided in the respective grantee’s offer
document, each of the grantees to whom an option has been
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her/its option in the following manner:

(@ up to 33% of the Shares that are subject to the option
so granted to him/her/its (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) at any time during the period commencing
on the first anniversary of the date on which such option
is granted (the “Commencement Date”) and ending on
the expiry of the period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee (the “Option Period”), within which the option
may be exercisable provided that the Option Period of time
shall not exceed a period of ten years commencing on the
Commencement Date;
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(b) up to 66% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her/its (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on the
second anniversary of the Commencement Date and ending
on the expiry of the Option Period; and

(€ up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the option so
granted to him/her/its (rounded down to the nearest whole
number) at any time during the period commencing on the
third anniversary of the Commencement Date and ending on
the expiry of the Option Period.

MINIMUM PERIOD, IF ANY, FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must be
held before it can be exercised unless otherwise imposed by the
Directors.

PERIOD FOR AND CONSIDERATION PAYABLE ON
ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer document. A sum of HK$1.00
is payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an Eligible
Participant shall be determined by the Board (or its committee) in
its sole discretion, save that such price shall not be less than the
highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for business of dealing in securities (the “Business
Day”);

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
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9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on 26 September 2014.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option granted with details set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreements in respect of the Shares during
the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the Year or at the end of the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable a Director to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the Shares or any shares in
or debentures of other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts (except for the executive Directors’ service contracts)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 10 and 11,
respectively to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which were required: (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”), were as follows:

Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each
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AMERNRA MR EERSOXR (B
BREREBZES LB RO ZERX
WEEIRBEENERIOAE) © (i)
RIEFE 5 K G G015 362 (RAE LN %
RATIE E MR ERSOR B © 3 (i) RIT
FHRBIM SR TP s ETBITAES
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PN DY R il oF e A = (L
T

RN 2 B & R E {E 0.0001 78 TT B & AR
(PR 5

Approximate
percentage of

Shareholding

Interest in the

Number of Company

Name of Directors/Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held RAD T R

EE BETHRABRSA B ERuE FrisROHE RS ER e

Mr. Chau Interest in a controlled corporation 225,000,000 20.31%
B E REEERS

Mr. Chan Interest in controlled corporations 390,700,000@ 35.26%
BRAEAE XA
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Notes:

(1) Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Sea”) which held 225,000,000 Shares
is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of
Mr. Chau, respectively.

2) Everbest Environmental Investment Limited (“Everbest Environmental”) which
held 375,000,000 Shares was owned as to 50%, 30% and 20% by Ms. Wong
Shu Ying (“Ms. Wong”), Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”),
respectively. Mr. Chan is the sole director of Everbest Environmental. Ms. Wong
is the mother of all of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan and Mr. Brian Chan, a NED.
Mr. Chan also owns 25% of the issued shares in Kingdrive Limited which in
turn owns 100% of the issued shares in Carlton Asia Limited (“Carlton Asia”).
Carlton Asia held 15,700,000 Shares and is accustomed to act in accordance
with the directions of Mr. Chan.

Q) All the above Shares were held in long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or
to be entered in the register referred to in the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the
following entities or persons (other than the Directors and chief executives
of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have an interest and/
or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares, which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which was recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each

AN 7 & A E {8 0.0001 /& TT 8 & B AR
th 2 HE

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding
Interest
Number of in the Company
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held HARD T R E
RREEEHB 5 ERME RO E BRBED
Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 375,000,000 33.84%
oy 3t
Ms. Wong Interest in controlled corporations 380,790,000m&@ 34.37%
Trt RErERR
Mr. Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation 380,790,000 &@ 34.37%
BRiEER A and interest held by spouse
XL E R R B ER
Wealthy Sea Beneficial interest 225,000,000© 20.31%
e Eaikn
Ms. Wong Mei Ling Interest held by spouse 225,000,000@ 20.31%
FERTL FeB P e
Morgan Top Trading Co., Ltd. Beneficial interest 143,300,000 12.93%
EanikEn
Notes: BiE -
1) Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investment Limited (‘Hightop”) (1) Everbest Environmental & & 1& % & & R

is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and therefore, Ms. Wong is deemed to be
interested in the 375,000,000 Shares and 5,790,000 Shares held by Everbest
Environmental and Hightop respectively pursuant to the SFO.

2) Hightop is also owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung, the husband of
Ms. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is deemed to be interested in the
5,790,000 Shares held by Hightop and 375,000,000 Shares deemed to be held
by Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO.
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) Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive Director
and the Chairman, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau, respectively.
Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore, deemed to be interested in the 225,000,000
Shares held by Wealthy Sea controlled by Mr. Chau pursuant to the SFO.

(4) All the above Shares were held in long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any entities or persons (other than a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) which/who had, or were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares,
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were required to be entered in
the register kept by the Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are required to
participate in the central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
schemes. The employer contributions vest fully once made.

Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required to pay
separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to their employees
if the conditions specified in the Indonesia Labour Law are met. The
Company’s subsidiaries in Indonesia estimate their liability for employee
service entitlement benefits in order to meet and cover the minimum
benefits requirement to be paid to employees under the Indonesia Labour
Law. For further information, please refer to note 36 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.
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No forfeited contributions were incurred during the Year. For further
information. please refer to note 36 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained adequate public
float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares being held by the public) during
the Year and up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary course
of business by the Group during the Year are set out in note 38 to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not conducted any “one-off connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions disclosed
in note 38 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report as related party transactions did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) or are fully exempt
continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report

AFEEWEELEZRER - E—FE
B BT RERE M B HRRMERN
MisE36 °

BHARKSEKE

RIEARAFMENANENREES
BT - AR R A R E AR R
B 15 R D BHIRE (DE D 25% HE,
BT R DRI -

R 5

REERAFEERBEBRTETH
FREE T X e BRI A F AR S M5
RUFTERIMIFESS ©

CRES

RAFER AEETEETTMEAEE
FLETRAUBEBTRREFEEMRTH
[—RERER S % [HERERSI(F
EZR FHRAFE14AE) - KFERGZEH
HHRERN M IS EBEABH TS
MRZSTHA[BERS | &k [FHERE
R (EEREMARBIF1LAZ)NT
- WERE ETRAE14A731EHEE
E2ARENFERELS -



DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan (an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer), Ms. Wong, Everbest Environmental (a company owned
by Ms. Wong, Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan as to 50%, 30% and 20%,
respectively), Mr. Chau (an executive Director and the Chairman) and
Wealthy Sea (a company owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau and his
wife, respectively) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) executed
a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour
of the Group on 5 September 2014. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-
Competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and
irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and covenanted with the Company (for
itself and for the benefits of other members of the Group) that it/he/she
would not, and would procure its/his/her associates (other than members
of the Group) not to, directly or indirectly, either on its/his/her own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among
other things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire
or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent,
employee or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any
activity or business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of operating wastewater treatment facilities
in the PRC by the Group as described in the Prospectus and any other
business from time to time conducted, carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of the Group or in which any member of the
Group is engaged or has invested or which any member of the Group
has otherwise publicly announced its intention to enter into, engage
in or invest in (whether as principal or agent and whether undertaken
directly or through any body corporate, partnership, joint venture, or other
contractual or other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling Shareholders
an annual written declaration as to the compliance with the terms of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year. The INEDs have reviewed the
compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders with the Deed of
Non- Competition and not aware of the occurrence of any adverse event,
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in breach of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors
is considered to have interests in a business (apart from the Group’s
business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group and has any other conflicts of
interest, as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 38 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to the Group
or not) to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/
her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted. In addition, proper insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’ liability has been
arranged. The relevant provisions in the Articles of Association and the
Directors’ liability insurance were in force during the Year and as at the
date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding,
disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to the Shares,
they are advised to consult their professional advisers.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 209 (2017: 227) employees
(including the Directors). Employee costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$21.0 million for the Year
(2017: approximately HK$20.2 million). The remuneration policy for the
Directors, senior management members and general staff is based on
their experience, level of responsibility, length of service and general
market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the financial results of the Group and the individual performance
of the Directors, senior management members and general staff.

The Group provides on-the-job training where appropriate.
The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 5 September 2014

for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
including the directors and employees of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased 3,000,000 Shares on the
Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of HK$473,295 excluding
transaction costs. All the above repurchased Shares had been cancelled
on 28 December 2018. The nominal value of the total issued capital of the
Company was reduced by HK$300. The repurchases were effected by the
Directors for the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

Particulars of the repurchases during the Year are as follows:
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Aggregate
consideration
(excluding
Number Price per Share transaction costs)
of Shares BRER BRE
Period of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest (FEfE
@i A 4 EEROEE BS RIE RBHEA)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(B7T) (&) (&)
September 2018 445,000 0.150 0.149 66,645
—Z=—-)\FNA
October 2018 1,555,000 0.160 0.150 246,650
—T—/\F+A
November 2018 845,000 0.160 0.160 135,200
—E-N\F+—A
December 2018 155,000 0.160 0.160 24,800
—ZE-N\F+H
3,000,000 473,295

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not redeem any of its Shares
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and practices
adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 64 to 90 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process, risk management and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Ms.
Ng (who is also the chairlady of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ng and Mr. Sze,
all being the INEDs and Mr. Benny Chau, a NED. The Audit Committee
has reviewed with the Company’s management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the annual consolidated results
of the Group for the Year.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in Directors’
information since the date of the 2018 interim report of the Company are
set out below:

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny will be re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director upon his appointment as the deputy
general manager of the Group and will step down as a member of the
Audit Committee, with effect from 1 April 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young resigned as the independent auditor of the Group with
effect from 29 November 2016. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed
as the independent auditor of the Company with effect from the same
date to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming 2019
AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors to
fix their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 124 to 263,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fuffilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETTNMNHEARENERETRE

Revenue and profit from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements

KEBERBHIEERARBFIUR R 1FFEL I T ER BT ERA

We identified recognition of revenue and profit from
construction services and imputed interest income on
receivables under service concession arrangements as a
key audit matter due to the significant estimation made
by the Group’s management.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from construction of wastewater
treatment facilities under the terms of build-operate-
transfer (the “BOT”) arrangement are estimated on a
cost-plus basis in which the construction margin is
estimated with reference to a prevailing market rate
of gross margins of market comparable at the time
of construction. Revenue from construction services
is recognised using the percentage-of-completion
method measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
construction contract.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS ZAHZRRERERAITKE

LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANETONMHRARENSHETEE

Revenue and profit from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements — continued
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Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
and profit from construction services and imputed
interest income on receivables under service concession
arrangements included:

° Examining the related BOT agreements entered
into between the governments and the Group
to assess the appropriateness of the related
accounting treatment adopted by the Group;

° Understanding the Group’s estimation of the
construction margin, the available industry and
market data of market comparables at the
time of construction and the involvement of an
independent valuer appointed by the Group for
the revenue from construction services;

Imputed interest income from wastewater treatment
facilities under BOT arrangement is recognised from
time to time on receivables under service concession
arrangements on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by discounting the estimated future
cash receipts over the service concession period at
the estimated effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.

The Group engages an independent qualified valuer to
access the prevailing market rate of gross margin of
market comparable and the effective interest rate for
service concession arrangements as mentioned above.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS Z#HZRRIEZERERAITRE

LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETNMUHEARENERETRE

Revenue and profit from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements — continued

KEBERBHEERARBFIUR BB FFELH FEUSBREEFERA — &

As disclosed in notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognised revenue and
profit from construction services of HK$11,151,000 and
HK$2,276,000, respectively, and imputed interest income
on receivables under service concession arrangements
of HK$15,123,000, during the year ended 31 December
2018.

o Assessing the reasonableness of the percentage-
of-completion measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total cost of the construction contract;

° Verifying the construction costs incurred during
the year by examining the contracts, invoices,
completion reports and other supporting
documents on a sample basis;

J Evaluating the estimated total cost of construction
contract by reference to the signed contracts and
approved budgets;

° Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated
effective interest rate for the imputed interest
income on receivables under service concession
arrangements by benchmarking against market
data; and

° Working with our internal valuation experts
to evaluate the appropriateness of all the
construction margins and effective interest rates
estimated by the management of the Group.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS ZHHZRRERERAITKE

LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAWSETONMHARENSHETEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and goodwill

W¥ - BB RRERBEEREFG

We identified impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and goodwill as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgments made by the management
in assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") comprising goodwill, which are
derived from value in use calculations using discounted
cash flow model.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$79,743,000
in respect of property, plant and equipment and
HK$39,889,000 in respect of goodwill after assessing
the recoverable amount of CGU which is principally
engaged in the biomass power generation business in
the Republic of Indonesia (the “Indonesia”). Details are
disclosed in notes 15, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

° Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, preparation of the cash flow projections
and involvement of an independent valuer
appointed by the Group;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of impairment
model applied by the management;

o Evaluating the accuracy of the management’ s
cash flow forecasts by comparing the actual
results of the CGU to the previously forecasted
results;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)
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(RASHESEMKLNERRF])
MEEHERA)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETTNMUHEARENERETRE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and goodwill — continued

WX BERREREEREFNG — &

Management s assessment of property, plant and
equipment and goodwill impairment is highly judgmental
and is dependent on certain key assumptions including
the discount rate, growth rates, budgeted sales and
gross margin, which are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions, particularly those in the
Indonesia.

An independent qualified professional valuer is engaged
to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU.

° Assessing the reasonableness of growth rates
applied in the forecast based on historical
experiences and trends;

o Comparing the budgeted sales and gross
margin against historical performance and the
management’s business plan in respect of the
CGU; and

° Working with our internal valuation experts to
evaluate the reasonableness of discount rate
applied in the management’s cash flow forecasts.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B R AR E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Wu Ka Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

e

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Revenue EERA 5
Construction services ERRARTS 11,151 —
Wastewater treatment facility VKR IR R
operation services R 7% 21,531 37,091
Sales of electricity generated from HEEYEREREE
biomass power plants KE I 31,245 26,800
Imputed interest income on receivables  ARFGEFFFEZHE T
under service concession FER L IE R EE
arrangements FBUTA 15,123 15,073
79,050 78,964
Cost of sales SHEK A (68,368) (74,120
Gross profit EF 10,682 4,844
Other income and gains EMUA R = 7 2,692 8,252
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHHB AR 29 - 6,035
Impairment loss recognised P BERREREE
in respect of goodwill 17 (39,889) (43,863)
Impairment loss recognised MUE - BE RREER
in respect of property, EOpERIEY Ei!
plant and equipment 15 (79,743) —
Administrative expenses TR (32,670) (24,710)
Finance costs BhE KA 8 (2,177) (1,449
Loss before tax BRF A E R 9 (141,105) (50,891)
Income tax expense FIS iR 12 (3,562) (9,856)
Loss for the year FABE (144,667) (60,747)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: A &5 FEIEF R (E518) % F -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ Y = DN (139,718) (61,074)
Non-controlling interests FEIE MR R (4,949) 327
(144,667) (60,747)
HK cents3&fli  HK cents/Bll
Loss per share R EE 14
— Basic — &R (12.58) (5.50)
— Diluted —#E (12.58) (5.50)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REBRBEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

2018 2017
—E—-N\=E —E—F

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT THETT

Loss for the year FANEHE (144,667) (60,747)

Other comprehensive (expense) Hi2m (B A

income
Items that may be reclassified GE1E AJBEEFT 7 A2 1B IR B -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBESX CERER
translation of foreign operations (2,568) 13,739
Fair value change on debt FEBEM 2 E WS
instruments at fair value through BARBENENERFE TR
other comprehensive income ANV ==L (128) —
Fair value change on AMfEHERE 2 ARBEES
available-for-sale investments - (805)
Investment revaluation reserve HEFEREM PR
released upon disposal of debt BAREENEF TR
instruments at fair value through ‘ERMIREEHEE
other comprehensive income 404 —
Investment revaluation reserve &R P EREE R
released upon disposal of IR EE GG
available-for-sale investments — (492)
Item that will not be reclassified to T EE D EE B EE -
profit or loss:
Actuarial loss of defined benefit RERFRNE 2 IBEEE
retirement plan (35) 21)
Total comprehensive expense FRE2AEMAXAE
for the year (146,994) (47,826)
Total comprehensive (expense) T FELAFAZE ()
income for the year attributable to: WAL
Owners of the Company RAREB A (141,843) (49,200)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R (5,151) 1,374

(146,994) (47,826)

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MR R

At 31 December 2018 R —E—/\F1+—-F=+—H

2018

—E2-N\F

HK$’000
FET

2017

B —+F
HK$’000
T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEE 15 54,493 134,326
Deposits for purchase of property, BEYX BELZREZEZS
plant and equipment 2,661 3,408
Receivables under service concession  ARIGHF sF i 2o HE T B9 JEU B
arrangements 16 285,230 290,159
Goodwill BES 17 - 42,242
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 19 - 10,311
Debt instruments at fair value through & @B E fth 2 FE U %S
other comprehensive income BARERENEFTA 19 8,193 —
Restricted bank deposits TR BRITFER 22 5,882 12,427
356,459 492,873
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 728 554
Receivables under service concession  ARFS 4 aF & 2 HE T B9 FE U FR IR
arrangements 16 29,109 28,970
Trade receivables B S ENGIE 20 8,018 6,284
Prepayments and other receivables TE I8 N E Ath FE YRR IR 21 7,385 64,394
Income tax recoverable B ENiEEy 930 338
Debt instruments at fair value through & @BE b 2 EUES
other comprehensive income BASEFEMNEFTA 19 23,060 —
Restricted bank deposits ZBRANRITIF K 22 5,882 —
Bank balances and cash IRITEREIRS 22 44,317 35,515
119,429 136,055
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B S IERFIR 23 4,971 9,313
Other payables and accruals Ht N RIBRETER 24 7,682 5,614
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~} B G 75 5K IE 25 3,424 6,474
Bank borrowings — due within one year R1T&5 — —F A E|Ef 26 32,517 30,240
Income tax payables FER TS AR 164 4,108
48,758 55,749
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 70,671 80,306
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDAES
LIABILITIES 427,130 573,179

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BB R

At 31 December 2018 R —F—/\E+=-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital gz 30 111 111
Reserves G 31 350,392 492,687
Equity attributable to owners ZIN/NCIE Y = DN e Ty
of the Company 350,503 492,798
Non-controlling interests FEIE MR R 23,873 29,024
TOTAL EQUITY RS HAEE 374,376 521,822
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year  $R1T{& — —F & 2| HA 26 6,720 8,960
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEAE 27 34,186 33,591
Provision for major overhauls EABISEE 28 11,040 8,635
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEFEE 36 808 171
52,754 51,357
427,130 573,179

The consolidated financial statements on pages 124 to 263 were 124 F 263 HHG A MR ER L ERS
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March A= ZFE—HE=H =+ = B#t /& R IER

2019 and are signed on its behalf by: g WEHNIATRAZEE -
Chau On Ta Yuen Chan Kwan
BA&RER R &
Chairman Executive Director
Ey HITEE

BERRERERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

©

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BtZ2 —F— F+=-A=+—HIF FZ

Attributable t 1s of the Company
EAELE
Share Investment Non-
Isstied Share option Other  Exchange General  revaluation  Retained controling
ceptal  premum  reseve  resene  reseve fesene  resene eamings
& WE REERN
HK$'000
Thn TR
(note 31a)
GIERIEY
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t%5-A-A 11 409,031 54 (31,476) (16,535) 20,597 505 159,665 541,952 27,650 569,602
(Loss) proft for the year Fi(E8) 2 - - - - - - - BT (61074 07 60,747)
Exchange differences arising on AERNEBES
translation of foreign operations LERER - - - - 1269 - - - 1260 1047 13739
Fair value change on iRERE
avallable-for-sale investments LANEEY - - - - - - (308) - (308) - (305)
Investment revaluation reserve LEMHIERARRRN
released upon dlsposal of e
avallable-for-sale investments - - - - - - (492) - (492) - (492)
Actuarial loss of defined benefit RERMEMRE
fetirement plan JREER - - - - - - - 21) 21) - 21)
Total comprehensive income En2EbE (FR) 68
(expensg) for the year - - - - 12,692 - (197 (61,09  (49,200) 1,374 (47,826)
Recognition of equity-settied B EREEER
share-based payments GG - - 4 - - - - - 4 - 4
Transfer to general reserve BET-HEE - - - - - 408 - 408) - - -
- - # - - 408 - ) 4 - 4
At 31 December 2017 RIF—t#F
T-A=t-H 11 409,031 100 (31,476) (3843 21,006 (29) 98,162 492,798 29,024 521,822

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018 Annual Report



e
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARE AL
Share Investment Non-
Issued Share option Other Exchange  General revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Sub-total interests

BRARE  RftEE RRERE ARRRE  EXRE  -BER REEMERE  REEA Nt FERER
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEx TEr TEn  TEr Tén TEr  TEn  TEnr  THn

(note 31a) (note 31b)
(Hiz3ta) (HzE31b)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (139718) (139718  (4,049)  (144667)
Exchange differences arising on BERNERES
tranglation of foreign operations  ZEREE = = = = (2,366) = = = (2366 (202 (2,568)
Fair value change on debt instruments  EBE 2 ENAR
at fair value through other DABHENERIA
comprehensive income LAREEY - - - - - - (128) = (128) = (128)
Investment revaluation reserve HEFBEM2ENA
released upon disposal of debt BONMEREN
instruments at fair value through EBTAGERY
other comprehensive income FASHER - - - - - - 404 = 404 = 404
Actuarial loss of defined beneft REEHERE
refirement plan REEER - - - - - - = (39) (39) = (39)
Total comprehensive (expense) EN2E (FR) halE
income for the year - - - ) - 76 (1975 (41843  (BI5) (14699
Repurchase of ordinary shares LiRREE - (473) - - - - - - (473 = (473)
Recognition of equty-settied TR
share-based payments BOLRES - - 2 - - - = = 2 = 2
Transfer to general resenve BRZ-HEE - - - - - 705 - (709) = - -
- (473) 21 - - 705 - (705) (452) - (452)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\E
TZR=1-H 1 408,558 121 (31,476) (6,209) 21,110 (16)  (42,296) 350,503 23,873 314,376

BERRERERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

2018

—E2-N\F

HK$’000
FET

2017
B —+F
HK$’000
T

Operating activities KT
Loss before tax BRELATE R (141,105) (50,891)
Adjustments for: HUATSIBEEL AR
Bank interest income FRITH BULA (979) (260)
Interest income from available-for-sale  AJ it &R E H T B UA
investments - (501)
Interest income from debt instruments & i@ E fib & UGS
at fair value through other BARERENERETA
comprehensive income FYF BUA (650) —
Depreciation of property, M -~ BENEETE
plant and equipment 12,949 12,402
Depreciation of assets classified DERFELEEERE
as held for sale - 11
Provision for major overhauls BARIEEE 2,058 1,349
Share-based payments ERR GBI 5K 21 46
Finance costs BB 2,177 1,449
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale  H & At H &% & HUES
investments - (492)
Loss on disposal of debt instruments B & & @EM 2 EUE
at fair value through other BARERENERETA
comprehensive income K18 404 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWB A K - (6,035)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE
in respect of goodwill 39,889 43,863
Impairment loss recognised MYE - BE L REER
in respect of property, KRB EE 18
plant and equipment 79,743 —
Contribution to defined benefit R EBFRRET I
retirement plans 604 152
(4,889) 1,093
(Increase) decrease in inventories FeGgm)ms (192) 356
Decrease in receivables under RIS FFRTHEZHE T Y
service concession arrangements JE B RIE R 4,940 21,298
Increase in trade receivables B 5 MW GIRE N (2,070) (3,444)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments TE A 38 K L Ath FE W sk TE R > (3800)
and other receivables 56,563 (1,828)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 S FIER (4,033) (11,596)
Increase in other payables and accruals — Hth JE {5 518 K FE R FR 120 2,254 1,458
Cash from operations KEEERIRE 52,573 7,337
Income tax paid BATFTEH (7,003) (5,470)
Net cash from operating activities & FBHELNELFHE 45,570 1,867

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

2018 2017
—®-\F —T—+%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAET
Investing activities REEH
Purchases of debt instruments BEAAHMEEWE
at fair value through other BRANBEFENGEBIA
comprehensive income (31,198) —
Purchases of property, BEWE  BEKEE
plant and equipment (12,490) (8,024)
Proceeds on disposal of debt HESAEMEEKEZARE
instruments at fair value through FrENEB I AEMNMEHIAE
other comprehensive income 10,126 —
Interest received from available-for-sale & 4k A] {t H &R EHIF &
investments 1,138 1,022
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - WEKERERNFTEHIE
plant and equipment — 80
Bank interest received EHERITHE 979 260
Deposits for purchase of property, BEYE BERREZZS
plant and equipment 747 (3,408)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FEXRHIRITER - (12,427)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments & B 7] it H &% & - (10,601)
Proceeds on disposal of HE A HERE TS HRIE
available-for-sale investments - 23,632
Net cash inflow from disposal of HE—FNBRARMNESRAFE
a subsidiary (note 29) (FfF5E29) - 2,883
Net cash used in investing activities R&EEEFANREFEHE (30,698) (1,583)
Financing activities REES
Repayment from a related party — A 8K (3,050) 69)
Repayments of bank borrowings ERIRITIERK (2,424) (4,497)
Interest paid BRFIE (1,612) (1,034)
Payment on repurchase of shares (] & A 1 B0 1< 3K (473) -
New bank borrowings raised FTIERITIER 2,181 11,200
Net cash (used in) from financing METEE (A EXENEESFE
activities (5,378) 5,601
Net increase in cash and REeERESEEY
cash equivalents EHNFEEE 9,494 5,885
Cash and cash equivalents FUHEESRESEEY
at beginning of the year 35,515 29,085
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ZMNE[E R S & H) L2 - JH5E (692) 545
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 44,317 35,515
Represented by: =
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LA 44,317 35,515

BRBRERERAQA
ZE-NFFHR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

GENERAL

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 39, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and the principal place
of business of the Company is Units 1-3, 11th Floor, Westlands
Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the

—RER

BERRERBRAB(AR
A R—HERSHESFMKTZ
WEREBRETAT  ERH
REBBERZMBER AR ([ B
RAT]) £ e AR R HY M 9
= FF i 4k A PO Box 39, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands » AN A]#)
FTEEEMBMREBERK20
HEMTOI1E13E -

RRARRREER AR - HET 8
MBARME R EBENMIEE40 -

e BmRAET(ET]) I
B BTSN RRIEEE -

RRAMETREESTERME
BEEA(FEEMEREE
Al

REFEETNERZHITFEM
BHREENRETE

RAFE  BRRFEREARA
AINEK B AR (G [ N&E])
EEREAUATHEEGFEIQ
S([BESMAE ) B2

current year:

HKFRS 9
EARBRERRF IR
HKFRS 15

BRI REERIF 155

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

B8 (EARN SRS REEER)
—REE 225

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BBV ERERE 25 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRS 4

E B BHE A
F4RUEFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB T ERIE 2857 (IBFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 40
EBGEHER|E 4055 (BETA)
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Financial Instruments

TRITHR

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related
Amendments

EPAHWARBRIEE]

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

SN2 7 B TR B

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

ERBROE MRS DB KRGS

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HEBVBHREERE 4R REENERATBMBER
EHRAF R EHMIA

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle

EREBMBRELN _ZE—MOEE_T - FRHPFE
o2 — &

Transfers of Investment Property
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the
date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening retained earnings
(or other components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance
with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018 and has used the practical expedient
for all contract modifications that occurred before the date of
initial application, the aggregate effect of all of the modifications
was reflected at the date of initial application. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

2.

BRI REBIIEEME
BEEN(EFBMEGEEE
R (%)

REFEBHENZHITEEM
BHmEERRIBRTE ()

BRNaES  RAFERAFET
BRI EERRER] ANE AR
SEARFEBEFENTHER
BRROR R St B4R A B S 3R
RATENRBELBEEATE -

BFRMBREE
WA

AEECRAFREERERES
MIFHREERE 155 - BAEYMK
HEEREIGHEMABLGAE
AIEA18RMA - BB GFTERE
1 SREEA A AR -

BIE155EF &

AEECEYEREENBRS
ERFEA65E - T A KERAZER
MRFFER T N\F—A—
BEXRER AR - RERE
REHZEREZRNBANRE &
M HEMmERRD (WaE)) i
R WEEFILLEER o BEIh
RBBBMBEREENE15HRZ
BEIEX - AEBEEERHN
E-NFE-—A—BRARATKZE
KEPEAZER - RERRKE
REMBHEAELHMEEDE
BAEAERBEEFER  YREX
FER BRI A BERNEE R
2o i BETHBRERKRLA
HREBEEBGTEF 18R LT
Bt ERIE 1 R RAEERER
S LB ERHELLE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Cont’d)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

U Construction services of wastewater treatment facilities
U Wastewater treatment facility operation services
o Sales of electricity generated from biomass power plants

HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach when recognising
revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

U Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are
disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

The Group has performed an assessment of the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 15 and concluded that the revenue recognition
of construction and operation of wastewater treatment facilities and
biomass power generation business are the same as the revenue
recognition prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15. Accordingly, the
application of HKFRS 15 does not have material financial impact on
the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in prior and current
years.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report

RRAMIIREBITEEME
BEEA((FEMEHREE
Al (#)

REFEBFENZMITETEM
BHEERRETE (&)

BRUBRELREISHREFE
L ONE )

AEETZE TIHEPAENE
HEZ EFBRRHER WS

. TE7K BE HE R e B B AR BR A%
. 57K BRIE R e ) 2 E AR TS

==
B3,

FRMBHRELERNF 1555 A

REZWA 2 AENE -

. £—% BRIEEPIL
ZAaH

. F-THANENTZE
HEE

. F=H BEXHE

. FNF: HENPZELD
BEENERSE

«  HIEH: REEEREH
B (LR (k) A %
WA

BRARRE BV HHREEAFE5
HMEH I AKERNEELS
SHRERFHIEE 2 IR M EE 5 KM
IWHE -

AEEEERBEEMBREE
AIFE1SE 2 BT - AR
AR K 2 )5 KB IR B e M
EYEEETRBEMERZE RN
ANERAF B HRELREAS
5% Al P RERE 2 B R WAER -
It EREEMBREEAFE A5
SR BB EFE AR FEER
EERBAZKEANRSEBREKR

MGTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification
and measurement requirements (including impairment under
ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and
has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. FHMIIREETEEME

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BEEN(FEMBHREE

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) B (%)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE REEEERWNENZMTEEM

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR BHREENRETE (HF)

(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) ERMBHREENEIREMTA
(#)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 BAEAE B B ERE 9N
EEZHEHRE

TRIVRARBEEVBREE
A2 958 ) &8 & 5t I 5 39 5%
XHEMEERRERRZERMEE
RERERBEH-_ZE-N\F—H
—BZDENFTEBR -

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of
financial assets subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

Debt
instruments
at fair value

through other
comprehensive

income
Available- EBREAM
for-sale 2 HEURER
investments BARE
AHEERE FFENEEIA
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Closing balance at 31 December RZE—tF
2017 — HKAS 39 +=ZA=+—H

MEARGER — BB

SRR 3955 10,311 —
Effect arising from initial aERE B
application of HKFRS 9: wELERIZE 958
FREEME
Reclassification EFOE
From available-for-sale investments BAtHERE (@) (10,311) 10,311
Opening balance at RZE—N\F—H—H
1 January 2018 B BRI AE R — 10,311

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRHAMITIREETTEBME

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BEEA(FEEMBEHREE

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) A1) (#)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE REFEERTNERZHITEEM

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR BHREENRETE(HEF)

(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) BERVBREENEIOREMTA

(48)

Notes: N

(a) Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments (a) AHHE((AIHEE]) RE
From AFS debt investments to FVTOC! A EHEEBREDEBRM

PEN RN ETE

Listed bonds with a fair value of HK$10,311,000 were reclassified At {E10,311,0008 7 2 £
from available-for-sale investments to debt instruments at FVTOCI, as BEHEEARAIHEEREEHHE
these investments are held within a business model whose objective is EFEBEMPEPEIEQERT
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these EZEKIA  WIHBARZER
assets and the contractual cash flows of these investments are solely & THIE BUWEE 8933 & 7 LA R
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. EEHAE 2 XBEAMESE -
Related fair value losses of HK$292,000 continued to accumulate in the MEBREGORESREAIH
investment revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2018. e RREERSHE - RZT

—N\FE—RA—H GEAREE
182092,000 8 THERERZRE

EXET A
There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation to these FERB AR EERE QT
assets from the application of HKFRS 9. BYUHRZSEEMRR 2SS

> B 48R
R -

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(b)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. Except for those
which had been determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, trade
receivables have been assessed individually with outstanding significant
balances, the remaining balances are grouped based on internal credit
rating. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore estimated the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables and the contract assets on
the same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
restricted bank deposits and bank balances, are assessed on 12m ECL
basis as there had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

All of the Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds that are
graded in the top credit rating among rating agencies. Therefore, these
investments are considered to be low credit risk investments and the
loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis.

As at 1 January 2018, there was no additional credit loss allowance
recognised against retained earnings.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Cont’d)

IMPACT ON THE OPENING CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ARISING FROM THE
APPLICATION OF ALL NEW STANDARDS

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies above,
the opening consolidated statement of financial position had to be
restated. The following table shows the adjustments recognised for
each of the line items affected. Line items that were not affected by
the changes have not been included.

2.

31 December

BRI REBIIEEME
BEEA((FEMEREE
R (%)

REFEBHENZHITEEM
BHmEERRIBRTE ()

F& P P A i R] 2 B3 HR ) R BR 4R
BUBRRRNEE

HAAEE S BRM Lt &
8 BMUGEEMBAORKATIA
B FTRINTHBEBEZFER
BFFERNREE TXEHTE
HIH B RB BREA °

1 January

2017 2018
(Audited) (Restated)
—E—+F HKFRS 9 —E-N\F
+-—A=+—~H BB E® —HB—H
(&)  HERFE I (BE5)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAET FAT FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Avalilable-for-sale investments AR ERE 10,311 (10,311) -
Debt instruments at fair FHBE M2 EI
value through other BIRANERE
comprehensive income MEBKTA — 10,311 10,311
Others with no adjustments Efb i B ARMIER 482,562 — 482,562
BRERERARAT
T \FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

RRAMIIREBITEEME
BEEA((FEMEHREE
Al (#)

E R 1E R REBBIETRIERE
AERMGEEER

AEBEWEEFERAATCHBM
1B R AR FTR] RGBT R

effective: BT AR
HKFRS 16 Leases'

BRI RELERIE 1658 HE!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

BB MELERFE 75K RipamE?2

HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!
(AR BHRERELZES) PSRRI ) N HEE 1 1

—REE 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB BIHRELRERZE 35 (BT )
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BERMBHREERE 9% (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28
BBV BHREERFE 105 &

BB GFTERE 2898 (5] 40)
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8
BEASHENE1RR

R T ACC RN,
Amendments to HKAS 19
BB G ERE 195 (IBE]AN)
Amendments to HKAS 28
EXEGTERIE 2858 (BRI )
Amendments to HKFRSs

Definition of a Business*

ES e

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

R A ER AT E R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

REEMEBMERNRIREEREL
M EEHESITES

Definition of Material®
BEARAMEES

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
BB - fmErEE!

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
REFE RN NEERE L REIER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle!

ERPBMEER (BFTA)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 16 LEASES

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Cont’d)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement for
land rights where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS
16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, there is no non-cancellable operating
lease commitments (2017: nil).

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$45,000 as rights under leases to which HKAS 17
applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Cont’d)

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17. Therefore, the
Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a
lease which already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to opening
retained earnings without restating comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report

3.

BEXEBE(#)

ARBEAMS2EENRFEAE
EERFRSFHEEERMKERL
BRKEEEEMIOERS -
THZERECTHEEHRAEH
FRS—EEERMGE - EE
EESBBEANER  AEEZE
BTMS2EENAERTAZ
BESABTETEEENEE
HEENRY EXERAVH
®EPHEN IEENAAE
HEHER FTFUETFE  EEE
B 7% R 5 R R B2 SR A R 7 49
BB Rz RGBT R
5 BAGENFE1THRBEESR
BRzHERSNANERES
SELUBLIFARENTE(H
W BAGERE 2RFERH
AR FENE L ERE36
S £ E R E P RV E FEE) BRI o

5N BB mETS - Akl
SPEREAAE B2 8 AKE
AR R AR AR
HEYERMEEHORAS -
B E-BRE=/ Whw
T

. F-RBABEBELSEER
AEBRHAARGHER
BEXRBENERT SN
HE CREAE)

. F_RBABEBESREE
FREERIBE R AIE
RZBABE(E—RAE
RHRERIN) © &

. F_BBABBEREEN
BEMNTABRGAZE -

TRETEREIIWOT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the cash-
generating unit within the group of cash- generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (UPON
APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (UPON
APPLICATION OF HKFRS 15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
TRANSITIONS IN NOTE 2) (Cont’d)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION

INPUT METHOD

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION (Cont’d)

EXISTENCE OF SIGNIFICANT FINANCING COMPONENT

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time value
of money if the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains a
significant financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly
stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to
by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION SERVICE OF WASTEWATER
TREATMENT FACILITIES

Revenue from provision of construction services of wastewater
treatment facilities is derived from long-term contracts with
customers. Such contracts are entered into before the services
begin. Under the term of contracts, the Group is contractually
required to perform the services at the customers’ specified sites
that the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (PRIOR TO 1 JANUARY 2018)

REVENUE FROM OPERATION OF WASTEWATER TREATMENT
FACILITIES

Revenue from provision of wastewater treatment operating services
is recognised at a point in time when service is rendered.

REVENUE FROM BIOMASS POWER GENERATION BUSINESS

Revenue from sales of electricity generated from biomass power
plants under service concession arrangement is recognised when
the Group has transmitted to the customers and the customers
accepted the electricity supplied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from construction
services is described in the accounting policy for construction
contracts below.

Service income, including that from operating service provided
under service concession arrangements, is recognised when
services are provided.

Sales of electricity generated from biomass power plants is
recognised when the goods and services are delivered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (PRIOR TO 1 JANUARY 2018)
(Cont’d)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Where the outcome of a construction contract including
construction or upgrade services of the infrastructure under a
service concession arrangement can be estimated reliably, revenue
and costs are recognised in profit or loss by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period as measured by the proportion that the value of work
performed to date to the estimated total contract costs. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the
extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipts is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (Cont’d)

When a contract covers a number of assets, the construction
of each asset is treated as a separate contract when separate
proposals have been submitted for each asset, each asset has
been separately negotiated and the costs and revenues of each
asset can be separately identified. A group of contracts, performed
concurrently or in a continuous sequence, is treated as a single
construction contract when the contracts were negotiated as
a single package and they are so closely inter-related that they
constitute a single project with an overall profit margin.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under trade and other receivables.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASING (Cont’d)

Land rights held under capitalised finance lease are included in
property, plant and equipment and not depreciated.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element at the initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan are
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS (Cont’d)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and

o remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit
costs in profit or loss in the line item. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions
in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of
when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when it recognises any related restructuring
costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration of
all non-market vesting condition is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont’d)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Share options granted to employees (Cont’d)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are non-recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of under construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN
GOODWILL (SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT
OF GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

3.

EXEBE(#)

FaE(FERLXAREEn
BRI ARRENRE

RBEHR AEEEHEER
FHERNABILEENKRE(E
HERTAPRBENEFEED
HIRBERRE - HHHRERNZS
BR - AlgbstEEN A KRE S
7 AEEREBE(INE) 212
& o

BEREECER A ATREz
B WA EREE AT @ & 5
B AEBEAGFZEEMBZ
ReEEEM 2] KNEEE - W
BEEAAE—HMOREE &
AEENEDEE@EMNRESEL
B AEMT AN EEEH
MEE-—BoEEENRSES
B &/ NMER o

A E S5 R A S ER SRR
LERBEZEE - REE
REER  fFtARRSRET
REAMAIRR RBREHIRE
AR ERREEHREREE R
TS HE RA AR B RRE R
BZEFHELREZEE (FRE
ELBM) 2BERR -

BRBRERERAQA
ZE-NFFHR

o



o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN
GOODWILL (SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT
OF GOODWILL ABOVE) (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY THE GRANTOR

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement)
is recognised to the extent that (a) the Group has an unconditional
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the
direction of the grantor for the construction services rendered and/
or the consideration paid and payable by the Group for the right to
charge users of the public service; and (b) the grantor has little, if
any, discretion to avoid payment, usually because the agreement
is enforceable by law. The Group has an unconditional right to
receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
Group (a) specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if
any, between amounts received from users of the public service
and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is
contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets
specified quality of efficiency requirements. The financial asset
(receivable under service concession arrangement) is accounted
for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial instruments”
below.

OPERATING SERVICES

Revenue and costs relating to operating services are accounted
for in accordance with the policy for “Revenue from contracts with
customers” upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 and “Revenue recognition” prior to 1 January
2018 above.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO RESTORE THE
INFRASTRUCTURE TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as a
condition of its licence, that is (a) to maintain the wastewater
treatment facilities it operates to a specified level of serviceability
and/or (b) to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangement. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
the wastewater treatment facilities are recognised and measured in
accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all costs of completion and cost necessary to make
the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, including those arising
from the contractual obligation specified in the service concession
arrangement to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is
handed over to the grantor, is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liabilities and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liabilities,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Cont’d)

)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &t —E— \F+ - A=+—HIF FF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Cont’d)

(ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the
carrying amounts of these debt instruments. The amounts
that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the
amounts that would have been recognised in profit or loss
if these debt instruments had been measured at amortised
cost. When these debt instruments are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Cont’d)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
income and gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, financial assets at FVTOCI, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL is updated at
the end of the reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

0) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit
rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default (Cont’d)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the internal credit basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and
amounts due from customers are each assessed
as a separate group. Loans to related parties are
assessed for expected credit losses on an individual

basis);
° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
For investments in debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these debt instruments.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: AFS financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated listed debt
securities as AFS financial assets on initial recognition of
those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period except for unquoted
equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS debt
instruments relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, and changes in foreign
exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including receivables under service concession
agreements, trade receivables, other receivables, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)

Financial assets, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When a trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (Cont’d)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investment, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified
as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instrument issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

AMORTISATION OF LAND RIGHTS

The Group classified the land rights held by a subsidiary, PT Rimba
Palma Sejahtera Lestri (“RPSL”), in Indonesia as finance leases
because the management considered that substantially all risks
and rewards are transferred to RPSL, even if at the end of the
lease term, titles do not pass to RPSL. Indonesian land rights are
granted for a stated period of time, with an extension option at an
immaterial cost. Land rights are also renewable after the extended
period term expires. Given the fact that land rights can be extended
at RPSLs option, the management considered that the term of land
rights is sufficiently long to indicate the transfer of risks and rewards
from the government to RPSL and the government’s interest in the
residual value of the underlying land is considered as insignificant.
Also, the management considered that RPSL has the ability and
intent to renew the land leases in perpetuity, the useful life of the
land rights are in perpetuity and hence are not depreciated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL RELATING TO BUSINESS
OPERATION IN INDONESIA

Determining whether property, plant and equipment and goodwill
is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the property, plant and
equipment and goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows, further
impairment loss may arise. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$79,743,000
in respect of property, plant and equipment and HK$39,889,000
in respect of goodwill after assessing the recoverable amount of
CGU which is principally engaged in the biomass power generation
business in the Indonesia (“Biomass Plant”).

The management’s assessment of property, plant and equipment
and goodwill impairment is highly judgmental and is dependent
on certain key assumptions including the discount rate, growth
rates and budgeted sales, and gross margin, which are affected by
expected future market or economic conditions, particularly those
in the Indonesia. An independent qualified professional valuer is
engaged to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU. The detail
assumptions were set out in note 18.
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AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into the build-operate-transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangements in wastewater treatment. The Group concluded that
the BOT arrangements are service concession arrangements under
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements, because the
local government controls and regulates the services that the Group
must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service
charge. In addition, upon expiry of concession right agreement, the
infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government at nil
consideration.

Revenue from the construction of wastewater treatment facilities
under the terms of a BOT contract is estimated on a cost-
plus basis in which the construction margin is determined with
reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margins of market
comparables at the time of construction, and is recognised using
the percentage-of-completion method, measured by reference
to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total
cost of the relevant contract. The revenue from the construction
of wastewater treatment facilities has recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$11,151,000 (2017: nil).

Imputed interest income is recognised from time to time on
receivables under service concession arrangements on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts over the service concession period
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The relevant effective interest rate is determined with reference
to the yield of corporate bonds of comparable infrastructure
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS OF WASTEWATER
TREATMENT FACILITIES TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified level of
serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the
service concession arrangement. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore infrastructure, except for any upgrade element,
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the
best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of each reporting period. The
estimation of the expenditure requires the Group to estimate the
expected future cash outlays on major overhauls of the wastewater
treatment facilities over the service concession periods and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the provision for
major overhauls carried as a liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018 was HK$11,040,000
(2017: HK$8,635,000), further details of which are set out in note
28.

PROVISION OF ECL AND IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
UNDER SERVICES CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS AND
TRADE RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group individually
calculate ECL for the receivables under services concession
arrangements and trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings. The rates are based on the Group’s
historical default rates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the ECL
are disclosed in note 34.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

PROVISION OF ECL AND IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
UNDER SERVICES CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS AND
TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the policy for
provision for impairment of receivables under service concession
arrangements is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of accounts and on the management’s estimation.
A considerable amount of estimation is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each trade and
other receivable. If the financial conditions of receivables under
service concession arrangement were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC and
the Republic of Indonesia (the “Indonesia”). The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of its transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provision accordingly.
However, a judgement is required in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes as there are many transactions and
calculations of which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the periods in which the determination is
made. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities is set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and note 27.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY 4. BT RE&REN
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d) BRI EERIE (&)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d) At FABE RO EERIE ()
CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) EEARLIE KB RE ()

Deferred tax liabilities have been recognised for withholding taxes B2 AR &R B R A B BT K S Y B B
that would be payable on certain portion of the unremitted earnings RNAVBHWNENTONE TH DK
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries PE [0 2 A FE B AN ) TR N B A SR B
established in the PRC since it is probable that these subsidiaries ERBEE RERZENEBAR
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. Where the AR RERAIGEEDREBEA
final distribution portion of earnings is larger than the amount that o MAFNRKED KRB =R
initially recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax in EARNEHE  ZSEREF
the periods in which the distribution is made. Further details of the o REABOFER - BRZE
temporary difference associated with investment in subsidiaries are MEBAR R EREN TR EE
set out in note 27. R — P IBE MR 27 -
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B N\FER



el

188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &t —E— \F+ - A=+—HIF FF

5. REVENUE BEXIA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Types of goods and services R R RIS ER
Construction services R 11,151 —
Wastewater treatment facility VKR IR RN B PR TS
operation services 21,531 37,091
Sales of electricity generated HEEMEREREENE
from biomass power plants 31,245 26,800
Revenue from goods and 72 am M AR TS & SR ML
services 63,927 63,891
Imputed interest income on BRIS R et e HE T PR IE
receivables under service HENEWA
concession arrangements 15,123 15,073
79,050 78,964
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR B
A point in time A E— A2 52,776
Over time BE R [ 11,151
Revenue from goods and services E M AR i FE U A 63,927

The contracts for construction services, wastewater treatment
facility operation services and sales of electricity generated from
biomass power plants are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

REVENUE (Cont’d) 5. BERA(E)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts IWTAEREBEFAEHMNEZERA
with customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment HAEHER TR SRR
information.

2018
= ks
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total

0 H BE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TRT TR TR TR

Construction services B - 11,151 - 11,151
Wastewater treatment facilities S5 7KEE 32 2%

operation services e 8 AR 1% - 21,531 - 21,531
Sales of electricity generated  $HE ALY E B

from biomass power plants EEXNE — — 31,245 31,245

Revenue from contracts with KEBEFPAHY

customers EOESEIPN - 32,682 31,245 63,927
Imputed interest income on RIS T ELHET

receivables under service FEW S IEHEE

concession arrangements FEU A — 15,123 — 15,123
Total revenue PN - 47,805 31,245 79,050
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. SHWHEH
The Group is engaged in the construction and operation of ?%@?ﬁé%@%&&%gﬁmﬁﬁ
wastewater treatment facilities and biomass power generation E&ﬁ’tﬁ%&i%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ% ° 39:3#?
business. Information reported to the Group’s chief operating %ZK%IE?@&K)\(EWMT
decision maker (i.e. the executive directors) for the purposes of %) D&{?E’ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%\iﬁﬁ
resource allocation and assessment of performance is focused on .z HMER %EP EEAT ﬁﬁ
geographical location of its manpower and customers including REFHMEMNE  BIEES
Hong Kong, PRC and Indonesia. R ENfE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. SEEE ()
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS SRR A B SRR
The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue and results by REERZ2|MLEEDF WA
reportable and operating segments: REESIFTWT -
Year ended 31 December 2018 BEZE-_Z—-N\E+=-A=+—H
ILEE

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BB H Enfe Act

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER

Results £ |
Segment revenue DEBUA - 47,805 31,245 79,050
Segment (loss) profit o E (&) ‘| F (17,776) 10,330 (93,751) (101,197)
Unallocated expenses ROEEAX
Administrative expenses TEAY (19)
Impairment loss recognised ERREERESE
in respect of goodwill (39,889)
Loss before tax B RIEE (141,105)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ-ZF—+t&+=-A=+—H
ILFE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BE a2 e st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FTAT
Results £ |
Segment revenue D EMA - 52,164 26,800 78,964
Segment (loss) profit o E (E18) ‘| F (14,929) 11,620 (9,739) (13,048)
Unallocated expenses ROEEAX
Administrative expenses TEAY (15)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —RKIE A AUk 6,035
Impairment loss recognised ERREERESE
in respect of goodwill (43,863)
Loss before tax BRTE A B (50,891)
There are no inter-segment sales for both years. MIEFE &S PEEE -
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external P 2RO E S ERAEKE
customers. HNEREE P o
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segments:

At 31 December 2018

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SEPEH (4#)
SBEERAR

AREBRAZMLEKLE D HBE D
ZEENABOIMT:

R-ZE-—N\E+=ZHA=+—H

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
Bk H Z1) =2 gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT TAET THET THER
Assets ﬁ/:?*:
Segment and total DR EE
consolidated assets iz ABERE 51,295 338,082 86,511 475,888
Liabilities g /5
Segment and total NEEEEE
consolidated liabilities i‘ﬁ/\ﬁ{z a8 42,410 54,561 4,541 101,512

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Hong Kong
BB

HK$°000
T

HK$°000

BE-E-N\F+=ZA=+—H
ILFE

PRC Indonesia Total
H e #t
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TERT TET

Amounts included in the AR ER & F

measure of segment SEE

profit or loss or FOEHEE

segment assets: o ox- o
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE

(note) (B3E) - 1,156 11,334 12,490
Impairment loss recognised HUE - BER

in respect of property, RiEHER

plant and equipment HEEE - - 79,743 79,743
Depreciation of property, plant Y ER e

and equipment S LN - 410 12,539 12,949
Bank interest income RITHBHA 57 34 888 979

BRBRERERAQA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. SEEE ()
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d) PTHRERAR(HE)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—t&+=A=+—H
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B a2 ENfE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FAT FAT FTAT
Assets BE
Segment and total NI EEE
consolidated assets MiraBERA 85,283 341,046 202,599 628,928
Liabilities BE
Segment and total DA BE
consolidated liabilities MizEaERE 47,700 53,714 5,692 107,106
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZE—+tH&+=-HA=+—H
ILFE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B H ENfE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FAT FAT FTAT
Amounts included in the AR EREF
measure of segment /&8
profit or loss or SN EEE
segment assets: LB

Additions to non-current assets NEIERBEE

(note) (ii=3) - 469 2,555 3,024
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BER

and equipment RiETE - 366 12,036 12,402
Depreciation of assets classified 4B A#HE

as held for sale HEEERE - 11 - 11
Bank interest income RITHEMA 14 47 199 260
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PEEE (F)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d) PHEERAR (&)

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of the AEBEKREEZWES D 2R
assets are detailed below: BEEFYIAT ¢

Non-current assets

FRBEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T FEIT

PRC F 287,570 201,817

Indonesia Elfe 54,814 178,318

342,384 470,135
Note:  Non-current assets excluded debt instruments at FVTOCI, available-for- Mt ERBEETRIEEBEMER
sale investments and restricted bank deposits. WA EFTENES TR

R ERE R ZRBIRITFR

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing MEFEMEAREBRKA10%A E
over 10% of the Group’s revenue are as follows: MEFET :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Customer A from the PRC segment FESIHEFA 37,600 41,947
Customer B from the Indonesia segment ENFE Z3&F B 31,245 26,800
Customer C from the PRC segment FESEHEFC 10,205 10,217

BERRERERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &t —E— \F+ - A=+—HIF FF

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. Hhg A RIS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITH EMA 979 260
Interest income from debt instruments & i@ E b 2 E U ESIE
at FVTOCI/available-for-sale RNAERTAR
investments ETA AL E
RENBUWA 650 501
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEERE R
investments — 492
Foreign exchange (loss) gain, net HNEE (B518) Was 558 (3,816) 526
Government grants (note) ERATHE B (B 5E) 1,365 2,319
Refund of value-added tax BE R 3,114 3,488
Others Hib 400 666
2,692 8,252
Note: Government grants have been received from local governments sk : BEMRRIEESII&HEMS

BT REE) - RZTE—N\FRZ
T—t+F+-A=+—HlEs
FAZ SRR TN R A

in Jiangsu Province for the purpose of carrying out environmental
protection works. There were no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Eto
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFRAIFE 1,612 1,034
Increase in discounted amounts of R R mEE
provision for major overhauls arising K E RSB BRI R
from the passage of time (note 28) IR RN (FIFE28) 565 415

2,177 1,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. FRIRBIES 1B
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Loss before tax has been arrived MR AT EEE kK
at after charging (crediting): (5T A) :

Employee benefit expense (including EERFAZ (BREESHE

directors’ remuneration (note 10)): (FfzE10)) -
Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 18,642 18,084
Discretionary bonus BEIEAL 120 120
Pension scheme contributions (note) BRIRE B R (FRE) 2,236 1,973
Share-based payments B K 3K 21 46
21,019 20,223
Cost of construction services IR ARIG A A 8,875 —
Cost of wastewater treatment facilities ~ $2 57K BRI 38 s 2 48 AR 7%
operation services rendered 0] 27,039 40,393
Cost of power plant operation BEHEEXN (BIEER
(including cost of inventories RAXNFERAR
recognised as expenses 21,999,000 77T
of HK$21,999,000 (ZT—+t%F:
(2017: HK$25,054,000)) 25,054,0007%70)) 33,060 33,727
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERRETE
and equipment 12,949 12,402
Impairment loss recognised in BRI R EEE
respect of goodwiill 39,889 43,863
Impairment loss recognised in respect LI - BB MERETER
of property, plant and equipment EO)ERIEN SEis 79,743 —
Depreciation of assets classified DERBIELEEENE
as held for sale — 11
Minimum lease payments under KEAE THRERERNK
operating lease - 59
Auditors’ remuneration L GIEA 1,300 1,300
Foreign exchange loss (gain), net SN B 1R (Yas ) 58 3,816 (526)
Provision for major overhauls BBAREEE 2,058 1,349
Note: At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited contributions Mz : RZT—NF+ZA=+—8 "
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future AEEBERZWHKAIR DK
years (2017: nil). REEHRKRSHBEER(ZE
—tF &) e

BERRERERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERRETHRARTHMH
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BEEA EMAURARHERE
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, FREZFRNEZRERTBASR
is as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FET
Directors’ fees =Rl 2,060 2,085
Other emoluments: HiiE
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,345 987
Pension scheme contributions RIRESFEIERK 18 18
2,363 1,005
4,423 3,090
(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A) WIUFRITEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hERZ+ 120 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung R HEAE 120 120
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict MeEBE A 100 100
340 340
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments LB IERMTEE 2ME I
shown above were for their services as directors of the BEVERRNRBIESMIRERS
Company. 2 E e o
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRUTESZNBIIFERTESH
independent non-executive directors during the year (2017: e (ZE—tF - &) -
nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERERETHRARTHMH
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) (#)
(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE (B) BMITEERIMITETF
DIRECTORS

Salaries Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments

FER BikE
He Hi g HRIf [t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TR

Year ended 31 December 2018  HEZ=F—-N\F

t=A=1+-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BLERTE 1,320 68 - 1,388
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) RE S (778 #8%) 100 1,834 18 1,952
Mr. Suhendra Radius BEALE 100 - - 100
1,520 1,902 18 3,440
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BRiEM T E 100 443 = 543
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny BBALE 100 - - 100
200 443 - 643
1,720 2,345 18 4,083
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Fees

e
HK$'000
57

10.

EFERESITHRARTHH

(#)

(B) BITEFERFMITES
(#)

REETES] Pension
and other scheme Total
benefits  contributions emoluments

Fek BRE
At AR TEIfR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT

Year ended 31 December 2017  BZE=F—t&

t=ZA=+—-HLEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen B EREE 1,320 69 - 1,389
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) ~ TRE 4%t (774%) 100 918 18 1,036
Mr. Suhendra Radius BEALE 125 - — 125
1,545 987 18 2,550
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BRIEMEE 100 - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny BEALE 100 - - 100
200 - - 200
1,745 987 18 2,750

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. IgEEHFMNER
The five highest paid employees during the year included two FARLARaTNEEREMA
directors (2017: two directors), details of whose remuneration are —E—tF -WMB)EFEH
set out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year Bl FEIE RS EXXHIFE10
of the remaining three (2017: three) non-director, highest paid AR T=%R(ZF—tF: =4)
employees are as follows: FEEZESFTMES 2FHMET
BEIIAT -
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Employees’ salaries and other benefits & 8 #r & & EAth1& F 2,902 2,204
Discretionary bonus EIEIEAT 119 100
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B 75 32
Share-based payments ERRD B 21 46
3,117 2,382
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose BN ATHEIEEEN RS
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: FHEENEBEWT

Number of employees

EEHA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,00078 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77L& 1,500,000 %57 2 1
3 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FRiGIRBAY

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT

PRC tax hEIRIE
Charge for the year FAZH 2,464 6,493
Underprovision in prior years BEFEBRETR 38 2,584
Deferred tax (note 27) EIERL TR (MI5E27) 1,060 779
Total tax charge for the year FRBIEZ HRRE 3,562 9,856

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2017: nil).

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.

Withholding tax is calculated at 5% of the dividend income received
from a subsidiary in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The provision for the PRC income tax is based on the respective
corporate income tax rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in
the PRC as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations of the PRC.

No provision for Indonesian income tax had been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Indonesia
during the year (2017: nil).

Haian Hengfa Wastewater Treatment Company Limited (“Haian
Hengfa”) and Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment Company Limited
(“Rugao Hengfa”) obtained preferential income tax treatment
whereby their income taxes are charged at the taxable profit with
an exemption of 10% of the revenue generated for the year ended
31 December 2016. However, the in-charge PRC tax bureau of
Rugao Hengfa issued a notice in March 2018 that Rugao Hengfa
did not fulfil the conditions for preferential income tax treatment
after conducting reassessment for the years ended 31 December
2014, 2015 and 2016. Accordingly, additional PRC tax provision
for the possible denial of preferential income tax treatment to both
Rugao Hengfa and Haian Hengfa at HK$2,584,000 in total for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was recognised. Taxable profit for
Haian Hengfa and Rugao Hengfa have been prepared without the
exemption of 10% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

12.

FRiSIRBAST (#F)

REPTEHEERRBEALRHE
B0 BT /B8 22 =) A3 R 3 4% o BRI AR R
FISBMRAIERPIEEN S D
EFEBEMEDL ©

BRAEERFE R EREEE
EEMARFBEHN (— T -t
&) BB FHRED B PR S B
e

BREZSKEEBERAR(E
ZER|) RINZEEKEEER
RE([MRER|)ESHER
BEFR Bt BRER10%
REE-_ZE—R"F+_A=+—
HIEFEEENEZEWRANER
PRGBS - Al - 1T
NMREENFEBEERNR_Z
—\FE=ZRABHBEN - HEHE
EZTE—WFE - ZE-HFEZ
E—-RNE+-A=+—HILFEE
ETEMFEEEROREEL
TMEMSHESRFBEMEMYE -
A, =T —tF+=A
=+ —HIEFE  ROREER
BREENFSHERFE /L
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 12.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss) profit before
tax at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which the Company’s
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the Group’s
effective tax rate is as follows:

FRiGIRBASZ (#%)

12 7K X B Y 8 2~ B RE I AR AL PR
BIAME R R TE B R G B HBR R
A (8 ) a8 M) 38 A 1 A5 1R B S £
BAKEERRERFENHIARF
SHJEERIAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHATT

Loss before tax BRAE A& 1R (141,105) (50,891)

Tax at the statutory tax rates at 25% AT MRE 25% st E TR (35,276) (12,723)

Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 38 2,584
Effect of withholding tax on the TEHNT 7 5= B BT

distributable profits of the Group’s NSRS gl 0f -7

subsidiaries in the PRC 268 974
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBAZ BB E

for tax purpose (2,591) (341)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A MG 2 TS/ &

for tax purpose 37,015 16,819

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERFIAKIE 2 FRIEZ £ 3,847 2,293
The effect of deductive temporary RER AR E Rt =58

difference not recognised pd-7% 261 250

Tax charge for the year FAMIBZ L 3,562 9,856

13. DIVIDEND 13. B2

No interim or final dividend was proposed during both years, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

LOSS PER SHARE 14. SEREGE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RAR A ABLERER RS
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: SEEBFTEER TSR
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Loss for the purposes of basic and MEREARREEEE
diluted loss per share, being loss inE &8 - BIARAA
for the year attributable to owners BB ANERFAEE
of the Company (139,718) (61,074)

Number of shares

B EE
2018 2017

—E—N\&E —ZT—+4F
000 {00]0)
T A% TFh%

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ St EREAREEM S

shares for the purpose of 2 & BN 8L
basic loss per share 1,110,975 1,111,000
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the BE_ZE—N\EEk=-ZF—+t#F
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise TZA=+T—BLFE  BAXR
of the Company’s outstanding share option since their exercise AERE TEEERERERE
would result in a decrease in loss per share. WL WA ESREEBHERY
RERBITEARRARITEOER
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

15.

Q@

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - BEREE

Construction Equipment
in Land and and Office Motor
progress Landrights  buildings machines equipment  vehicles Total
EEIR THE THREF REREE BAIERE RE oy
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT ThL THL THET THET TAL BT
00ST R
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—-A-A 287 5,033 6,125 133,763 824 1,255 147,287
Additions "E 179 402 119 1,710 212 402 3,024
Disposal HE - - - - - (111) (111)
Transfer g (470) - 448 22 - - -
Exchange realignment ] 4 14 17 517 28 34 614
At 31 December 2017 N
+-A=+-H - 5,449 6,709 136,012 1,064 1,680 160,814
Additions hE 10,541 426 20 1,042 391 - 12,490
Disposal HE - - - - ® (224) (232)
Exchange realignment T (978) (330) (366) (7,227) (36) (36) (8,973)
At31December2018  R=-Z-N\#&
+ZA=t-H 9,563 5,545 6,433 129,827 1,411 1,320 154,099
DEPRECIATION AND HERRME
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+&
—A—A - - 89 2,765 531 e 4,157
Provided for the year EREE - - 520 11,639 121 122 12,402
Eliminated by disposal BRHENH - - - - - (31) (31)
Exchange realignment ] - - () (80) 16 29 (40)
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—tF
+=A=1+-H - - 604 14,324 668 892 16,488
Provided for the year EREE — - 544 12,141 128 136 12,949
Impairment loss recognised  FRE B ERR
for the year 6,158 3,198 3,619 66,655 39 74 79,743
Eliminated by disposal BRHENH — - — — — (213) (213)
Exchange realignment ] (579) (297) 418) (8,022) (28) (23) (9,361)
At31December2018  R=E-N\E
+ZA=+-H 5,585 2,901 4,349 85,098 807 866 99,606
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At31December2018 ~ R=E-N\F
+ZA=t-H 3,978 2,644 2,084 44,729 604 454 54,493
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+ZA=1+-H - 5,449 6,105 121,688 39 688 134,326
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ %2 —Z&

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above property, plant and equipment, except for construction
in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Land and buildings 0% — 9%
Equipment and machines 10% — 20%
Office equipment 18% — 20%
Motor vehicles 12.5% — 20%

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group carried
out a review of the recoverable amounts of the related property,
plant and equipment of the subsidiary, PT Rimba Plama Sejahtera
Lestari, which are used in the Group’s biomass power generation
business. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have
been determined on the basis of their value in use. These valuations
are performed by independent qualified professional valuers from
AVISTA Group, who are members of the Institute of Valuers and
not connected with the Group. The review led to the recognition of
an impairment loss of HK$79,743,000 (2017: nil) which has been
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The impairment loss is charged pro rata to the property, plant
and equipment of the subsidiary related to the biomass power
generation business. The impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment has been disclosed in the profit or loss as a separate
line item. Details are set out in note 18.

Management also assessed the potential for impairment of the
Group’s remaining property, plant and equipment and is satisfied
that no objective evidence of impairment loss existed for these
assets.

15.

mEMBRRME

—NFF+ZA=F—HIFE

W% - BE Bk ()

it - BE k&S (IR
BROMN T B R ABE SRR
T

TH REF 0% — 9%

BN = 10% — 20%
P NE i 18% — 20%
B 12.5% — 20%

HE-_ZTZ-—NF+_A=+—
HIEFE AEEHMHNEQ A
PT Rimba Plama Sejahtera Lestari
RAEBEYEEEXBMER
HEWE - BB R&E 2 P E
PRETEMN BHEEENA
Ko AAEGFHREBEARE
HETF  ZEFHEIEDHER
SEVEBAEZBISERMGLE
MzxmEMEeXN BN ESHEE
HIT - ZEHEBERRERE
79,743,000 T( Z T — £ F -
) MEBREEEEREEC
T-N\F+ZA=+—HLFE
FEERER - BIEE BRI E
ERENMBEREEBONER
WY - BB RFRET R - %
X BEERREBZREEBEEDR
BaEBEA—BEYIER -5
M 18 ©

EEENEFEASTEGR Y
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

16.

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities in the PRC
on a BOT basis in respect of its wastewater treatment services.
Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group has
to design, construct, operate and manage wastewater treatment
facilities in the PRC over the service concession periods. The
governmental authorities guarantee that the Group will receive
minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements
or receive a top up fee depending on the volume of water that
the wastewater treatment facilities treated. The Group is generally
entitled to use the wastewater treatment facilities and the related
facilities (the “Facilities”). However, the Group has the obligation
to maintain the Facilities in good condition and the Facilities will be
transferred to the relevant governmental authorities at a specified
level of serviceability upon expiry of the concession periods. The
service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options.
The BOT agreements do not grant any termination rights to any of
the contracting parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ %2 —Z&

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 4 (2017: 4) service
concession arrangements on wastewater treatment with two
governmental authorities in the PRC and a summary of the major
terms of the principal service concession arrangements are set out

mEMBRRME

—NFF+ZA=F—HIFE

16. BRBEBFERFETHEKRR
T (#)

hY J—
AT

—NFt+ZA=+—8"

ZRE B B B B BUN R RT AL 4

B(ZT—+1%5F : 418)757KEER
RIGRFFTREREE - TERBRAT

as follows: LN EBIEZBMEEH T
Type of
service
Name of company Name of concession Designed Service
as operator* wastewater equipment processing concession
EREER treatment facility Location Nature of grantor PR ts T capacity period
WA ER BRREREEE g BFAER RERR Rt RERD PR far
Haian Hengfa Haian Hengfa Haian Country, Haian County BOT on 20,000 28 years from 2002 to
BEER Municipal Nantong City Construction Bureau wastewater 2030 and extended to
Wastewater Bl BRERER treatment 20361in 2013
Treatment Facility BEAKER 2% =TT =F
(Phase | #BOT BAEZS=FFI
BREETH TRZF-=FERE
SKERRIE ey
(—H)
Haian Hengfa Haian Hengfa Haian Country, Haian County BOTon 20,000 22.5 years from 2013
BREY Municipal Nantong City Construction Bureau wastewater 10 2036
Wastewater Ehhe BRERTR treatment 25% =%
Treatment Facility BEAKER RHEZE=RFI
(Phase Il) #BOT
BREETH
USRS
(=H)
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Rugao County, Rugao Economic BOTon 20,000 25 years from 2007 to
mEEE Municipal and Nantong City and Technological wastewater 2032 and extended to
Industrial BRTNEE Development Zone treatment 2035 in 2009
Wastewater Administrative BESKEE BF W-TTLF
Treatment Facilty Committee #1BOT jih i:gziﬁﬁ
(Phase ) MEEER TR-EENEFERE
MEEBT] FEEEZE e
RIERKEERR
(—H)
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Rugao County, Rugao Economic and BOT on 20,000 25 years from 2015
mEEE Municipal and Nantong City Technological wastewater t0 2035
Industrial Wastewater ~ EIBM IR Development Zone freatment B4 f-F-TE
Treatment Facility Administrative BEAKEE B E-E=REE
(Phase Il Committee f1BOT
MEEEHR ML AR
RIERKEER FEEEZE
(=H)
* The official name of the grantor is in Chinese. The English translation is * BT ANEHGEAET \K%ﬁi °

for identification purposes only.
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PR ERR L

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFE

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group is
granted the rights to use the property, plant and equipment of the
wastewater treatment facilities and certain related land during the
service concession periods. The Group is required to surrender
these items of property, plant and equipment to the grantors at a
specified level of serviceability at the end of the respective service
concession periods. As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the
title certificates with respect to certain land use rights of certain
wastewater treatment facilities to which the Group’s service
concession arrangements relate have not been registered under
the names of the relevant Group companies. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to the lawful
and valid occupation or use of the buildings and land to which the
above-mentioned land use rights during the respective concession
periods for nil consideration for providing wastewater treatment
services under the relevant BOT agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue and profit were
recognised for exchanging construction services for a financial
asset amounting and HK$11,151,000 (2017: nil) and HK$2,276,000
(2017: nil). Considerations for revenue related to the construction
and operation services under BOT arrangements were recognised
as “receivables under service concession arrangements” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Receivables under service concession

16.

ARTSAFFTREZBE T M RUGRIR

BRI eT I R HE T RO FE UL &
TR (#)

BERBG ST ERE  NEEE
F%#%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ@%ﬁmﬁ
R - BB R HE &
F@%im $$@MFR%
TR ET HA 45 RS I — TE AT 4R (A
BKFEEZEME - BB RE ﬁ
HEBRETFA RZZE—LF
r=ZF-N\F+=ZA=+—8"
FRAREEREETELTHENE
FIEKEERBER A T LA
EHEEEFETARBZLZNEEAR
SERFIMNET - RRARNES
R BIEHEBBOTLZHE - A%
BB ENEBSFHARRERS

KEEREUAEREEGER UL
Rk AZEHE bl T A%
BERAREFR LM -

Bz N\Ft+=-A=+—8
IEFE BUBERBIRS R
BERREERARGHEES

11,151,000 Tt( =& — £ F:
) 2,276,000 (- —+
o) o EBOTLHIE NEER
KERBEBHEEWRARER
FREMBIRARERS [ R
EZBE TR WA -

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—tF
HK$’000
THAT

HK$°000
FTERT

arrangements 314,339 319,129
Portion classified as current assets DEARSDEENI D (29,109) (28,970)
Portion classified as non-current assets 9 8AIERBNEER D 285,230 290,159
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

The following is an aged analysis of receivables under service
concession arrangements, based on the invoice date, at the end of
the reporting period:

REGFFERETROEK®
T (#)

RMEHR - RIBEZHZ AR
TSR T RUER BRI
DT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Billed: ERAEE
Within 3 months 3EAR 12,113 12,243
4 to 6 months 4ZE61{EA 7,268 7,341
19,381 19,584
Not vet billed mARFAELEE 294,958 299,545
314,339 319,129

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses.
For receivables under service concession arrangements, they
are assessed individually for impairment allowance based on
the historical credit losses experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the end of each reporting period, including time value
of money where appropriate.

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements for impairment, no additional credit loss allowance
was recognised upon application of HKFRS 9 as the amount was
considered as insignificant. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and subsequent settlement,
and considered that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RZFB-—NFE—-A—-HBRAEL
s EREIRIL - AEEE
AT ERAHMEREBIEEL
B o IRISEFRT L P T R
FIARBBEEEERERIAR
B AR E R R - iR B E R
A EEREBERIA K F B AR
B ¥ E AR B TR 75 R BT 1
AHE (BRSENSHEEE) (E
) BB ERRELHE -

RZF—N\F—A—H X2Q7A
B EpUREEN L EANRER
TR AR BE TR B ICER - T
RERAE B ERE LR F 9FR1R
WEEZRBIMEERBERE R
AREMERLTEKN - AEE
W B R T AR A AR

WoB—tE+=—A=+—8"
AEEDFEEMNHEE  BE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Receivables under service concession arrangements are usually
due for settlement within 10 days after each month end. Included
in the Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$19,381,000
(2017: HK$19,584,000) which have been past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss.

Aging of receivables under service concession arrangements
which are past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2017 is as

16.

BRI eT I R HE T RO FE UL &
TR (#)

R 75 5 BT HE 2 BE T /9 FE W RIE
BERESAKZIOBREIHE
B - AEERBETFELTHET
MEWZEDEERETDERBES
19,381,000 T( =& — £ & :
19,584,000870) Z &7 » &%
ERFESRDE  AKET
ERULVE BB -

R-FB—tF+_A=1+—H&E
HHE SR E 2 RS LHET

follows: R FEU T IR Z BRER D ATAN T
2017
—T—tF
HK$’000
TET
Within 1 month 1EAN 4,902
1 — 3 months 12 3@ A 7,341
4 — 6 months 472 6{EA 7,341
Total 4EEE 19,584
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

GOODWILL

[}

HK$’000
THETT

COST DN

At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HF—H 85,699
Exchange adjustments ME 54, 8 299
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-HA=+—H 85,998
Exchange adjustments bE 5 SRR (4,591)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—-N\E+=ZA=+—H 81,407
IMPAIRMENT I

At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HF—H —
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRER 2 REEE 43,863
Exchange adjustments bE 5, S (107)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tF+_A=+—H 43,756
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRERZREEE 39,889
Exchange adjustments bE H TR (2,238)
At December 2018 RZE—-NE+ZA 81,407
CARRYING VALUES BREIE

At 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—H -
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=—H=+—H 42,242

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed
in note 18.

The amount represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of Weal
Union Limited and its subsidiary (the “Weal Union Group”) on 21
October 2016. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets
have been determined on the basis of their value in use. These
valuations are performed by independent qualified professional
valuers from AVISTA Group, who are members of the Institute of
Valuers and not connected with the Group. The impairment loss
is charged pro rata to the property, plant and equipment of the
subsidiary related to the biomass power generation business. The
impairment loss on goodwill has been disclosed in the profit or loss
as a separate line item. Details are set out in note 18.

BRAEERER A FBRME
18KEE °

CHERIR_ZT—XNE+A
Zt+t—BKEBEBEERATRHE
MEAE ([TEEER]) ELERE
2. FHEEEMNTKESEDIA
HERAEBEEAEEET - 2ZF
BEIEHREAREEVERE Y
BUABRGEMEGEMNZS
Pk BN EimE BT - RERE
RO EaBEBAEYMEREERN
M A RIRYE BB K& &R
Bre B ZREBEENERR
BA—EBIIEE - FIBHNMN
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% =&

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFE

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, the property, plant and
equipment used in Biomass Plant and the goodwill arising on
acquisition of Weal Union Group have been allocated to only one
CGU, comprising one subsidiary in the investment holding and one
subsidiary in the biomass power generation business.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$79,743,000 (2017: nil) in respect
of property, plant and equipment used in Biomass Plant and
HK$39,889,000 (2017: HK$43,863,000) in respect of goodwill
arising on acquisition of Weal Union Group.

Taking into consideration that (i) the new offered electricity unit
price by the counterparty for the forth-coming one year period has
decreased by 25.3% compared to the latest contracted price; (ii)
the electricity grid construction by the government to connect the
South Sumatra region, where the Biomass Plant was located, and
the North Sumatra region, where the demand of electricity is higher,
had been aborted; (iii) the 10-year forecast of electricity growth
rate in Sumatra, Indonesia, where the Biomass Plant is located, as
published by the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources in the
first quarter of 2018 had dropped to 9.1% from 11.2% as published
in the first quarter of 2017, it is expected that the future electricity
unit price will drop and the growth of electricity demand will slow
down, and (iv) the increase in gross profit from the excepted sales
of pellets in the future. Therefore, the expected utilisation growth
rate of the Biomass Plant in near term is lowered. There is also no
clarity as to when or whether the aforesaid infrastructure will resume
and when the local economy will start to improve. Accordingly, the
valuation of Weal Union Group, and hence the recoverable amount
of the property, plant and equipment and goodwill, is impaired due
to the lower growth rate and delay in the realisation of the expected
return.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The recoverable amount of Weal Union Group has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculations which use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management. According to HKAS 36, the recoverable amount is
defined as the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. When there is no basis for making
a reliable estimate of the price at which an orderly transaction to
sell the asset would take place between market participants at
the measurement date under current market conditions, value
in use approach is a possible way to estimate the recoverable
amount. Given that there is no or limited recent transaction with
similar business as Weal Union Group observed, the management
believes that it is more appropriate to adopt value in use approach
for calculating the recoverable amount of Weal Union Group for
the impairment test. In view of the above, when preparing the cash
flow projects for the impairment assessment of the property, plant
and equipment and goodwill as at 31 December 2018, certain
assumptions in the cash flow projections (such as utilisation rate
and unit price) during the budget period are adjusted. Expected
cash inflows/outflows, when include budgeted sales of electricity
and pellets and gross margin have been adjusted based on the
performance of the biomass power plants for the year ended
31 December 2018 and the management’s expectations for the
market development. The financial budgets were approved by the
management, covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate of
18.4% (2017: 18.2%). Cash flows at Weal Union Group beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate at 5%
(2017: 5%). The long term growth rate was estimated based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &% =&

—NFF+ZA=1—HIFE

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The effect of the reasonably possible change in key assumption on
the calculation of value in use of the CGU of Weal Union Group,
which would cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount is disclosed below.

If the discount rate increased by 1% or 2% and all other variables
were held constant, the carrying amount of the CGU of Weal Union
Group would exceed its recoverable amount by approximately
HK$2,190,000 or HK$4,146,000 respectively, at 31 December
2018.

If the budgeted sales decreased by 3% or 5% and all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the CGU
of Weal Union Group would exceed its recoverable amount by
approximately HK$3,677,000 or HK$6,128,000 respectively, at 31
December 2018.

If the gross margin decreased by 3% or 5% and all other variables
were held constant, they carrying amount of the CGU of Weal China
Group would exceed its recoverable amount by approximately
HK$12,793,000 or HK$21,322,000 respectively at 31 December
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 10. BEBHEMZAKERAOAE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE- NEMBREIAR WEHHE
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS ®rE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT T
Listed debt securities classified PEAAHEEERE
as available-for-sale investments, B ETERES
at fair value b2 /NI I - 10,311
Listed debt securities classified PEAFZBHMAEZENE
as debt instruments at fair value BAREAENEEIA
through other comprehensive H)_E T &S 5
income 31,253 —
31,253 10,311
Interest rate Maturity date 2018
F = F|HE R —E-N\F
HK$’000
FHT
Listed bond 4.75% 11 Feb 2019 3,980
EWESH —ZT-hE=-A+—H
Listed bond 6.53% 25 Feb 2019 3,178
EWESH —ZE-NFE-A=-+HH
Listed bond 5.25% 25 Apr 2019 3,984
EWESH —E-NAFMNA=-+HEH
Listed bond 6.75% 22 May 2019 3,953
EWESH —E-AFRA-T=H
Listed bond 3.25% 2 July 2019 7,965
EWESH —ZE—hF+A-H
Listed bond 6.00% 4 Nov 2020 8,193
EWESH —ZE-TF+—AMA
31,253
Analysed as: DA
Non-current IETE 8,193
Current Vi) 23,060
31,253
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34. BB BRI 34
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B N\FER



TRV
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &t —E— \F+ - A=+—HIF FF

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables S EWFIE

20.

RHEKHRE

2018
—B-N\#F

2017
Tt
HK$’000
T

HK$°000
FTERT

8,018 6,284

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to HK$8,018,000 and
HK$6,284,000 respectively.

Trade debtors mainly arise from sales of electricity generated from
biomass power plants. The Company’s credit terms are negotiated
at terms determined and agreed with its trade customers. The
credit periods are ranging from 30 to 60 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented
based on the invoice dates:

R-ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—8H
M T —NF— H*E @E
FEHOMNEBESIRKFES R A
8,018,000/57E&6,284,OOO/;§71: °

%%E%AIKI%%EWE%
EMEENENELE - ARAIZ
EERNZREEESEFERNK
1 E VIR MR AL » EEHIAR30
£60H -
B 7R

RIBRERBHIIRZ

BRI -

2018 2017

—g-\F —Tt%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T TR

0 — 30 days 0£30H 5,088 3,901
31 — 60 days 31260H 2,930 2,383
8,018 6,284
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The Company maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely monitored
to minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
There is no allowance for doubtful debts for both years. None of
the above trade receivables is either past due or impaired.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses. For
trade receivables, they are assessed individually for impairment
allowance based on the historical credit losses experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the end of each reporting period,
including time value of money where appropriate.

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed
and assessed the Group’s trade receivables for impairment, no
additional credit loss allowance was recognised upon application
of HKFRS 9 as the amount was considered as insignificant. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and subsequent settlement,
and considered that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bt2 —F— F+=-A=1+—HI  F/Z

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FFARARHEMEWKRRIR
2018 2017
—E-N\&F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THIT
Consideration receivable (note) FEUARAE (5T - 60,600
Other receivables H A EUFRIR 3,085 1,711
Other debtors, deposits and H A EUNARTR -
prepayments e MIENFIR 4,300 2,083
7,385 64,394
Note: The balance represented the consideration receivable for the disposal MisE © &R E B A RRE
of a subsidiary. It was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable WRE - ZFBEREE®R T
according to the agreements entered by the Group and an independent FTRIRAEEE -2 B E=
third party. The balance had been settled as part of consideration for TR HRER - ZEREHE
the disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2018. B EBREBEZZ—\F+=
Details are set out in note 29. A=+—HLFELE—HHEB

ATREHERA K20 -

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34. BRI EE NS4 o
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RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 22, HRHFABOERRBITREES
BALANCES AND CASH EB&
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Restricted bank deposits 2R BRI TR 11,764 12,427
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEIRS 26,087 30,901
Time deposits T HFR 18,230 4,614
56,081 47,942
Less: Restricted bank deposits W ZBRFIRITER
— non-current portion — ERHEBD (5,882) (12,427)
Restricted bank deposits IR BRI TR
— current portion ik ) (5,882) —
44,317 35,515
Restricted bank deposits and AN PIE S EHE R X PR
bank balances and WITERK
cash denominated in: RITHEBEIRS
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TAR®)) 16,713 17,802
HK$ BT 2,291 12,785
United States dollars (‘US$”) Eo([Ex]) 23,574 629
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) ElfefE (TEnfes& L) 13,503 16,726
56,081 47,942
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RTINS RIBERBITIF A E
deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2017: 0.01% to 0.3%) RZE A EBREMAE - FRED
per annum. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods F001%E03%( = FE —+ F -
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate 0.01% £ 0.3%) ° % HF BTF 5
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective GEHREEE NF—XE=@EA
short-term time deposit rates at 1.1% (2017: 1.1%) per annum. g BIAEEARRESFK

e - W AE B R & (8 S 5 E 5
FRFIERER - FRER/1.1%(=
T—+F :1.1%) °
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22.

23.

@

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, PT. Sentosa Jaya
Purnama (“SJP”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into a service
agreement with an independent third party in order to build and
operate a 10 mega watt plant for the independent third party in
Indonesia. Under the service agreement, SJP is required to place
a restricted deposit denominated in IDR for 33 months up to 45
months. Restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 6%
per annum.

The bank balances, time deposits and restricted bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34.

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date.

22,

23.

ZRFABRITERRBITEER
B & (#)

HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—
BIEEE  KXEEKHE A RIPT
Sentosa Jaya Purnama ([SJP]J)
HB—ZBTE=HEI L —HRS
Wi UWAZBILE=ARERE
BEREE—(10KRENEE
o RIEZ R % - SUPETF
E—ZUHEENENZRHIT
K BHEB3E451EA o ZRHR
IF 5% 6% MEE F KGR -

RITAER - ERFRRZEHR
TR Ty F AL HIY M8 32 K9 R0 8%
S8 RAFIRTT
RERHE R BRI R34 ©
BHEMARE

BIRNFIBREZBHIIRZ
RREEDITIAT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET T

0 to 60 days 0&60H 2,790 2,705
61 to 90 days 612 90H 504 1,321
Over 90 days 90 HEA F 1,677 5,287
4,971 9,313

Included in the Group’s trade payables are construction retention
payables of HK$75,000 (2017: HK$2,201,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HtEMARERENERH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Other payables H A T R0IE 5,581 1,466
Accruals et & 2,101 4,148
7,682 5,614

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 25. MEFRBARIE

As at 31 December 2018, the balance represents amount due to
a close family member of a director, amounting to HK$3,424,000
(2017: HK$6,474,000).

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

R-_ZE—NFE+=_A=+—8"
KRN —RESN—RIOR
B3R IE 3,424,000 T ( —E—+
% 6,474,000/87T) °

ZERRSEER - A EMIER

BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITE
2018 2017
—®-N\F —T—+t%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FAIT
On demand or within one year BRERKH—FNRN 32,517 30,240
In the second year B_F 2,240 2,240
In the third to fifth year inclusive FoFEFRFT(RIEEERT) 4,480 6,720
39,237 39,200
Less: Amount due within one year B —EARRIEBWIIERBIAE
shown under current liabilities 2R (32,517) (30,240)
Amount due after one year — &I BRFIE 6,720 8,960
Current — secured (note) BNER — B (M5T) 2,277 —
Current — unsecured BNHER — K38 30,240 30,240
Non-current — unsecured JERNHR — K 6,720 8,960
39,237 39,200
BRRFRERERDA
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 26.

The bank borrowings comprise of:

S|MITER(#F)

RITERERE

Carrying amount

Effective BREE
interest rate 2018 2017
BRRIx —E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Fixed-rate borrowing: EEFEERK -
Secured RMB bank borrowing BEBARY
RITER 5.10% 2,277 —
Floating-rate borrowings: FENFIRE -
Unsecured HK$ bank borrowing EIIRETT
RITIER 2.73% 28,000 28,000
Unsecured US$ bank borrowing IR
RITER 3.43% 8,960 11,200
Total bank borrowings IRITIE R ABER 39,237 39,200

Note: The RMB bank borrowing is secured by HK$11,386,000 (2017: nil)
receivables under service concession arrangements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HIF F/Z

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

27.

BERFRAR

AT RRAEE BT F R RER
MEBREERAREREERE

28 :

years:

Temporary
difference
related
to service
concession
Provision arrangements
formajor  EMR#HHEF  Withholding
overhauls EZHEHEMN taxes Total
EXBERE ERMER kL #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THIL TAT TAT
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+&—F—8 1,653 (29,735) (3,169) (31,251)
Credited (charged) to profit or loss AAIE) ERER
during the year 441 (1,646) 29 (1,176)
Exchange realignment i i =5 65 (1,132) 97) (1,164)
At 31 December 2017 RoBE—+E+-A=+-8 2,159 (32,513) 3,237) (33,591)
Credited (charged) to profit or loss AAIE) ERER
during the year 258 (1,500) 173 (1,069)
Exchange realignment 3]l (38) 481 31 474
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-A=1+-8 2,379 (33,532) (3,033) (34,186)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$26,484,000 (2017: HK$11,096,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
on the tax losses, as in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the future profit streams of these subsidiaries are uncertain. The tax
losses could be carried forward for a maximum of five years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$14,331,000 (2017: HK$13,295,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

RZE-NF+=ZA=+—
H A&EBEXAHAREEE
26,484,000/ (= F — £ F :
11,096,000 7T) A] A EH 1 AR 2R
JERFRF - AR ARAEER
B RSB A B R A A 2k
BT AR IEEBER
RERIBEE - HIEBBERZ A
HEE R o

RZZE—-NF+=ZA=+—8"
AEBEANNMERMEERE
14,331,000 T(ZF — £ F
13,295,000/ 70) ° AR E £ EF
Tt o4 F) T AT AR LA K 85 AT F0 80 A
MEZEZATREM KR - B ERL
ZEUMNBHE R EEEERIELT
MIBEEE o
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27.

28.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position
and reported as follows:

Net deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B (5558

27.

BERARALR (F)

A2FAN ETEEHELE
REECRE BB RRRE
BHEWT :

2018
—E-N\F

2017
e
HK$’000
T

HK$°000
FEx

34,186 33,591

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by
the Group, the Group has contractual obligations to maintain the
Facilities it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or to
restore the Facilities to a specified condition before they are handed
over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the Facilities,
except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that
would be required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs are collectively referred to as “major overhauls”.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised
where appropriate.
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PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS (Cont’d)

The movements in the provision for major overhauls of the Facilities
during the year are as follows:

28.

EXRERE &)

£ RERENEAREEE
BT

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

At 1 January mn—HA—H 8,635 6,611

Addition NE 2,058 1,349
Increase in discounted amounts arising i F B S 70 40 i 2 A /9 B

from the passage of time (note 8) R ERIL M (T8 ) 565 415

Exchange realignment b 5,5 5] (218) 260

As 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8H 11,040 8,635

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group entered into an agreement with an independent third
party which is indirectly wholly-owned by the Rugao Economic
and Technological Development Zone Administrative Committee
(the “Purchaser”) on 21 September 2016 and a supplemental
agreement subsequently on 28 February 2017 (the “Agreements”)
for the disposal of the entire equity interest in Rugao Honghao
Metal Water Treatment Company Limited (the “Disposal”). The
consideration of the Disposal is RMB55,000,000 (approximately
HK$64,548,000). The Agreements also stipulated that the
Purchaser will be responsible for all operating costs and capital
expenditure on an as-incurred basis (the “Additional Payment
Arrangements”) with effect from 15 November 2016 (as revised
under the supplement agreements) and until the date of completion
of the Disposal.

29.
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Cont’d) 20, HE—MMEBAT(#)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group transferred HE_T—+F+-_A=+—H
the ownership of Rugao Honghao to the Purchaser. The net assets EFE  NEBEHF R RERAR
of Rugao Honghao at the date of disposal were as follows: EREETES - MRLRENE
ERHNEEFENT
CONSIDERATION RECEIVED AND RECEIVABLE: B F B AE :
HK$’'000
FET
Cash received BUIRE 2,893
Deferred cash consideration receivable FEYCEER &R E 61,655
Total consideration received and receivable B R EKARELRRE 64,548
ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OVER WHICH KERNRCEERARSH -

CONTROL WAS LOST:

HK$’'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment Wz - B MEE 426
Receivables under service concession BRIS TR HE TR FEIRIR
arrangements 66,545
Inventories eSS 53
Other receivables and prepayments H th e W oB R TR E 1,150
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 10
Trade payables =) ANE /O (153)
Other payables and accruals HEM IR ETER (853)
Provision for major overhauls EpNGACEd (1,328)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE (7,337)
Net assets disposed of EHEBEFE 58,513
GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY: HE—RHRBEATWS :
HK$’000
FET
Consideration received and receivable B B AE 64,548
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (58,513)
6,035
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Cont’d) 29, HE—MMEAT(#)
NET CASH INFLOW ARISING ON DISPOSAL.: HEEEMRKSRAN R :

HK$’000

FHAT

Cash received B e 2,893

Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHERITESRNIIES (10)

2,883
The deferred consideration was settled in cash by the Purchaser EERESHEIRBEZZ
during the year ended 31 December 2018. —N\F+ZRA=+—HLFEH

AR ERE -

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B&®&
2018 2017
—B2-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAT
Authorised: ETE
3,800,000,000 ordinary shares 3,800,000,000 I =% EE

of HK$0.0001 each 0.0001 & TRy & A 380 380

Issued and fully paid: BETRAR

1,108,000,000 (2017: 1,111,000,000)  1,108,000,000 i%
ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each (ZT—+%F:
1,111,000,000 f%)
AL {E 0.0001 BT
HE R 111 111

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 30. BeE(#F)
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued capital is as RARWE BT A BBt a0
follows: N
Number
of shares Amount
G EE 8
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2017, RZE—tF—H—H"
31 December 2017 and —T—+HF+ZA=1t—HBK
1 January 2018 —T-\F¥—H—H 1,111,000,000 111
Shares repurchased and cancelled o] 8 R M sE AR 19 (3,000,000) N/A N B *
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+=A=+—H 1,108,000,000 111
* Amount less than HK$1,000. *E PR 1,00087T ©
During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares FN - ARRIEBEBBER B
through the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows: F RAFEBEERSHEBR -
ST
Aggregate
Month of No. of consideration
repurchase ordinary shares Price per share paid
E & A5 EERROEE BRER eftERE
Highest Lowest
BS RIK
HK$ HKS$ HK$’000
BT P& TT FET
September 2018 445,000 0.150 0.149 66
—Z-N\FNA
October 2018 1,555,000 0.160 0.150 247
“T-N\FtA
November 2018 845,000 0.160 0.160 135
—T-\F+—A
December 2018 155,000 0.160 0.160 25
—T-N\F+=A
3,000,000 473
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SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

The above ordinary shares were cancelled on 28 December 2018
upon repurchasing in the respective months.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(A) OTHER RESERVE

The balance mainly represents a HK$113,780,000 debit
reserve resulting from the share swap pursuant to the group
reorganisation (details set out in notes 24 and 25(a)(i) for
the year ended 31 December 2014) and a HK$82,304,000
credit reserve resulting from capitalisation of shareholders’
loans (details set out in note 25(a)()) for the year ended 31
December 2014).

(B) GENERAL RESERVE

The transfers from retained earnings to the general reserve
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC.
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32. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 32.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group that has material non-controlling interests:

BAEXFEZERERNFER
BiREAF

BREASFHER R A KB
2EMBRRNFHBERIINT

Percentage of (Loss)/profit for the year
Place of equity interest allocated to Accumulated
incorporation/ held by non- non-controlling interests balance of non-
Name of company Form of entity  operation controlling interest by the Group controlling interests
MR/ FERER FEESEF FERERN
NRER By EENY FrsRER L FERBENER (BR) 87 Bt
2018 2017 2017 2018 2017
“B-\§ —T+F ZB-NFf _—TtF ZB-N\f _TtFf
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TARL TAT
Haian Hengfa Incorporated PRC 30 30 (445) 246 27,122 27,909
BREH AR i
Indlividually immaterial 7 JEiRRR i
subsidiaries with EERIZFER
non-controling WEAF
interest (3,249) 1,115
23,873 29,024

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below presents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 32. EEXEEBRESMIER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Cont’d) BEWEB AT (#)
HAIAN HENGFA BRESR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F&T
Current assets mEBEE 17,102 16,187
Non-current assets ERBNEE 90,369 93,709
Current liabilities MEEE (1,781) (2,384)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (15,285) (14,482)
Equity attributable to owners of RATEA AEGERE
the Company 63,283 73,693
Non-controlling interests of Haian Hengfa /5 %2 1 2% ) JE1R AR #E 25 27,122 19,337
Revenue EEIRA 10,205 10,217

(Loss) profit attributable to owners of RNARER AL (B1R) &5

the Company (1,038) 573
(Loss) profit attributable to BRI IR

non-controlling interests of FEAE (B18) & A

Haian Hengfa (445) 246
(Loss) profit for the year FA(EE) &= (1,483) 819

BERRERERAA
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32.

@

PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 32.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Cont’d)
HAIAN HENGFA (Cont’d)

Other comprehensive (expense) income A FlHEA AFEML

BAEXFERERNFER

BB LT (#F)

RS ()

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000
TERT

2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000
FAET

attributable to owners of the Company ~ Efb2m (Fx ) Wz (800) 2,353
Other comprehensive (expense) income /8 218 2% FE15E A fE 25 B4

attributable to non-controlling interests ~ E4th 2 (5 ) Yzt

of Haian Hengfa (342) 1,008
Other comprehensive (expense) income G RHEH 2@ (FI s ) Yezs

for the year (1,142) 3,361
Total comprehensive (expense) income AR GIHEA ABEEH

attributable to owners of the Company  (Fisz) W zs4a%8 (1,838) 2,926
Total comprehensive (expense) income & %715 35 JF12 AR HE 25 B 1

attributable to non-controlling interests 2 (Fisz ) Uiz 4258

of Haian Hengfa (787) 1,254
Total comprehensive (expense) income  FR2E (B ) Ixs4a%8

for the year (2,625) 4,180
Net cash flows from operating activities 2R B &L &) EEMIR SR EFFE 1,219 2,581
Net cash flows used in investing KEEBER

activities HEemEF88 (317) (139)
Net cash flows used in financing BMETBEANRSREFHE

activities — (2,258)
Net increase in bank balances and cash $R1T45 &k 2 IR & 18 IN/F 58 902 184

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. BEXEBER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEEERHEEARANBRASE
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the ETEREGEMEEIRFELE
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debts and ARKE  RARBRBELEDHK
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged A% #E 2 F 7 E AR R A B 3R & K
from prior year. b o REEHEFERIKEEFR
FEE o
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes AEBENEARAEEDEER  HE
the bank borrowings disclosed in note 26 and equity attributable FEEM 26 EMRITER KL
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and RAmHBE AEGER (BEEE
reserves. TR R () -
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an RRAREETFRTBEARLERH -
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost ERRTHN—3n EFEEE
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based AERAREZEEERB@ANR
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its br o MIBEENWHBREZ &%
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new & S BRI AR S - BATERRD
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt RN EERRMD - ARBEITHER K
or the redemption of existing debt. BOREEBTFEHHEEREERR
& o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. €MTH
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A) S£MITAMRN
FINANCIAL ASSETS TREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Loans and receivables B EW IR - 435,666
Available-for-sale investments A HERE - 10,311
Debt instruments at FVTOCI iR E A 2 E W E
RARBEFENEBIA 31,253 —
Financial assets at amortised cost Z# $EXN AT EM S RE E 381,523 —
412,776 445,977
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TRBE

2018 2017
—E—)\F —ET—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH T T

Amortised cost BRI 53,213 56,453
BRBREERERAR

B N\FER
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include receivables
under service concession arrangements, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, trade receivables, other receivables, restricted
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties and bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and other
price risk), foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

MARKET RISK
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the floating-rate bank borrowings (see
note 26 for details of these borrowings). The Group
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
HIBOR arising from the Group’s HK$ denominated
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group was exposed to fair value rate risk in
relation of fixed-rate borrowings (see note 26 for
details of these borrowings).The Group aims at
keeping borrowings at variable rates.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of

interest rate arising from the bank borrowings.

34. &MTHAHE)
CRRREEREBERBEK

(B)

(#)

5 Ekg ()

U

T EfE (F)

A& B FTHE RO E
BMEENEERF
U NN I Bl IR =
TRBREE 8-
AEBRSRERN
EEBREEEFRN
AT 18 TP 5l B

FE)ZH) -
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets g X NN )
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI is EmermEBEEA
as follows: REFTENERE
EfFERA U
AEREINT ¢
2018 2017
—E—)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T
Interest revenue A EUA
Financial assets at BB AT ER
amortised cost SREE 16,102 —
Loans and receivables B WA - 15,333
Other income and gains  E Uz A KUz
Debt instruments at BEEMEEWSEAE
FVTOCI SEMNEFTIA 650 —
Available-for-sale AR ERE
investments — 501
16,752 15,834
BRRFRERERDA

B N\FER
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Interest expense on WIEE BB

financial liabilities not

BARERENESREE

34. &MTH(#E)

(B) ®RMEREEHBRRBEK
(#)

s Rk ()
() FIFER (&

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FH&T

HK$°000
FET

measured at FVTPL: R B
Financial liabilities at REBIHK AT E
amortised cost SREE 2,177 1,449
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined UTHERESITE
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank BRHmEHRIRT

borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

For floating-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have decreased/increased
by approximately HK$196,000 (2017: HK$196,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate bank borrowings.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to debt securities price
risk through its investments in available-for-sale
investments. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. The Group’s other price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity and debt
instruments operating in infrastructure industry sector
quoted in the Stock Exchange.

Other price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity and debt price risks
at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective debt instruments had
been 5% higher/lower investment revaluation reserve
would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$1,562,000 (2017: increased/decreased by
approximately HK$509,000) for the Group as a result
of the change in fair value of debt instruments at
FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Individual companies in the PRC and
Indonesia within the Group have limited foreign currency
risk as most of the transactions are denominated in the
same currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. However, as the principal subsidiaries
mainly carried out transactions in RMB and IDR, therefore
any appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against RMB and
IDR will affect the Group’s consolidated financial position
and be reflected in the exchange reserve.

As at 31 December 2018, individual companies in Hong
Kong within the Group have foreign currency exposure
because available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$31,253,000 (2017: HK$10,311,000) and a bank
borrowing of HK$8,960,000 (2017: HK$11,200,000) were
denominated in US$. The Group considers that the currency
exposures in related to the US$ are insignificant as HK$ is
pegged to the US$. Therefore, this balance is excluded from
the sensitivity analysis.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to its receivables under
service concession arrangements, trade receivables and
other receivables. The Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk as the major customers of the Group are
the grantors in the PRC and consumer in Indonesia. The
directors of the Company consider that these customers are
local government authorities in the PRC and the Indonesia
which are financially sound and accordingly no provision is
required.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s credit risk is also
attributable to its other receivables. Included in other
receivables are mainly consideration receivable from an
independent third party which is indirectly wholly-owned by
the Rugao Economic and Technological Development Zone
Administrative Committee. The directors of the Company
consider that the credit risk is minimal.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 34. &MTA(#HE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) S£MRIZREEBFERBE
POLICIES (Cont’d) (#)
CREDIT RISK (Cont’d) EERR (&)
The credit risk for bank deposits is limited because the RAREEZRREF M

BB ERAE
KOS EERAR -

directors of the Company consider that the counterparties
are financially sound.

A& B AR E B R AR B
AHEBEATER

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Other financial
assets/other items

Trade receivables/

Internal credit rating  Description contract assets

R EEFR

Low risk
igEN

Watch list
BReE

Doubtful
]

Loss

BE

Write-off
Wi

e

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts
RHHFRENRREE -
B EAEB AR

Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle after due date

EBALERIHBRRER
BEENIRRES

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources

EERR 8 M HER AR ZE M

(EBAHIIMIERFAE2ER)

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BRBBTEMAECD L EERE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
BREERNMEBABARENHBRE
BREETRRREAREAREHE
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ERkEWzE/
ANEE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
T HRBEERE —
AEEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
T HRBEERE —
AEEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
T HRBEERE —
AEEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

2HRNEERRE —
BEEEERE

Amount is written off

MEEEEE

HusmEE/
HftiE B

12-month ECL
12 ABHEERE

12-month ECL
12AABHEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired
S HREMEEEE —
ABEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

L HREMEEERE —
ERERERE

Amount is written off

EERE
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External Internal
credit credit
rating rating

P A
FEIR  REFR

Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BREMRENGERANENENERTA

34. &MTIA(E)
B) £MEMREEHERBE
(#8)
=EER (&)

AEEEREENEER
RO (ZETRBERR
BB BT

Gross carrying
12-month or lifetime ECL amount

12 A% 2 RS ERES A4S
HK$'000
i

Investments in listed bonds 19 AA N/A 12-month ECL 31,253
TTESRE A 1REABHEEES
Financial assets at amortised cost
RESRATENGRHEE
Receivables under service concession

arrangements 16 N/A Low risk {note 1)~ 12-month ECL (individual assessment) 314,339
TR TER A THIRYGIE TER EER (1) 12EAEBEERE BT
Restricted bank deposits 22 AA N/A 12-month ECL 11,764
RBHISITRR TER 12EARREEEE
Bank balances 22 AA+ N/A 12-month ECL 44,317
RITHR A 1REARHEEES
Other receivables 21 N/A Lowrisk (note 2) ~ 12-month ECL 3,085
EfEYEE TER ER@B(HE2)  12EAEHEERE
Trade receivables - goods and services 20 N/A Lowrisk (note 1) Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 8,018
B SIS - ER AR TR EER (1) 2EEREEEE CBuE)

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 34. &MIA(E)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) S£MRIZREEBFERBE
POLICIES (Cont’d) (#)
CREDIT RISK (Cont’d) EERk (&)
Notes: Pi5E
1. For receivables under service concession arrangements 1. MRS R LB T/
and trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified FEW R IE K B 5 FE UK
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime HmME AEBECRE
ECL. The trade receivables are assessed for ECL individually. AEBYBREER
The average loss rate is 0.038%. FORM B FENR
HIEHEEEBTES
BREE - BHEWIE
IR E E BB o E R
e FHEEBEXAR
0.038% °
2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group 2. RABEERREREM
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has FAKEERAGHRE
increased significantly since initial recognition. HeAEERR S 75

RARRR ARG -

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total

s
W WETRRSR a3t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T

Other receivables At FEMGRIE - 3,085 3,085
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont’d)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group'’s liquidity position and its compliance with
lending covenants is monitored closely by the management
of the Company, to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed line of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirement in the short and long term. The Group finances
its working capital requirements through a combination
of funds generated from operations and bank and other
borrowings.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

34. &MTH(HE)

(B)

eRE P EE B RRBR
(#)

REBE SRR

ARREEEBTYERAN
SENED R MR R HE
ERBTERAHE  AE
RAEBH#FERNR S
A N T B 5 B
AREEHNES  Aim
RHEHMREABDES
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 34. &MTA(#HE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) S£MRIZREEBFERBE
POLICIES (Cont’d) (#)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d) nBESRER (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont’d) ﬁ‘?)ﬁﬁfﬁ FlIZ 2 e 76
i3

Carrying

Repayable amount

Weighted  on demand or Total at
average 3 months undiscounted  31.12.2018
effective or less 3-6 6-12 1-3 Over  cashflows HZE-N\E

interest rate BRER months months years 3years it +2R
TETH 335 3%6 6212 123 i) BeiE =t+-A
BRiz  ghaRE fBR fin E 3 g WEEE

% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn

2018 - L 2
Tradle payelles SRR - 491 - - - - 491 49M
Other payables EHERTE - 5,581 - - - - 5,581 5,51
Bank borrowings Ffast 303 28,000 2311 2511 4819 2308 30,949 39,281
Amounts due torelaed paries  FERTEE 7308 - 3424 - - - - 3424 3424
41,976 2311 2511 4819 2,308 53,925 53213
Camying
Repayable amount
Weighted  on demand or Tota a
average Jmonths unclscounted 22017
ffective 3-6 - 1-3 Qver cash flows £
inerestrate BREX montfs ears 3years t25
326 123 i) , S
A { E 3F WEEA
HK$ 000 ‘ HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AL AT THL Tin BT THL
017 “E-tE
Trade payables EHEMTE - 9318 - - - - 9313 9313
Other payelles EAEH5E - 1466 - - - - 1466 1466
Bank borrowings #fas 33 28000 - 2618 4997 4702 40317 30200
Amounts due to elated parfes B[R 7 308 - 8474 - - - - 6474 6474
15,263 - 2618 4997 4,702 57510 56,463
The amounts included above for variable interest rate B F XS ENmEHRE
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject FEWMMEMEETER - Bl BT e
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from SETESRBENFENERT
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of B ea® o

the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(€)

FAIR VALUE

The fair values of available-for-sale investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The Group enters into a derivative financial instrument with
a financial institution with an investment grade credit rating.
The derivative financial instrument, which is a cross currency
swap, is measured using valuation techniques similar to
swap models, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the
foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate
curves. The carrying amount of the cross currency swap is
the same as its fair value.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

34. &MTH(HE)

(€

LRE

AHEEREZRARET
BTISREE -

AEEE—HARERA
EENRN S RBERI L
TEEBIT R - TTETR
TA(AIXXNE®E®R)
RAREFEEZBUE
BB N HERGFE -
ZEBREMAZIE B R
M5 AR - B
Ko i O D T K 2 ) K i
e RXNEBEHROEKE
BEEREQAERR -

TRITAEBE SR THE
MASERTERR

BAREFENEE

Fair value measurement
using quoted prices

in active markets

(Level 1)

BERTISRE

SFENARE
(B—%)
HK$’000

TAET

R-E-—N\E+=ZHA=+—H
BBE MR ERES

As at 31 December 2018
Debt instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income WAREFENESIA 31,253
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tE+=-A=+—H
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE
Debt investments BEEE 10,311
BRRFRERERDA
—T— \FER
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September
2014 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees for their contribution or potential contribution
to our Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 500,000 (31 December 2017: 500,000), representing
0.045% (31 December 2017: 0.045%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The limit on the total number of Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of our Company at any time shall not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time (the “Maximum Limit”).
The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company may be granted is 10% of the Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the share offer, being 80,000,000
Shares (the “Scheme Limit”), excluding for this purpose the
number of shares which would be issued on the exercise in full of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
schemes of our Company but not cancelled, lapsed or exercised;
the number of Shares which have been allotted and issued
pursuant to the exercise of any options granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other schemes of our Company; and the
number of cancelled Shares.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

No options shall be granted under any schemes of our Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
Maximum Limit being exceeded.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of our Company or any of their respective associates
is required to be approved by our independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive director who
is the grantee of the options). If the Board determines to offer to
grant options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates which will
result in the number of shares issued and to be issued in excess
of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month period is subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The subscription price for the Company’s shares on the exercise of
options under Share Option Scheme shall be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of the share.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 35.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, movements of the
Company’s share options held by senior management were as
follows:

Outstanding

at the
beginning
of the year
RE

fof R AT 68

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ-ZE-—-N\F

AR IRt E (47)

REE=Z-—NE+=A=+—
BIEEEHE - ABREEER
BADRRBREZ DT

Number of share options

fBREHE
Exercisable
share
options at
Granted Outstanding the end
during at the end of the year
theyear  of the year RER

REFE REE q{TEZ

BRI e RATRE BRE

+ZA=1+—-H

123554
Year of grant of options 2016 REBREEE

“E-RF 500,000 - 500,000 -
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) IEFHITEE (EL) 0.52 - 0.52 -

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 14 April 2016 is
HK$0.25.

The exercise price of the options of HK$0.52 was equal to the
market price of the shares on the date of grant. Options granted
must be taken up within 30 days of the date of grant — 14 April
2016, upon payment of HK$1.00 per option. Each of the grantees
to whom an option has been granted under the Scheme shall be
entitled to exercise their options up to 33%, 66% and 100% of the
shares that are subject to the option so granted to them at any
time during the period commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the date. The options will vest over a period of
three years from the date of grant and the chief financial officer will
still be employed on the date of vesting and exercise. The validity
period of the options is ten years from the date of grant and the
options shall lapse at the expiry of the validity period. The fair value
at grant date is estimated using a binomial pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The contractual life of each option granted is ten years.
There is no cash settlement of the options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price 0.52
Exercise price 0.52
Expected dividend vyield (%) 1.35
Expected volatility (%) 47.69
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.33
Expected life of share options (years) 10

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies’ share prices over the previous 7-10
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
recognised approximately HK$21,000 of share-based payment
expense in profit or loss (2017: HK$46,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN HONG KONG

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

35.

36.
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36.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(B)

(€

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN THE PRC

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are
required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which
are held separately from those of the Group. Contributions
are made by the Group based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension schemes. The employer contributions
vest fully once made.

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN OPERATING
IN INDONESIA

Under the Indonesia Labor Law, companies are required to
pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to
their employees if the conditions specified in the Indonesia
Labor Law are met. The Group’s subsidiaries in Indonesia,
estimates its liability for employee service entitlement
benefits in order to meet and cover the minimum benefits
requirement to be paid to employees under the Indonesia
Labor Law.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary
risk.

INVESTMENT RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is
calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to
Indonesian government bonds; if the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(€)

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN OPERATING
IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

INTEREST RATE RISK

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan
liability.

LONGEVITY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is
calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants both during and after their employment.
An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability.

SALARY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is
calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The post-employment benefits are unfunded.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at 31
December 2018 by PT Dayamandiri Dharmakonsilindo, an
independent actual consulting firm in Indonesia. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related
current service cost and past service cost, were measured
using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 36. SEFIRFIEIE(AF)
(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN OPERATING (C) RERETZRERFE
IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) hatdl(#8)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d) sk (&)
(i) Current service cost: (i) B ATIRFE LA -
The current service cost and the net interest expense B AT RIS A AN & F
for the year are included in the employee benefits WF B FREET
expense in profit or loss. Of the expense for the year, AEEEXNEER
HK$256,000 (2017: HK$152,000) has been included MAX FRAX
in the administrative expenses. 256,000 L( = F
—+ 4 1 152,000
JT) B EF AT
i o
The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability RERNBEFHE
is included in other comprehensive income. ZEFFEFAR
fh 2 EWES ©
(i)  Retirement benefit obligations: (i)  BROEFEME
The amount included in the consolidated statement of AEESRERER
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation MEBMmBETEE
in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: K 5T A &R & B IS AR
MEMSFEAT

2018
—E-N\F

2017
e
HK$’000
FH&T

HK$°000
FTHET

Present value of funded B/ EREEHMEELIRE
defined benefit
obligation 808 171

Fair value of plan assets ~ ZFEIEEMNARE - —

Net liability arising AERMNETEENAEFRHE
from defined benefit

obligations 808 171

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2018 Annual Report

Q@



TR IR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 36. EWFiRFIR{E(#F)
(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN OPERATING (C) MEIREFTZRERFIE
IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) RatE (#8)
SALARY RISK (Cont’d) Fremk ()
(ii) Retirement benefit obligations: (Cont’d) (i) BIERERE - (A)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit RER®RME g HIE
obligations in the current year are as follows: _|5/\_\$ FEMESH M

(i)

2018 2017
—s—-N\=E —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET

Opening defined benefit ~ FHIRERFIEE

obligation 171 —
Current service cost B AT RS A A 246 181
Interest cost FLERA 16 1
Past service cost, TR (BIEE R )
including gains
on curtailments 3 (80)
Adjustment related to BRARIERTEIAE
termination plan 313 —
Remeasurement losses: ~ E#EHE/E518 ¢
— Actuarial gains and — RECRRMES
losses arising from BB W KB
experience adjustments (26) 7
— Actuarial gains and — ARBREBFEL
losses arising from 2 FEE W K E1E
change in demographic
assumptions 33 14
Income in the OCI HAth 2 M 2 W 73 —
Benefits paid BERER (2 (1)
Exchange differences on &M1& X =58
foreign plans (19) (1)
Closing defined benefit  FARFAERFEL
obligation 808 171
Key assumptions: (i) BHRMRAR -
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of BEHEMRMATE
the actuarial valuations were as follows: BB

Discount rate BHIR K 8.68% 7.4%
Expected rate of salary ~ FEHiH & FHiE
increase 4.5% 4.5%

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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Q

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 36. SRUFEFIEE(AE)
(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN OPERATING (C) RERETZRERFE
IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) hatdl(#8)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d)
(i)  Key assumptions: (Cont’d)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and
expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis
below has been determined based on reasonably

FemkE (E)
(i) EHSREER (4E)

EERAETEEZE
REBEERZBUR
SN R
fEe ATHEED

possible changes of the respective assumptions MRBER SR
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while ERBFLHBESEA
holding all other assumptions constant. s 3 Ej) ﬁﬁ H ’r!ij R

Increase

Increase in net

in net obligation

defined benefit benefit

Increase obligations Decrease obligations

in rate RERH in rate RERH

MEL#  SEREEM FlETR  EEREEM

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

TR THR
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE

+ZB=t-H

Discount rate(s) A% 1 1 1 42
Expected rate(s) of BHF LR

salary increase 1 42 1 -

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be R AR R’ Al g

representative of the actual change in the defined

EHRE BE—8F

benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in _LTE’ mEEBAKRT

assumptions would occur in isolation of one another BEE A LA EZT

as some of the assumptions may be correlated. @Z BREDTWA—E
EREATEMIE
ez ERE

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 36. EANIRFIEIE ()
(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN OPERATING (C) MEIREFTZRERFIE
IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) et (#%)
SALARY RISK (Cont’d) Rk (&)
(i)  Key assumptions: (Cont’d) (i)  EHRRERR (&)
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity gEoh s REZ3 A &
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit BRESWE R
obligation has been calculated using the projected ERMNEEZRE
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, R & AR LA B &
which is the same as that applied in calculating the BAEREE
defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the HERNGERE
consolidated statement of financial position. B 7 AR LR W RE R

ZRERMEMLE
B2 T AR e

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 37. BEKiRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of BHACFTHERRGEE
service concession arrangement B R R e BB B AR TS
contracted for but not provided BT E AR
in the consolidated financial
statements 1,312 —

BERRERERAA
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38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@)

The Group has sub-leased the commercial premises located
at Units 1-3, 11th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands
Road, Hong Kong (the “Office Premises”) for use as offices
from Dragonfield Management Limited (“Dragonfield”), a
company controlled by close family members of a director
of the Company. On 5 September 2014, the Group entered
into a commercial premises sublease agreement with
Dragonfield for the continuing use and occupation of the
Office Premises after the listing, retrospectively, effective from
27 August 2014 to 26 August 2016 at a rent of HK$276,000
per annum (the “Sublease Agreement”).

On 11 December 2015, the Group entered into an
administrative services sharing agreement with Dragonfield
Management Limited (“Dragonfield”), a company
substantially owned by close family members of a
director of the Company in connection with the sharing of
administrative services, retrospectively, effective from 1 July
2018 to 30 June 2021. The Group was charged for the
shared administrative services, which includes the rent to
Dragonfield for the area of the office preciouses used by the
Group, on a cost basis.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(@)

(Cont’d)

The total amount of shared administrative services expenses
charged to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2018 was HK$3,335,000 (2017: HK$3,216,000)

There is no amount due to Dragonfield for both years.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$621,000
(2017: HK$1,658,000) services fee and rental expenses
were paid to related companies over which a director of the
Company has significant influence to operate, monitor and
maintain the two power plants of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

mEMBRRME

—NFF+ZA=F—HIFE

38. BABKARH(#)

(@)

(%)

HE-_Z—N\HE+=A
_+ Eti&‘ﬁr)@aﬁnm
3,335,000,%75 _ié -
£ : 3,216,000/87T) °

B FE I EENERZ
A °

REZE=_ZE—N\F+=A
=t+—HIEFE BEXH
621,000 T(=ZF—+F :
1,658, ooo;%ﬁ)ﬁ&i’%%%ﬁﬁ
k€M TR AR

ﬁﬁZ!K a— %%%fj?@ﬂﬁﬁ
REBERTEN  #
NEAREEMEEER
REE - BE B R MEE o

TREEE AR

RENEERTEERE
Hi A BWFHBOT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Short-term employee benefits HHEEREN 5,612 4,368

Post-employment benefits BEER 1242 1 36 76

5,648 4,444

The remuneration of directors and key executives is EERFETHRAEZH

determined by the remuneration committee having regard A& ME B 2KE R [

to the performance of individuals and market trends. Further
details of compensation of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 10.

ARBETHBER%E
T BEMeHE—HF
TBEENHEE10
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. FATFTHMBERAE
COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ELAFHMHERRE
COMPANY
2018 2017
—EB-N\FE —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries AR NG eSS 283,433 283,433
Available-for-sale investments AEfHERE — 10,311
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FHEimE M EmEE
BAREFENEETIA 8,193 —
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUBTE A RIFIE 109,393 90,037
401,019 383,781
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b R IB 172 172
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B~ R F0R 7,209 40,997
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BiRE MR
BAREFENEETA 23,060 —
Bank balances and cash IRITERIIRS 17,292 1,881
47,733 43,050
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals EETE A 1,300 1,300
Amount due to a subsidiary JEAH— BB A R FIA 51,340 22,451
52,640 23,751
Net current (liabilities) assets B (BB EEFE (4,907) 19,299
Total assets less current liabilities AEERARBEE 396,112 403,080
Equity s
Issued capital BTN 111 111
Reserves i 396,001 402,969
Total equity R 396,112 403,080

Q@
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. FAOAFTMMBRAE (&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)
MOVEMENT IN EQUITY OF THE COMPANY FATHESEE
Retained
earnings
Share Investment  (accumulated
Issued Share option revaluation losses)
capital premium reserve reserve RERA Total
ERTRE RHEE  BRERE REEMRG (ZitER) &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Fhr ThI T T Thn
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 111 409,031 54 506 332 410,033
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (6.202) (6.202)
Fair value chenge on avalable-forsale A HERE ¢ AR EES
investments - - - (305) - (305)

Investment revaluation reserve released  HEM i HERBEERRE
upon disposal of available-for-sale EftfE

investments - - - (492) - (49
Total comprehensive expenses EREERTLE

for the yeer - - - 797 6.202) 6.999)
Recognition of equity-settled ANEREEERNRONOAR

share-based payments - - 46 - - 46
At 31 December 2017 R-E-+EL-RSH-B 10 409,031 100 %) 6870) 403,080
Loss for the year FRrEiE - - - - (6,792) (6,792)
Fair value change on debtinstuments BB 2ENGERALEHE

at FVTOoCl MERIAZLNEES - - - (128) - (128

Investment revaluation reserve released  HEEBE (2 EUE
upon disposal of debt instruments ROAEFENBHIAR
at FVTOC BRREERE - - - 404 - 404

Total comprehensive income (expense) M2 ENE (Fi%) 28

for the year - - - 216 (6,792) (6,516)
Recognition of equity-settled ANEREZERNROOAR

share-based payments - - 21 - - 21
Repurchase of ordinary shares (note 30)  E@iEEE (F5F30) _ (473) - - - (473)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZB=1-A 1 408,558 121 (16) (12,662) 396,112
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 40. ETAFEEMEAFTRIFE

THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—N\EFEERZFT—+tF+=

December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: A=+—8 ' ARRFEWEA

AIMEIBAT
Proportion of
Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid/ issued ordinary
incorporation/ Place of  registered ordinary share capital Principal
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital held by the Group activities
ERTRHAR/ AEEER
B,/ EE o ER CRTEER
) PSR EEalipch 12 B BRAEE LA TEEH
2018 2017
“B-0\F —T—LF
% %

Haian Hengfa PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 70 70 Wastewater
("BREE KRR H H AR #30,000,0007T treatment
BRAE") (notes a & ¢) KRR

BRER
(BREETKER
BRAR] (MFake)

Rugao Hengfa PRC PRC US$9,880,000 100 100 Wastewater
("R EHKEE I HE 9,880,000% T treatment
ARAF") (notes b &¢) KRR

mEEE
((REEKEE
BRARD)(MEbKke)

Shanghai Taihuan PRC PRC HK$400,000 100 100 Dormant
(" DERBRBRREEBAR") e FE 400,000 7T BmE%
(notes b & c)

HERR
([ LERRRRREALA])

(FzEb Ke)

Rugao Taihuan PRC PRC US$1,000,000 100 100 Wastewater
("MERFRRRREHER R H 1,000,000 7T treatment
27al") (notes b & ¢) KRR

MEFR
(M2 FRRRBULERRA]])

(FizEb Ke)
ELL Environmental Limited BVI BVI US$100 100 100 Investment
EBRAEE RBRLHS OESH holding
REEK

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/ Place of
Name of subsidiary registration operation

R,/ g
WEAREE it ik

Everbest Water Treatment HongKong ~ Hong Kong
Development 0 B

EEKBER

Grand Target Holdings Limited BVI BVI
Water Treatment Company ~ RBELEE RBRLHE
Limited

Greatcorp International Limited Hong Kong  Hong Kong

TS ER AR A BE e

Eternity Time Group Limited BVI BVI

RERLESE RBRZES

Weal Union Ltd Hong Kong  Hong Kong
JEEBER R BB BB
Absolute Praise Limited Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

RERES GELH

Issued and

fully paid/
registered ordinary
share capital
BRTREBR
EXMEER

BA

HK$82,304,273
82,304,273 57T

Us$100
100%7T

HK$100
100/87T

Us$100
100E7T

HK$250
250/87T

Us$100
100E7T

40.

FAFERMELRMIFS

(#)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

share capital Principal
held by the Group activities
XEBRE
BRITEER
RAEE LA TEEH
2018 2017
“E-N\§ ZE—tF
% %
100 100 Investment
holding
REER
100 100 Investment
holding
RERR
100 100 Investment
holding
REEK
100 100 Investment
holding
REER
100 100 Investment
holding
RERR
100 100 Dormant
EmEY

BERRERERAA
B N\FER
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 40.

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Issued and

Place of fully paid/

incorporation/ Place of registered ordinary

Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital
BERTREBRE/

R,/ g5 ERMEER
WEAREE aEfi it B 3 KA

PT. Rimba Plama Sejahtera Indonesia Indonesia IDR230,900 million
e fe  230,000FEHRE

PT. Sentosa Jaya Purnama Indonesia Indonesia IDR25,000 million
EHfe e 250006&HERE

PT. ELL Environmental Limited Indonesia Indonesia IDR2,000 million
e i 2000 BEHIERE

Notes:

(@) This entity is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under the

laws of PRC.
(b) These entities are registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under

the laws of PRC.
(c) The English names of these entities represent management’s best effort

at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any
official English names.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ELFEEMB AP
(#)
Proportion of

nominal value of
issued ordinary

share capital Principal
held by the Group activities
rEERE
BRETLER
RAEELL I IREY
2018 2017
“B-N\F _T—+F
% %
95 95 Manufacturing
and sale of
electricity and
palm kemei ol
EERMEE
RirECm
95 95 Dormant
LEXK
99 99 Provision of
administration
and
management
services
to group
companies
BEJINS
R
ERRS

GEE

(@) ZERRETEEREM AT
BERERE -

iR R BUAREM AN
=,

ZE BRI ATMERE T
z

B ZEBERMEXANE
BESNNRET XL
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Except for ELL Environmental Limited and Eternity Time Group
Limited, all subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of the year
or constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

40. ELAFEEMBLAFTRIFT
(#)

B ELL Environmental Limited X%
Eternity Time Group Limited ob -

BB AR AR RIFEERREA

LRIIREERBEBYETE
SUAERAREEEFEL T
BRS 2 ARAMBELT - BF
RA - RUHILHBA T2 S
ELRIBBRTE -

41. MEETHEEZARYE

TRFAVRMEEDELEZAKE
BEZY ERASNIIFREE
B METHEEZRBENER
ReREBIARKRERENAE
BrAaReRERT O ERRE
APELNRENRE

Amount
duetoa
Bank related party Interest
borrowings  Eff— %k payment Total
BITER BARE FEX A #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THIL TAT TAT
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—A—H 32,426 6,542 - 38,968
Financing cash flows BMERERE 6,703 68) (1,034) 5,601
Interest expense FERX - - 1,034 1,034
Exchange differences X ERE 71 - - 71
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A=+—H 39,200 6,474 - 45,674
Financing cash flows BMERERE (243) (3,050) — (3,293)
Interest expense FERX - - (1,612) (1,612)
Exchange differences My ER 280 - 1,612 1,892
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\F+ZA=1—H 39,237 3,424 - 42,661
BRBREMARAT @
ZE-NFFR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FMBEHE

RESULTS

E 4

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-BLFEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—F-mFE —FT-RF —FR"F —TtF =B-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FH&T FiT
Revenue B A 85,183 145,462 100,317 78,964 79,050
Profit (loss) before tax BRI AT

(BE) 22,136 36,229 18,522 (50,891) (141,105)

Income tax (expenses) s ()
credit i (10,861) 3,920 (7,029) (9,856) (3,562)
Profit (oss) for the year R FI (B518) 11,275 40,149 11,493 (60,747)  (144,667)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

BE  ARKFZERER

INTERESTS
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—A8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-OFE ZFT—AF T—R"F ZE—tF ZZB-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHAT FAT FH&T FET
Total assets BEE 437,796 610,439 681,140 628,928 475,888
Total liabilities BEeE (72,967) (95,304) (111,538) (107,106) (101,512)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE{E M AERS (28,234) (27,593) (27,650 (29,024) (23,873)
336,595 487,542 541,952 492,798 350,503
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